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Change of Financial Year end Date

On January 17, 2024, the Board announced that it has resolved
to change the financial year end date of the Company from
June 30 to December 31 with immediate effect. Accordingly, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for the current
financial period cover a period of six months from July 1, 2023 to
December 31, 2023. Certain comparative figures, however, are
for the year ended June 30, 2023, and hence may not be directly
comparable.
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Financial Performance Highlights

MBRABE

For the year ended June 30,

Revenue A

Gross profit £

Operating profit 45 I/}

Profit before taxation % #ii &

Profit for the year/period 4/ #iA7;

Profit for the year/period attributable to: AT A LFE{S 5 /HAFIE
- Equity shareholders of the Company — 7K/ A& 25 R
- Non-controlling interests — 3FHE AR

Earnings per share SR 27

- Basic (RMB) —&E& (AR TT)

- Diluted (RMB) —#8 (AR¥ )

Adjusted net profit (a non-IFRS measure)

LR TR R R BREER) BE)

Adjusted net earnings per share (a non-IFRS measure)
KARGRFERN (BB BREEN) BEF)

- Basic (RMB) —E& (AR TT)

- Diluted (RMB) —#& (AR ¥ )

6H308 ILFE

For the six months ended December 31,
2023 BZ12A318 L~ EA

H %2023 2022 2023
20224 20235

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REET) (&)

(Audited)
(&)

(RMB in thousands, except percentages and per share data)
(ARBTT - Ot REBREERI)

11,473,208 5,266,878 7,632,467
4,443,052 1,985,660 3,241,039
2,223,011 957,070 1,553,707
2,333,614 1,005,409 1,652,742
1,781,829 763,911 1,256,077
1,768,926 764,090 1,248,405

12,903 (179) 7,672
1.42 0.61 1.00

1.41 0.61 1.00
1,844,711 790,491 1,302,509
147 0.64 1.04

1.46 0.63 1.04

Non-IFRS Financial Measures

In evaluating the business, MINISO considers and uses adjusted
net profit and adjusted basic and diluted net earnings per share
as supplemental measures to review and assess its operating
performance. The presentation of these non-IFRS financial
measures is not intended to be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for the financial information prepared and presented
in accordance with IFRS. MINISO defines adjusted net profit as
profit for the period excluding equity-settled share-based payment
expenses. MINISO computes adjusted basic and diluted net
earnings per share by dividing adjusted net profit attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company by the number of ordinary
shares used in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculation
on an IFRS basis.

ﬂ MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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MINISO presents these non-IFRS financial measures because they
are used by the management to evaluate its operating performance
and formulate business plans. These non-IFRS financial measures
enable the management to assess its operating results without
considering the impacts of the aforementioned non-cash and other
adjustment items that MINISO does not consider to be indicative
of its operating performance in the future. Accordingly, MINISO
believes that the use of these non-IFRS financial measures provides
useful information to investors and others in understanding
and evaluating its operating results in the same manner as the
management and the Board.

These non-IFRS financial measures are not defined under IFRS
and are not presented in accordance with IFRS. These non-IFRS
financial measures have limitations as analytical tools. One of the
key limitations of using these non-IFRS financial measures is that
they do not reflect all items of income and expense that affect
MINISQO’s operations. Further, these non-IFRS financial measures
may differ from the non-IFRS information used by other companies,
including peer companies, and therefore their comparability may be
limited.

These non-IFRS financial measures should not be considered in
isolation or construed as alternatives to profit, basic and diluted
earnings per share, as applicable, or any other measures of
performance or as indicators of MINISO’s operating performance.
Investors are encouraged to review MINISO’s historical non-IFRS
financial measures in light of the most directly comparable IFRS
measures, as shown below. The non-IFRS financial measures
presented here may not be comparable to similarly titled measures
presented by other companies. Other companies may calculate
similarly titled measures differently, limiting the usefulness of such
measures when analyzing MINISO’s data comparatively. MINISO
encourages you to review its financial information in its entirety and
not rely on a single financial measure.

Financial Performance Highlights
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Financial Performance Highlights

MBRABE

The following table reconciles our adjusted net profit, a non-IFRS
measure, for the year ended June 30, 2023 and for the six
months ended December 31, 2022 and 2023 to the most directly
comparable financial measure calculated and presented in
accordance with IFRS, which is profit for the year/period.

For the year ended June 30,

TRERMEZE2023F6 A30H ILFE KEZE2022
F22023F 12 A31 B 1L/~ A B4 2558 (GE
(BB EF IS 3R 22 81 ) 4612 ) BB IR B R B A5 3R 5 2
B sHE R EROFEZ AL NI ISEIZ (BVF 5
T ) T TE R -

For the six months ended December 31,

2023 HZ12A318EAEA
EE2023F 2022 2023
6A30B IEFE 20224 2023F
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(&=sT) (REEERT) (R&E5T)
(RMB in thousands)
(ANRETTT)
Profit for the year/period 5 #R 58 1,781,829 763,911 1,256,077
Add back: JifE :
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
s RN IHRY 62,882 26,580 46,432
Adjusted net profit (a non-IFRS measure)
FAEFAE GH R I BREER) B12) 1,844,711 790,491 1,302,509
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BUSINESS REVIEW FOR THE SIX MONTHS
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

We are a global value retailer offering a variety of trendy lifestyle
products featuring IP design. Since we opened our first store
in China in 2013, we have successfully incubated two brands
- “MINISO” and “TOP TOY”. We have built our flagship brand
“MINISO” as a globally recognized retail brand and established
a store network worldwide. Our flagship brand “MINISO” offers
a frequently-refreshed assortment of lifestyle products covering
diverse consumer needs, and consumers are attracted to our
products’ trendiness, creativeness, high quality and affordability.

During the six months ended December 31, 2023, the total number
of MINISO stores in China and overseas markets increased from
5,791 as of June 30, 2023 to 6,413 as of December 31, 2023. The
number of TOP TOY stores increased from 118 as of June 30,
2023 to 148 as of December 31, 2023. For the six months ended
December 31, 2023, the aggregate GMV of the Group reached
approximately RMB14.3 billion.

Brands and Products

For the six months ended December 31, 2023, we launched an
average of around 930 SKUs in “MINISO” channels per month,
and we offered consumers a wide selection of around 9,500 core
SKUs, the vast majority of which are under the “MINISO” brand.
Our MINISO product offering spans across 11 major categories,
including home decor, small electronics, textile, accessories,
beauty tools, toys, cosmetics, personal care, snacks, fragrance and
perfumes, stationery and gifts.

Under the “TOP TOY” brand, we offered around 8,400 SKUs as of
December 31, 2023 across major categories such as blind boxes,
toy bricks, model figures, model kits, collectible dolls, Ichiban Kuiji
and other popular toys.

Business Review and Outlook
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

Store Network P E 4%

As of December 31, 2023, we served consumers primarily through HZE2023F12 A31H » HGFE@iB46,400K 2
a network of around 6,400 MINISO stores, including over 3,900 BERPIERE A EBERHERSE  EhadhEHE
MINISO stores in China and around 2,500 MINISO stores in HRiB3,900 K ZAEMME - T 8INEHI2,500K &
overseas. The following table shows the number of MINISO stores BIEMPIE -« TRIIREZ2FHRAE - PEFEI
in China and overseas as of the dates presented: HEZEERMEEE -

As of June 30, 2023 As of December 31, 2023

H E2023F B Z£2023F
6 A30H 12A31H

Number of MINISO stores ZEIBRFIEHE

China & 3,604 3,926
Directly operated stores & & /& 15 26
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model Z&1& % A9/ 3,569 3,878
Stores operated under distributor model X IEFT/E 20 22

Overseas ;&5 2,187 2,487
Directly operated stores B & /& 176 238
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model %84 % AP 252 283
Stores operated under distributor model X IEF)E 1,759 1,966

Total &5t 5,791 6,413

We have also expanded our TOP TOY store network in China. As KRFMDIEAETEYTOP TOYFIERLE - BHE
of December 31, 2023, we had a total of 148 TOP TOY stores, all of 2023F 12318 + &MHEH148KTOP TOYFI/E -
which were located in China. FEBAIAAHEY o

As of June 30, 2023 As of December 31, 2023

HE2023F B £2023F
6 A30H 12A31H

Number of TOP TOY stores TOP TOYFI/E& &

Directly operated stores & ‘& /& 9 14
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model £ 8|4 % AP35 109 134
Total &5t 118 148

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Store operations in China

As of December 31, 2023, apart from 26 directly operated MINISO
stores, 22 distributor MINISO stores and 14 directly operated TOP
TOY stores, all of our other MINISO and TOP TOY stores in China
were operated under the MINISO Retail Partner model.

The following table shows the aggregate numbers of MINISO stores
in China for the periods indicated:

Directly operated stores B & /&
Number of stores at the beginning of the period H1#]FIE &2
Number of new stores opened during the period iR XK FIEHE
Number of closed stores during the period" EA N EAEARIPI FEEIE "

Net increase in number of stores during the period 1Pk 1 & #); %1 0

Number of stores at the end of the period HikF9/E & &
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model ZRI& ¥ AFIJE

Business Review and Outlook
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EFEMEEE

HZE2023F12A310 ' K26 X BAIEREE
2R AL EERRIEFIEM14KTOP TOYE L /ES) -
BOEFENEMBEERMTOP TOYFYE 2 2EB
FEEZBIEBABATIES -

TRIIRP PR B o B ) 2 Bl B A PB4 8K

For the year ended For the six months ended
June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023
BZ20235F
12531 BB B

EHZ20234F
6 A30H ILFE

Number of stores at the beginning of the period Hi7IFIE & &

Number of new stores opened during the period iR XK FIEHE
Number of closed stores during the period" EA N EAEARIPI R ELE "

Net increase in number of stores during the period 1P & 1 & #); %1 0
Number of stores at the end of the period HikFI/E & &

Stores operated under distributor model X325 /&

Number of stores at the beginning of the period Ei#1F9/E & &

Number of new stores opened during the period BRI RI# FIE#E
Number of closed stores during the period HiAEEEARIFIEEE

Net increase in number of stores during the period 1Pk 1 & #);% & 0

14 15

7 13

2

11

15 26
3,195 3,569
546 601@
172 2920
374 309
3,569 3,878
17 20

3 2

3 2

20 22

Number of stores at the end of the period HikF9/E & &

Notes:

(1)  The closure of MINISO stores was due to various reasons, such
as expiration of store leases, increases in store rental, changes
in the layout of shopping malls where the stores were located,
unprofitableness of certain stores, and closure by MINISO Retail
Partners for other considerations, as applicable.

(2)  The number of MINISO Retail Partner stores opened or closed during
the six months ended December 31, 2023 includes various situations
such as stores relocation and upgrade. After excluding the movement
of stores relocation and upgrade, the number of stores opened or
closed during the six months ended December 31, 2023 were 412
and 108, respectively.

i

1) HAERMERSEREMBER - MFUEEOZIE -
FIERSIEM - PIEPERSNHBBREEE(L - X
LEPYE SRR N R A RIA B AHKEME B (11E
FA)BARAPIE -

(2 #HZE2023%12 /318 1L18AFEKERANZA
AEAPMEREREMERERFALSLERBR -
BT ARERFBHOPIE - B ZE2023%12 A31
HIEAEARESBERANPIEHRED R A412R K
103% °
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

Our ability to penetrate into various tiers of cities is evidenced by
our proven track record of successfully penetrating into various
lower-tier cities in China despite our previous experience operating
in mostly high-tier Chinese cities. The following table shows the
aggregate numbers of MINISO stores in China by city-tiers as of the
dates indicated:

HARMZANEEERAZRERE — R
M BERRMBENZEDSEET - RFIKWE
BEREZ ARG TORSEECHERER - T
RINREEMR AR ERE ST EEEE
mPIIE AR

As of June 30, 2023 As of December 31, 2023

HZE2023F

H E20234F

Number of MINISO stores in China B B &I ERFEHE

12H31H

6 H30H

First-tier cities — 433 474 522
Second-tier cities Z&R 1,496 1,617
Third- or lower-tier cities = 43K A T, 1,634 1,787
Total &5 3,604 3,926

For expansion of our MINISO store network in China, our efforts
will be focused on penetration into lower-tier cities as we have
established a strong presence in more developed cities.

Furthermore, we plan to focus on establishing and reinforcing the
recognition of the TOP TOY brand and expanding our TOP TOY
store network in first- and second-tier cities in China in the near
future while also expanding into lower-tier cities.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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The MINISO Retail Partner model represents a mutually beneficial
relationship between us and the MINISO Retail Partners, where
we achieve rapid store network expansion with consistent brand
image and consumer experience in an asset-light manner, and our
MINISO Retail Partners attain attractive investment opportunities.
Our MINISO Retail Partners are also motivated to maintain a loyal
relationship with us. The following table shows the number of our
MINISO Retail Partners in China for the periods indicated:

Number of MINISO Retail Partners at the beginning of the period™
HHREIERAHED

Number of new MINISO Retail Partners during the period®
HIRNFTE R AIE R A BB

Number of terminated MINISO Retail Partners during the period
HARIENZRIARARE

Net increase in number of MINISO Retail Partners during the period

BNEAIAHA MR ER
Number of MINISO Retail Partners at the end of the period®
HIRERIERAHED

Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

HEIBBABARKRTRMEREABAZHNE
BEMER  RAREEESABRRENFEP
RIESKR - RE—BMREERIEEERR - MA
BIERARERSTARSINNEREKSE - RANHA
BIERABBEBNERMRSBHNAERE - T
FIREMRFIREETENREIGBAZTE ¢

For the year ended For the six months ended
June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023

B Z2023%F
12H31 B L A{EA

HZE20234F
6 A30H IEFE

921 1,040
230 82
111 58
119 24
1,040 1,064

Notes:

(1) Number of MINISO Retail Partners at a given date is calculated based
on the number of individuals and entities with effective contractual
relationships with us at that date.

(2)  We added 82 new MINISO Retail Partners for the six months ended
December 31, 2023, mainly due to our store expansion strategy into
more lower-tier cities in China, which demands us to cooperate with
more MINISO Retail Partners with local resources for store expansion
purposes.

As of December 31, 2023, there were 1,049 MINISO Retail Partners
invested in MINISO stores in China, and 579 of them had invested
for over three years. We had one distributor for the MINISO brand
in Tibet, China during the six months ended December 31, 2023. As
of the date of this annual report, there has been no conversion of
our collaboration partners in China from a MINISO Retail Partner to
a distributor, or vice versa.

Our TOP TOY stores are operated under the MINISO Retail Partner
Model as well. Among the MINISO Retail Partners shown in the
table above, we had 18 and 15 MINISO Retail Partners operating
TOP TOY stores as of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023,
respectively.

F i

(1) #"EERETAHRAEBANKRENREBEZAMER
MiFEEMERBENEARERBOSEH

() HZE2023F12A31HIENEA - BFFIE82MLA
BlEBA  ZZRBREMEFTPEEZEEHT
P EREE - EERRMEESREEHER
WEAIEBAGIE  ABAPIERIER -

#HZE2023F12A318 * H1,049(ZEIERAE
PEREERBIERFIE  HP579U B RE=ZFIL
+ o REE2023F12 A31HIENEA - HFIES
BB REERRENRIER - HEARFHRBE
B BMEFENEIERH T ERBEIERAER
RIER  RZINA »

HIHTOP TOYPIE MR B RIGBABA TEE -
EERITHZAIEGRAT - # 2202396 H30H
N2023F12 A318 * DRIB18U K15 ZAIEH
ALLETOP TOYFIJE ©

20235 HE « BAER



Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

Store operations in overseas markets

We have adopted flexible store operation models, including direct
operation, MINISO Retail Partner model and the distributor model
as we expand our global footprints, depending on the growth
potential, local regulation and other factors in the markets. In
consideration of the evolving local regulatory requirements, market
conditions and their operational needs, our overseas franchisees
may sometimes convert from a MINISO Retail Partner to a
distributor, or vice versa.

As of December 31, 2023, in overseas markets, there were 238
stores directly operated by us and 2,249 MINISO Retail Partner
stores and stores operated under the distributor model. The
following table shows the aggregate numbers of MINISO stores in
overseas markets for the periods indicated:

Directly operated stores E& /&

ERIHISENFEES
BAERR2HROPEBENRE - RIEM ST
RE&ED - EMERMEMRAER - AT —RIIE)
MFEEZES - BREEE - BRIEBARAMK
BRA - EEIEHAEECNETENR - TIHK
HREENLERR - RAEIMBERER S
ZRIEBABE RRIER - RZIFA -

HZE2023F12 A31 8 © 185 5 - Ffi#EHE238
REZE  BRIEBAPIERRIEFE2,249K T
RIVRP TR BRSNS Z AME P E A

For the six months ended
December 31, 2023
HZ2023F

12831 HIEAE A

For the year ended
June 30, 2023

HZE2023%F
6H30E LFfE

Number of stores at the beginning of the period Hi#FI/E & &
Number of new stores opened during the period 253 % HIHTFIE & E
Number of closed stores during the period™” Ei N B3R HIPI R ELE "
Net increase in number of stores during the period £ P95 & E R F 141
Number of stores at the end of the period HiFFI[E &£

Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model Z&I& & APIE
Number of stores at the beginning of the period H1#]FI/E & &
Number of new stores opened during the period i/ 5 %K) FI 5 & E
Number of closed stores during the period™” B B3R HIPI R ELE "
Net increase in number of stores during the period £ P95 & & H);F 1240
Number of stores at the end of the period EiFFI[E &£

Stores operated under distributor model X325 /5
Number of stores at the beginning of the period H1#]F9/E & &
Number of new stores opened during the period 15 %K) IE & E
Number of closed stores during the period™ Ei N B3R HIPI R ELE "
Net increase in number of stores during the period £ P95 & & H);F 1241
Number of stores at the end of the period HiFkFI[E &£

133 176
76 87

33 25

43 62
176 238
208 252
69 55

25 24

44 31
252 283
1,632 1,759
314 247
187 40
127 207
1,759 1,966

Note:

(1) The closure of MINISO stores was due to various reasons, such
as expiration of store leases, increases in store rental, changes
in the layout of shopping malls where the stores were located,
unprofitableness of certain stores, and closure by MINISO Retail
Partners or distributors for other considerations, as applicable.
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

In the majority of overseas markets, we expand our store network R GINTS - BMBBREABEEEZHWER
by collaborating with local distributors with abundant local MEELRHEMRIEFEIE - BAKRMOMEH
resources and retail experiences. The following table shows the i o TRIRARFIREAERMESINTISZHRIER
number of our distributors in overseas markets for the periods HE

indicated:

For the year ended  For the six months ended

June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023

BZ2023% BZz20235

6 A30H L E 128318~ EA

Number of distributors at the beginning of the period” Ei#]XIZpFEE® 200 229
Number of new distributors during the period® HBR#iZ M RIZRHEE@ 42

Number of terminated distributors during the period® Ei 42 |FEHIRIBRG 21 2@ 13 7

Net increase in number of distributors during the period Hi /A 32 i & & # FHE 1 29 1

Number of distributors at the end of the period® HiK R IEFEED 229 230

Notes: BisE

(1) Number of distributors at a given date is calculated based on (1) AETHHOREREE DRETEZBHERMT
the number of individuals and entities with effective contractual EEMAERBROBEANMELEHETE -
relationships with us at that date.

(2)  Change of contracting entities by the same distributor is not taken (2 HEEEMSIKRIINREFHER  TERAR—
into account in the calculation of numbers of new or terminated REFSEESRBEMNEN -
distributors.

As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023, we had 61 and 78 #HZE2023F6 A30H &2023F12 A31H » i
MINISO Retail Partners in overseas markets, respectively. The EINTIB D RIEA 1L L T8IEZEIE A - ZAlS
increase in the number of MINISO Retail Partners for the six months BAHENEHZE2023F12 A31 HIENEABATE
ended December 31, 2023 was primarily due to the increase in the i FEEHRHERBEMNZE S AEEIL -
number of MINISO Retail Partners in Indonesia and Vietnam.
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

Other Key Operating Data HitnBgREL HIE
The following tables set forth certain of our key operating data of TERIHNEMDRIAHEREINT S EEER
MINISO stores in China and overseas market, respectively: JERE TRERE 285 -

For the year ended For the six months ended
June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023

HZE20234F HZE2023F

6 A30H IEFE 12 A31HIEAEA

(RMB in millions)
(NREBET)

MINISO stores in China TEIM ZAIE @ FE

Total GMV® BGMV ™ 10,671 6,895
Average revenue per MINISO store for the year/period @

BRERBMPUETEER,/ BHRKAR 2.1 1.2
Number of transactions (in millions) X 3£ = (H5) 283.8 183.2
Sales volume of SKUs (in millions) SKU$4E (B &) 814.5 484.4
Average spending per transaction (RMB) ‘FHEEE (AREETT) 37.6 37.6
Average selling price (RMB) FHI&E (AR T) 13.1 14.2

Notes: BisE -

(1) Includes GMV generated through MINISO offline stores and 020 (1) BEABZAEMETMERO20FAELEN

platforms. GMV -

(2)  Average revenue per MINISO store for the year/period is calculated 2 BREAERPEFEERN,HHRKATIE@)EE
as (a) revenue of MINISO brand in China divided by (b) the average 1B i K2 5 P B A9 U A B BA (b) 7E 7B B BA RS HR 90 2 A
number of MINISO stores in China at the beginning and the end of REBIBRAFENTFHPIESETERSL -

the relevant period.
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MINISO stores in overseas markets @5 iE N ZEIEBRFE
Total GMV &GMV

Asian countries excluding China Z5EIZR (1 B4 )
Americas ZEM

Europe BUM

Others £t

Average revenue per MINISO store for the year/period™

K& BIBMPIETFEFEAR, BREA®

Asian countries excluding China Z5;1EIZR (R BB S1)
Americas S

Europe B

Others H A

Business Review and Outlook

For the year ended
June 30, 2023

#H 220234

6 A30H ILFE

(RMB in millions)
(NR¥EBET)

9,072
3,664
4,204
650
554

1.8
1.6
3.0
0.8
0.6

EFEEKRREE

For the six months ended
December 31, 2023
HZ2023F

128318 L8 A

6,452
2,323
3,235
575
319

1.2
0.9
2.1
0.7
0.4

Note:

M

Average revenue per MINISO store for the year/period is calculated
as (a) revenue of MINISO brand in overseas markets divided by (b)
the average number of MINISO stores in overseas markets at the
beginning and the end of the relevant period.

fia -

(1)
B
H

REAIEMPVEFIEFEA, AW ATIIZ ()& 8
B R SN 5 VU R LA (b) A B8 2R R 2R ) K2
REBBRNBITIENTHPIEHREHESH -
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

The following table sets forth the GMV of MINISO brand in China
through online channels for the periods indicated:

MINISO brand in China FEI#) & &IE R R
Total GMV through online channels® i iR 4% _F 2R B &S HIAEGMVO)

6 A30H IEFE

(RMB in millions)
(AREBET)

TERIFNTREBZEIERREEFBRBBES -
RIEEFHGMV:

For the year ended For the six months ended
June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023

HZE20234F HZE2023F
12831 B1EA@EA

670 321

Note:

(1)  Excludes GMV through O20 platforms, which is counted as GMV
through offline channels.

Our TOP TOY brand started its operation in December 2020
in China. For the six months ended December 31, 2023, TOP
TOY brand achieved a total GMV of RMB539.5 million through
multi-channels. The following table sets forth certain of our key
operating data of TOP TOY stores:

TOP TOY stores TOP TOYFi/&

Total GMV #GMV

Average revenue per TOP TOY store for the year/period®
FXRTOP TOYPIEFHEFER, HIRKAD

Number of transactions (in millions) X 5 £ 8 (G &)

Sales volume of SKUs (in millions) SKUSHE (B &)

Average spending per transaction (RMB) FH5EE & (AR TT)
Average selling price (RMB) 9 E (AR D)

it

(1) TEEERBO20FAEELEMNGMV - EFT BB
TEREEARGMV -

HFIEITOP TOY R EEF 20204512 AR B4 1E
o B Z2023F12 831 BIE/NAS - TOP TOY &
BB Z R EBEREGMVARKESE39.58ETT -
KEFITOP TOYPYEHE T RAHIE 2 UL -

For the year ended For the six months ended
June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023
#HZE20234F HZE2023F
12831 H1EAREA

6 A30E [FFE

(RMB in millions)
(ANRE¥BET)

606 445
5.0 2.8
4.9 3.8
9.5 7.1

123.7 118.7
63.9 62.5

Note:

(1) Average revenue per TOP TOY store for the year/period is calculated

as (a) revenue of TOP TOY brand divided by (b) the average number

of TOP TOY stores at the beginning and the end of the relevant
period.
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The following table sets forth the average number of stores
operated by MINISO Retail Partners and distributors as of the dates
indicated:

Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

TRENEBEMRAHAREERARRIEFLEM
JEHFIOHE -

As of June 30, 2023 As of December 31, 2023
H £20234F
12A31H

HZE20234F
6 A30H

MINISO Retail Partners Z8I&¥ A

Average number of stores operated &4 P95 FHEE O
Distributors X I

Average number of stores operated® &4 P95 L2

3.6 3.5

8.0 8.2

Notes:

(1) Average number of stores operated by MINISO Retail Partners is
calculated as (a) the average number of stores operated under the
MINISO Retail Partner model at the beginning and the end of the
relevant period divided by (b) the average number of MINISO Retail
Partners at the beginning and the end of the relevant period.

(2)  Average number of stores operated by distributors is calculated as (a)
the average number of stores operated under the distributor model
at the beginning and the end of the relevant period divided by (b) the
average number of distributors at the beginning and the end of the
relevant period.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Operational Update

According to the Company’s preliminary estimates, its major
operations achieved the following updates:

January and February 2024: For the two months ended February
29, 2024, GMV of MINISO'’s offline stores in China increased by
around 13% year over year, GMV of MINISO’s overseas business
increased by around 40% year over year.

B

(1) BEEBAKEPIUENTHHER()AE HHARET
RHARZBIA R APIEN T 9825 A (b) B B M
HOLHRBAEBANTFHHESE -

@ REHEEFIENTHEER @) BHMATRHA
RAIBFIE B9 9 802 B LA () A B8 B B Y] R R R
REFHTFOREFTH -

BREHRIOARE
EHER

BARBMHEE - REEXEBIEA TER

2024F1AR2A  #E2024F2A29H IFM &
B REERHPEETMAENGMVELEREY
13% ° [EIEREINEKEHGMVIE LLIE R 4140% ©
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

Highlights of MINISO Investor Day

On January 18, 2024, the Company hosted the MINISO 2024
Investor Day to enhance communications and share development
strategy of the Company for the next five years with the investors.
The Company brought up its vision of steering itself to become the
world’s No.1 IP design retail group with an emphasis on production
innovation (IP design), affordability and globalization.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In spite of the uncertainties brought by the macro environment,
looking forward to 2024, we will remain focused on our long-term
strategic goals: delivering on our globalization strategy, bolstering
the strength of our product offerings and optimizing our store
network. Going forward, we expect to further grow our business by
pursuing the following strategies.

Engaged in global competition, we will take cost advantages
and product differentiation as key points. While sticking to our
value-for-money proposition, we will continue to produce high-
quality products featuring IP design to make lifestyle products more
fashionable and trendy.

At the same time, we will actively implement the “Super Store”
strategy to build a strong brand image in consumers’ minds. We
are also targeting “Big Beauty”, “Big Toys” and “Big IPs” as super
categories, and further exploring the room for improving average

GMV per store.

In China, we will expand and upgrade our store network by
capitalizing on the opportunities in lower-tier cities and taking on
more new MINISO Retail Partners to further penetrate into the cities
that we have already covered.

For overseas markets, we will further expand our store network
by adopting a flexible operating model for each market, and will
continue to expand our presence in strategic markets such as
North America, Asia and Europe.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

For the six months ended

For the year December 31
ended June 30, HZE12H31H
2023 EREA
B, 2 2023F 2022 2023
6 A30HIEFE 20224 20234
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(f&2&=T) (REEEET) (R&&E=H)
(RMB in thousands)
(ARETT)

Revenue YA 11,473,208 5,266,878 7,632,467
Cost of sales $HEM A (7,030,156) (3,281,218) (4,391,428)
Gross profit £F 4,443,052 1,985,660 3,241,039
Other income E A4 A 17,935 14,311 18,993
Selling and distribution expenses % & 7 #4552 (1,716,093) (798,127) (1,363,114)
General and administrative expenses —#& M 7T F = (633,613) (313,908) (357,689)
Other net income EAtFHUA 114,106 72,850 21,105
Reversal of credit loss/(credit loss) on trade and other receivables
B REMEKRFEEEEERR(EEER) 1,072 3,716) (2,080)
Impairment loss on non-current assets 3F7 8 & & B (B 518 (3,448) - (4,547)
Operating profit A8 X/;E 2,223,011 957,070 1,553,707
Finance income 817545 A 145,225 64,684 123,969
Finance costs B/ A 7R (34,622) (16,345) (25,202)
Net finance income B 75U A58 110,603 48,339 98,767
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax
AR E AR EIRE A R E - B35 - - 268
Profit before taxation %t 51 %l E 2,333,614 1,005,409 1,652,742
Income tax expense FT1S%:i 5 &2 (5651,785) (241,498) (396,665)
Profit for the year/period & Hi A K8 1,781,829 763,911 1,256,077

Profit for the year/period attributable to:

UTALEESE HRFIHE :
— Equity shareholders of the Company — 22 RI#EZE AL 1,768,926 764,090 1,248,405
- Non-controlling interests — FE¥ZAE#E %5 12,903 (179) 7,672
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

SIX MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,
2023

Revenue

Our total revenue was RMB7,632.5 million for the six months
ended December 31, 2023 (for the year ended June 30, 2023:
RMB11,473.2 million), which was consisted of 63.5% revenue
generated in China and 36.5% revenue generated in overseas
markets.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales was RMB4,391.4 million for the six months ended
December 31, 2023 (for the year ended June 30, 2023: RMB7,030.2
million).

Gross Profit and Gross Margin

Our gross profit was RMB3,241.0 million for the six months ended
December 31, 2023 (for the year ended June 30, 2023: RMB4,443.1
million), and gross margin was 42.5% for the six months ended
December 31, 2023 (for the year ended June 30, 2023: 38.7%). The
increase in gross margin was mainly attributable to (i) higher gross
margin in overseas markets contributed by product optimization
and higher revenue contribution from directly operated markets,
(ii) higher gross margin in China contributed by newly launched
products in relation to our execution of strategic brand upgrade of
MINISO, and the cost-saving measures the Company adopted to
reduce the costs of certain products, and (iii) higher gross margin
of TOP TOY due to a shift in product mix towards more profitable
products.

Other Income

Our other income was RMB19.0 million for the six months ended
December 31, 2023 (for the year ended June 30, 2023: RMB17.9
million), which was mainly attributable to government grants and
income from depositary bank.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses were RMB1,363.1 million
for the six months ended December 31, 2023 (for the year ended
June 30, 2023: RMB1,716.1 million). Excluding share-based
compensation expenses, our selling and distribution expenses
were RMB1,321.6 million (for the year ended June 30, 2023:
RMB1,671.3 million), which was primarily due to the increase in (i)
personnel-related expenses, logistics expenses and IP licensing
expenses in relation to the growth of the Company’s business,
(ii) depreciation expenses of the right-of-use assets in relation
to directly operated stores, and (iii) promotion and advertising
expenses, mainly in connection with the Company’s brand upgrade
and the opening of new stores in overseas markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses were RMB357.7 million for
the six months ended December 31, 2023 (for the year ended June
30, 2023: RMB633.6 million). Excluding equity-settled share-based
payment expenses, our general and administrative expenses were
RMB352.8 million (for the year ended June 30, 2023: RMB615.6
million), which were primarily accounted for (i) personnel-related
expenses in relation to the growth of our business, (ii) expenses in
relation to operational services provided by the third-parties, and (iii)
depreciation and amortization expenses.

Other Net Income

Our other net income was RMB21.1 million for the six months
ended December 31, 2023 (for the year ended June 30, 2023:
RMB114.1 million), which was primarily accounted for (i) the
increase in fair value of an investment in an unlisted limited
partnership enterprise, and (ii) investment income from other
investments, partially offset by net foreign exchange loss.

Impairment Loss on Non-current Assets

Our impairment loss on non-current assets was RMB4.5 million
and RMB3.4 million for the six months ended December 31, 2023
and for the year ended June 30, 2023, respectively. We recorded
impairment loss on non-current assets of directly operated stores.

Operating Profit

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded operating profit of
RMB1,553.7 million for the six months ended December 31, 2023
(for the year ended June 30, 2023: RMB2,223.0 million).

Net Finance Income

Our net finance income was RMB98.8 million for the six months
ended December 31, 2023 (for the year ended June 30, 2023:
RMB110.6 million), which was accounted for the interest income
from bank deposits.

EEREWED T

— R RITHAX

HZE2023F12 A31HIEAEA - T — AR AT
BAZAARE357.78E T (202346 A30H
IEFE: ARMG633.6BEL) - BRENEREER
BHZHOEST RPN —RETEAZABARE
352.8 BT (HE2023F6 A30HIFFE : ARKE
615.6EAE7T) TEA)EARNFTEBEEEBD
AEBERY - (VEE=FRENEEREERN
AX o Ri)TEREHERAY -

H g A
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MBREZEENAABERIEN - R(i)EMIEE
FriSHIR &R « Bh0 40FIE H BB FTHEY -

FRBEEREER

HZE2023F12 A31 HIEANEA KEE2023F6 A
0HIEFE - HMAERBEERERED R AA
REASHEETLMARKIAFE T - RAYESE
RISEMBIEERHR T RERSIE -

KR

AR EMRE - #ZE2023F12 A31HIENEA -
BB LFEAARK1,553.7TEET (BE
20236 H30H IFFE - AR¥2,223.08&7T) °

B REUR A FER
#HZ=2023F12 A31HIEAEA - AT BUA
FEEAARKIS.8HE L (B £2023F6 308 I1E
FE: AR¥B1106EET) TERARTERE
ERFILBHA o

20235 HE « BAER



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

Income Tax Expense

We recorded income tax expense of RMB396.7 million for the six
months ended December 31, 2023 (for the year ended June 30,
2023: RMB551.8 million).

Profit for the Year/Period

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded a profit for the period of
RMB1,256.1 million for the six months ended December 31, 2023
(for the year ended June 30, 2023: RMB1,781.8 million).

Current Ratio

Our current ratio was 2.3 as of December 31, 2023, compared to 2.5
as of June 30, 2023. The change in current ratio was primarily due
to the increase in trade and other payables and lease liabilities.

SIX MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2023 COMPARED TO SIX MONTHS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Revenue

Our total revenue increased by 44.9% from RMB5,266.9 million for
the six months ended December 31, 2022 to RMB7,632.5 million
for the six months ended December 31, 2023, mainly attributable to
(i) an increase of 46.3% in revenue from overseas markets, and (ii)
an increase of 44.1% in revenue from China.

Revenue generated from our operations in China was RMB4,843.1
million for the six months ended December 31, 2023, increasing
by 44.1% from RMB3,360.2 million for the six months ended
December 31, 2022. The year-over-year increase in revenue from
the China market was primarily due to () a year-over-year increase
of approximately 44.6% in revenue from MINISO in China, and (i)
a year-over-year increase of approximately 65.8% in revenue from
TOP TQY in China. Revenue generated from overseas markets was
RMB2,789.3 million for the six months ended December 31, 2023,
increasing by 46.3% from RMB1,906.7 million for the six months
ended December 31, 2022.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales was RMB4,391.4 million for the six months ended
December 31, 2023, increased by 33.8% compared to cost of sales
of RMB3,281.2 million for the six months ended December 31,
2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Margin

Gross profit increased by 63.2% from RMB1,985.7 million for
the six months ended December 31, 2022 to RMB3,241.0 million
for the six months ended December 31, 2023, and gross margin
increased from 37.7% to 42.5% for the same periods. The increase
in gross margin was mainly driven by (i) higher gross margin in
overseas markets contributed by product optimization and higher
revenue contribution from directly operated markets, (ii) higher
gross margin in China contributed by newly launched products in
relation to our execution of strategic brand upgrade of MINISO,
and the cost-saving measures the Company adopted to reduce the
costs of certain products, and (iii) higher gross margin of TOP TOY
due to a shift in product mix towards more profitable products.

Other Income

Our other income increased by 32.7% from RMB14.3 million for the
six months ended December 31, 2022 to RMB19.0 million for the
six months ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to an increase
in income from depositary bank.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by 70.8% from
RMB798.1 million for the six months ended December 31, 2022
to RMB1,363.1 million for the six months ended December 31,
2023. Excluding equity-settled share-based payment expenses,
our selling and distribution expenses increased by 69.1% from
RMB781.5 million to RMB1,321.6 million for the same periods. The
increase was primarily attributable to (i) increased personnel-related
expenses, logistics expenses and IP licensing expenses in relation
to the growth of the Company’s business, (i) increased depreciation
expenses of the right-of-use assets in relation to directly operated
stores, and (iii) increased promotion and advertising expenses,
mainly in connection with the Company’s brand upgrade and the
opening of new stores in overseas markets.

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses increased by 13.9%
from RMB313.9 million for the six months ended December 31,
2022 to RMB357.7 million for the six months ended December 31,
2023. Excluding equity-settled share-based payment expenses,
our general and administrative expenses increased by 16.1% from
RMB304.0 million to RMB352.8 million for the same periods, which
was primarily due to increased personnel-related expenses in
relation to the growth of our business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

Other Net Income

Our other net income was RMB21.1 million for the six months
ended December 31, 2023, compared to other net income of
RMB72.9 million for the six months ended December 31, 2022. The
decrease was mainly due to net foreign exchange loss, partially
offset by net change in fair value of other investments.

Impairment Loss on Non-current Assets

For the six months ended December 31, 2022, we did not record
any impairment loss on non-current assets. For the six months
ended December 31, 2023, we recorded impairment loss on
non-current assets of RMB4.5 million, which was related to our
directly operated stores.

Operating Profit

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded operating profit of
RMB1,553.7 million for the six months ended December 31, 2023,
representing an increase of 62.3% from RMB957.1 million for the
six months ended December 31, 2022.

Net Finance Income

Our net finance income increased by 104.3% from RMB48.3 million
for the six months ended December 31, 2022 to RMB98.8 million
for the six months ended December 31, 2023, mainly due to an
increase in interest income as a result of increased principal in bank
deposits.

Income Tax Expense

We recorded income tax expense of RMB396.7 million for the six
months ended December 31, 2023, compared to RMB241.5 million
for the six months ended December 31, 2022.

Profit for the Period

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the period increased by
64.4% from RMB763.9 million for the six months ended December
31, 2022 to RMB1,256.1 million for the six months ended December
31, 2023.

Current Ratio

Our current ratio was 2.3 as of December 31, 2023, compared to 2.4
as of December 31, 2022. The change in current ratio was primarily
due to an increase in trade and other payables and lease liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OTHER INFORMATION ABOUT OUR
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Liquidity and Source of Funding

During the six months ended December 31, 2023, we funded our
cash requirements principally through cash generated from our
operations. As of December 31, 2023, our cash, cash equivalents,
restricted cash, term deposits, and other investments recorded
in current assets were RMB6,887.0 million (as of June 30, 2023:
RMB7,303.3 million).

Significant Investments

We did not make or hold any significant investments during the six
months ended December 31, 2023.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

We did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, consolidated affiliated entities or associated
companies during the six months ended December 31, 2023.

Pledge of Assets

As of December 31, 2023, none of our Group’s assets was pledged.

Cash Management Policy

We believe we can make better use of our cash by making
appropriate investments in short-term investment products, which
generate income without interfering with our business operation
or capital expenditures. Our investment decisions with respect to
financial products are made on a case-by-case basis and after due
and careful consideration of a number of factors, including, but not
limited to, the market conditions, the economic developments, the
anticipated investment conditions, the investment cost, the duration
of the investment and the expected benefit and potential loss of the
investment. We have established a set of internal control measures
which allow us to achieve reasonable returns on our investment
while mitigating our exposure to high investment risks. These
policies and measures were formulated by our senior management.

EEREWED T

FEARMMBRENEMBESR

REMEURE SRR

REZE2023F12 A31HIEANEA - HPIEEEB
KBTS M E RIS HK - 12023412
A318  HFstARBEENSES BaZSED -
XRHEE  THERREMEENEGTESRAA
R#6,887.0 587t (1X2023F6 A30H : AR

e —

7,303.3H&ETT) °

BEARE
REZE2023F12 A31 HIENEA - HFLEEL
BB TAEARE -

BERKEREE

REZE2023F 12 A31 H /N E A - F I EAE{A]
BERNBHEENBRAR AHBHBERRBER
Ej °

EEKF
HZE2023F12A31H » AEBEWEEREE -

REBEEBER

HRMEE  BEHERREEMETEENRE
B AR M B EFINR S - ETZERFIN
EBEBEREARAINBER TELWA - BfIHE
BMERNRERTERAERDER - WEBENF
AMEBSERRRIEL - BRETRRTISES
ROBERE  BEREGN REKAE - REHRINA
REBRENFARKREMEERER - HMEEELT —
ERBEFIERE  ERMAEHESSIENRED
- RERERMEENRRERR  ZFHRRM
Bt R RPINERERBHED -

20235 HE « BAER



Management Discussion and Analysis
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In order to make full use of idle funds, improve the utilization rate of
surplus funds, and increase our income, under the premise of not
affecting our normal business activities, subject to approval from
our chief financial officer, we may purchase a certain amount of
wealth management products from financial institutions. According
to our internal policies, the manager of our treasury department
should make proposals to invest in wealth management products
to our chief financial officer and such proposals must be reviewed
and approved by our chief financial officer. In assessing a proposal
to invest in wealth management products, a number of criteria must
be met, including but not limited to the following:

° the purchase of wealth management products is limited to
low-risk products such as term deposits, principal-guaranteed
and interest-paying products, treasury notes issued by banks,
and wealth management products with risk level below R2.
The purchase of high-risk financial instruments such as
securities and futures is strictly prohibited.

° the expected return of the purchased wealth management
products should be not lower than bank’s deposit interest rate
for term deposits of the same period, the product structure
should be relatively simple, and the purchases should be
made from financial institutions with large operation scale,
overall strength and good credit standing.

° the treasury department is responsible for setting up a
detailed ledger for wealth management products, the manager
of the treasury department manages the financial products
and tracks the progress and safety of wealth management
products. In the event of an abnormal situation, the manager
of the treasury department should report the situation to the
chief financial officer in a timely manner so that we can take
effective measures immediately to reduce potential losses.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2023, we did not have any detailed future plans
for material investments or capital assets.

Gearing Ratio

As of December 31, 2023, our gearing ratio was 0.1%, calculated
as loans and borrowings divided by total equity as of the end of the
period and multiplied by 100%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Risk

Our financial reporting currency is RMB and changes in foreign
exchange rates can significantly affect our reported results and
consolidated trends. In addition, our results of operations, including
profit margins, are affected by the fluctuation in foreign exchange
rates. Our international operations generate revenues primarily in
U.S. dollars. Generally, a weakening of RMB against U.S. dollar has
a positive effect on our results of operations, while a strengthening
of RMB against U.S. dollar has the opposite effect. We have not
used any derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to such
risk. To the extent that we need to convert U.S. dollars into RMB for
our operations, appreciation of RMB against U.S. dollar would have
an adverse effect on RMB amount we receive from the conversion.
Conversely, if we decide to convert RMB into U.S. dollars for the
purpose of making payments for dividends on our Shares or ADSs
or for other business purposes, appreciation of U.S. dollar against
RMB would have a negative effect on U.S. dollar amounts available
to us.

Contingent Liabilities

Commitment of tax payments

In connection with the acquisition of land use right and the
construction of the headquarters building in Guangzhou, Miniso
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“MINISO Guangzhou”) entered into a
letter of intent on November 26, 2020 with the local government
of the district where our new headquarters building is located and
committed to pay an aggregate amount of tax levies of no less
than RMB965.0 million to the local government in Guangzhou for
a five-year period starting from January 1, 2021, with RMB160.0
million in 2021, RMB175.0 million in 2022, RMB190.0 million in
2023, RMB210.0 million in 2024 and RMB230.0 million in 2025. If
we fail to meet the committed amount for any of the five calendar
years, MINISO Guangzhou will have to compensate for the shortfall.

We had met the commitments for the calendar years of 2021 and
2022 and therefore MINISO Guangzhou was not required to make
any compensation to the local government. In March 2023, MINISO
Guangzhou provided a performance guarantee of RMB190.0 million
issued by a commercial bank to this local government in respect
of the commitment of tax payments for the calendar year of 2023,
which is valid from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024. The Directors
have assessed that, based on the projection of and actual relevant
taxes and surcharges paid and payable during the calendar year
of 2023, we have met the commitment for the calendar year of
2023 and thus it is not probable that MINISO Guangzhou needs to
make any compensation to the local government under the above
performance guarantee. As such, no provision has been made in
respect of this matter as of December 31, 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Lawsuit relating to illicit competition

During the year ended June 30, 2022, Shenzhen Purcotton
Technology Co., Ltd. initiated a legal proceeding against certain
PRC subsidiaries of the Group, one of the Group’s suppliers and a
store operated by one of the Group’s franchisees relating to an illicit
competition dispute. The total amount claimed against the PRC
subsidiaries was approximately RMB30.0 million.

As of December 31, 2023, the final judgment has been made by
the court that the first instance judgment should be upheld, and the
application of appeal filed by the Group has been dismissed. We
paid RMB30.0 million to the plaintiff during the six months ended
December 31, 2023.

Securities class action

In August 2022, a putative federal securities class action was filed
against the Company and certain of its officers and Directors,
alleging that the Company made misleading misstatements or
omissions regarding its business operations and financials in
violation of the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. The action is captioned /In re MINISO Group Holding
Limited Securities Litigation, 1:22-cv-09864 (S.D.N.Y.). Lead
plaintiff was appointed in November 2022 and filed the operative
complaint to the court. We and other defendants filed a motion to
dismiss the complaint, and the motion was granted by the court in
February 2024, with leave to amend. Plaintiffs have filed a motion
for reconsideration of the court’s decision and intended to file a
further amended complaint. As of December 31, 2023, the Directors
are unable to assess the outcome of the action or reliably estimate
the potential losses, if any.

Capital Commitment

As of December 31, 2023, our capital commitment was RMB837.2
million, which was attributable to the construction of the
headquarters building.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Employees and Remuneration Policy EE R FHMEER

We had a total of 4,964 full-time employees as of December 31, B E2023F12 A31H - HMLH4,964 L2 E
2023, including 2,375 in China and 2,589 in certain overseas 8+ Hh2,375 8 A B 22,5894 il ;A F LL 5 A
countries. The following table sets forth the number of our B - TREFHEHZE2023E12 A31 BIRB2H

employees categorized by function as of December 31, 2023: HIEFIEE AR
Function Number of Employees
B RE EEAH
Product Development and Supply Chain Management & & 53 % B2 {H fe 8 & 18 938
General and Administrative —#% &2 1T 487
Operations &% 2,948
Sales and Marketing 5% & & $4 137
Technology i 202
Business Development 2753 & 148
Logistics #i 104
Total &5 4,964

Our total remuneration cost incurred for the six months ended HZE2023F12 A31HIENEA - HMIEANEH
December 31, 2023 was RMB580.8 million, while it was RMB819.6 Bk A A AR 580.8 B BT © AL Z=20234F6 A30
million for the year ended June 30, 2023. HIEFEARARK819.6E8ET °

The number of employees employed by the Company varies from AAFEANEBEASRTEEM REMEE
time to time depending on needs and employees are remunerated MEBHMIMBIETEENET - AEE TR
based on industry practice. The remuneration policy and package HEBMNFMBEERFE - REEZE RAEHEIIE
of the Group’s employees are periodically reviewed. Apart from 5N - TR BE R BEEARBROTER TEEWE
pension funds and in-house training programmes, discretionary TEAT ~ Batn 8RB R AN A RIR (0 i B E T 8P RO BB AR A -
bonuses, share awards and share options from the Company’s

share incentive plan may be awarded to employees according to

the assessment of individual performance.
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Directors’ Report
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On January 17, 2024, the Board announced that the financial
year end date of our Company has been changed from June 30
to December 31 with immediate effect. Accordingly, the Board
is pleased to present this Directors’ report together with the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended December 31, 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period and up
to the date of this report are:

Executive Director
Mr. YE Guofu (2B &) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. XU Lili (1#22%%)

Mr. ZHU Yonghua (5<% %)

Mr. WANG Yongping (E k)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 46 to 51 of
this annual report.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on January
7, 2020, as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company completed
its initial public offering on the NYSE on October 15, 2020 and the
Company’s ADSs have been listed on the NYSE since then. The
Company’s shares were subsequently listed on the Main Board of
the HKEX on July 13, 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal businesses of the Company’s subsidiaries are the
retail and wholesale of design-led lifestyle and pop toy products
across the PRC, other parts of Asia, America, Europe and certain
other countries. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group
and segment results based on geographical locations during
the Reporting Period are set out in Note 1 and Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group, as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the Company’s
business, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company, particulars of important events affecting the
Company that have occurred since the end of the Reporting Period,
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
an analysis of the Group’s financial performance and the Group’s
key relationships with its stakeholders who have a significant
impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success depends,
is set out in the sections headed “Business Review and Outlook”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 31 of
this annual report. These discussions form part of this Directors’
report. Events affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the Reporting Period is set out in “Recent developments
after the Reporting Period” in the section headed “Business Review
and Outlook”.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our business involves certain risks as set out in the section
headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus and the Form 20-F for the
Reporting Period filed with the SEC. The following list is a summary
of certain principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, some
of which are beyond its control.

Risks related to our business and industry

Risks and uncertainties related to our business and industry
include, but are not limited to, the following:

° Our success depends upon the continued strength of our
brands. If we are unable to maintain and enhance our brands,
our business and operating results may be adversely affected;

° The growth and profitability of our business depend on the
level of consumer demand and discretionary spending. A
severe or prolonged economic downturn in China or around
the world could materially and adversely affect consumer
discretionary spending and therefore adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations;

° Our success is dependent on the continued popularity of our
products, our continued innovation and successful launches
of new products, and our anticipation of and timely responses
to changes in consumer preferences;
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If we are unable to offer our products at prices that are highly
appealing to consumers or maintain competitive prices, our
business and results of operations would be materially and
adversely affected;

If we fail to offer high-quality products to consumers, our
business, reputation, results of operations and financial
condition will be materially and adversely affected;

Expanding product offerings may expose us to new
challenges and more risks;

If we are unable to attract purchases from new and existing
consumers, our business, financial condition and results of
operations may be materially and adversely affected;

We primarily rely on our MINISO Retail Partners and
distributors to expand our store network. If we are unable to
expand our store network successfully, our business, results
of operations would be adversely affected;

If we, our MINISO Retail Partners or local distributors fail to
successfully operate MINISO stores, our business and results
of operations would be adversely affected;

Our international operations are subject to a variety of costs
and legal, regulatory, political and economic risks;

If our MINISO Retail Partners or local distributors do not
satisfactorily fulfill their responsibilities and commitments,
our brand image, results of operations could be materially
harmed;

If we fail to maintain the relationship with our MINISO Retail
Partners or our local distributors or fail to attract new MINISO
Retail Partners or local distributors to join our store network,
our business, results of operations and financial condition
could be materially and adversely affected; and

lllegal actions or misconduct of our MINISO Retail Partners,
local distributors, sub-contractors or sub-distributors, third-
party suppliers or other service providers, or any failure by
them to provide satisfactory products or services could
materially and adversely affect our business, reputation,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Risks related to doing business in China

A substantial portion of our business operations are conducted in
China and we face various risks and uncertainties related to doing
business in China, in particular, risks arising from the legal system
in mainland China, including risks and uncertainties regarding the
enforcement of laws and that rules and regulations in mainland
China can change quickly with little advance notice, and the risk
that the Chinese government may intervene or influence your
operations at any time, or may exert more control over offerings
conducted overseas and/or foreign investment in China-based
issuers, which could result in a material change in your operations
and/or the value of your securities. Risks and uncertainties related
to doing business in China include, but are not limited to, the
following:

° The PCAOB had historically been unable to inspect our
auditor in relation to their audit work performed for our
financial statements and the inability of the PCAOB to
conduct inspections of our auditor in the past has deprived
our investors of the benefits of such inspections;

° The ADSs may be prohibited from trading in the United
States under the HFCAA in the future if the PCAOB is unable
to inspect or investigate completely auditors located in
China. The delisting of the ADSs, or the threat of their being
delisted, may materially and adversely affect the value of your
investment;

° The PRC government has significant authority in regulating
our operations and may influence our operations. It may exert
more oversight and control over offerings conducted overseas
by, and/or foreign investment in, China-based issuers, which
could significantly limit or completely hinder our ability to offer
or continue to offer securities to investors and may cause
the value of our ordinary shares or the ADSs to significantly
decline or be worthless;

° Changes in China’s or global economic, political or social
conditions or government policies could have a material and
adverse effect on our business and results of operations;
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Uncertainties with respect to the legal system in mainland
China could adversely affect us. Certain laws and regulations
in mainland China can evolve quickly, which bring risks
and uncertainties to their interpretation and enforcement.
Administrative and court proceedings in mainland China may
be protracted. Some government policies and internal rules
may not be published on a timely manner. These risks and
uncertainties may make it difficult for us to meet or comply
with requirements under the applicable laws and regulations;

Litigation and negative publicity surrounding China-based
companies listed in the U.S. may result in increased regulatory
scrutiny of us and negatively impact the trading price of
the ADSs and could have a material adverse effect upon
our business, including our results of operations, financial
condition, cash flows and prospects; and

MINISO Group Holding Limited is a holding company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and we may rely on
dividends and other distributions on equity paid by our
mainland China subsidiaries to fund any cash and financing
requirements we may have, and any limitation on the ability
of our mainland China subsidiaries or Hong Kong subsidiaries
to make payments to us could have a material and adverse
effect on our ability to conduct our business.
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Risks related to the ADSs and our Shares

Risks and uncertainties related to the ADSs and our Shares include,
but are not limited to, the following:

o The trading price of the ADSs and our Shares has been
volatile, which could result in substantial losses to investors;

° The concentration of our share ownership among executive
officers, Directors, and principal Shareholders and their
affiliated entities will likely limit investors’ ability to influence
corporate matters and could discourage others from pursuing
any change of control transaction that holders of our Shares
and the ADSs may view as beneficial; and

° Techniques employed by short sellers may drive down the
market price of our Shares or the ADSs.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

We are committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment,
giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth. Details
of such will be set out in our ESG Report published on the same
date as this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as may be disclosed in the ESG Report, we have complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group during the Reporting Period.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in this annual
report, no related party transaction disclosed in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for which disclosure is required.
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PARTIALLY EXEMPT CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement

Reference is made to the results announcement of the Company
dated September 15, 2023 and March 12, 2024 respectively in
relation to the continuing connected transactions of the Company
and the announcement in relation to the change of financial year
end date of the Company dated January 17, 2024. On June 27,
2022, Miniso Hong Kong Limited (“MINISO HK”), for itself and on
behalf of other members of the Group, entered into a framework
agreement (the “IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework
Agreement”) with MINISO Lifestyle Nigeria Limited (“MINISO
Nigeria”), pursuant to which MINISO HK grants to MINISO Nigeria
(i) exclusive licenses for the use of certain intellectual property
rights in Nigeria owned by MINISO HK, including but not limited to
trademarks, particular package and decoration, patents, technical
know-how and operation standard (the “Licensed IP Rights”)
that are owned by us charged by a one-off license fee based on
the term of the licensing arrangement; and (ii) an exclusive right to
establish MINISO stores in Nigeria as a distributor of the Group,
with effect from July 13, 2022.

MINISO Nigeria will use the Licensed IP Rights within the scope
specified in the IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework
Agreement. In addition, under the agreement, MINISO HK will sell
and distribute to MINISO Nigeria the products under the brand of
MINISO, including products which comprise intellectual property
licensed by external IP licensors collaborating with the brand of
MINISO.

On March 12, 2024, in order to align with the new financial year end
date of the Company, MINISO Development Hong Kong Limited,
for itself and on behalf of other members of the Group, entered into
a revised framework agreement (the “Revised IP Licensing, Sales
and Distribution Framework Agreement”) with MINISO Nigeria,
with a term commencing on the date of the agreement and ending
on December 31, 2026 (both days inclusive).
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As MINISO Nigeria is controlled by YGF MC Limited which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Ye (the chairman of the Board, an executive
Director, the chief executive officer and a Controlling Shareholder
of the Company), MINISO Nigeria is an associate of Mr. Ye and
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the
Revised IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In light of the change of financial year end, the annual cap for
the six months ended December 31, 2023 has been revised to
RMB18.0 million, which has been pro-rated with reference to the
previous annual cap of RMB36.0 million for the year ending June
30, 2024 before the change of the financial year end.

The actual transaction amount for the six months ended December
31, 2023 was approximately RMB11.6 million.

For the six months ended December 31, 2023, save as disclosed in
this annual report, no related party transaction disclosed in Note 30
to the consolidated financial statements falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for which disclosure is required.
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Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors
Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that such continuing connected transactions have been entered
into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.

Confirmations from the Auditor

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised),
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has
expressed unqualified conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The auditor has confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with respect
to the aforesaid continuing connected transactions entered into in
the Reporting Period:

(i) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(i)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(iv) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual caps as set by the
Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, less than 30% of our total revenue
was generated from our five largest customers combined and less
than 30% of our total purchases was made from the five largest
suppliers combined.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates, or any
Shareholder (which to the best of the Directors’ knowledge owns
more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any interest in
any of our five largest customers or suppliers during the Reporting
Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws of
the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of our
Company’s securities.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Company’s properties are
held for development and/or sale or for investment purposes.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company for the
Reporting Period are set out in Notes 24 and 31 to the consolidated
financial statements and the section headed “Other information —
Purchase, sale, cancellation or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities” in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as of the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed percentage of
public float under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable donations
of RMB2.2 million.

DEBENTURE ISSUED
Our Group did not issue any debenture during the Reporting Period.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “2020 Share Incentive
Plan” in this annual report, no equity-linked agreement was entered
into by the Group, or existed during the Reporting Period.

DIVIDEND

On March 12, 2024, the Board approved the distribution of a
special cash dividend in the amount of US$0.2900 per ADS or
US$0.0725 per ordinary share, to holders of ADSs and ordinary
shares of record as of the close of business on March 28, 2024,
New York Time and Beijing/Hong Kong Time, respectively. The
payment date was on April 9, 2024 for holders of ordinary shares
and April 12, 2024 for holders of ADSs. The ex-dividend date was
March 27, 2024. The aggregate amount of cash dividend paid was
approximately US$90.5 million (RMB651.5 million at an exchange
rate of RMB7.1977 to US$1.0000), which was approximately 50%
of the Company’s adjusted net profit for the six months ended
December 31, 2023 and was distributed from additional paid-in
capital and settled by a cash distribution.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to Article 163 of the Articles of Association and subject
to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless against all actions, proceedings,
costs, charges, expenses, losses, damages or liabilities which they
or any of them incurred or sustained, other than by reason of such
Director’s own dishonesty, wilful default or fraud, in or about the
conduct of our Company’s business or affairs (including as a result
of any mistake of judgment) or in the execution or discharge of his
duties, powers, authorities or discretions. A permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance)
for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force for the Reporting
Period.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 100 to
101 and in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company had distributable reserve
of RMB8,997.5 million.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

As of December 31, 2023, the loans and borrowings of the Group
was RMB7.3 million.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Our executive Director entered into a service agreement with our
Company on June 26, 2022. The term of appointment shall be for
an initial term of three years from the Listing Date or until the third
annual general meeting of our Company after the Listing Date,
whichever is sooner (subject to retirement as and when required
under the Articles of Association). The term of appointment shall
also be automatically renewed for successive periods of three
years. Either party may terminate the agreement by giving not less
than 30 days’ written notice.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors entered into an
amended and restated director agreement with our Company on
June 26, 2022. The term of appointment shall be for an initial term
of three years from the Listing Date or until the third annual general
meeting of our Company after the Listing Date, whichever is sooner
(subject to retirement as and when required under the Articles of
Association). The term of appointment shall also be automatically
renewed for successive periods of three years. Either party may
terminate the agreement by giving not less than 30 days’ written
notice, or such shorter period as the parties may agree upon.
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None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has or is proposed to have
a service agreement with any member of our Group other than
agreements expiring or determinable by the employer within one
year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors or any entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party subsisting during the Reporting Period.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Company
has established the Compensation Committee to formulate
remuneration policies.

The remuneration is determined and recommended based on
each Director’s and senior management personnel’s qualification,
position and seniority. As for the independent non-executive
Directors, their remuneration is determined by the Board upon
recommendation from the Compensation Committee.

The Directors and the senior management personnel are eligible
participants of 2020 Share Incentive Plan, details of which are set
out in the annual report and Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, senior management
and the five highest paid individuals are set out in Notes 30, 33 and
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
and there were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the
Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance
or contract of significance for the provision of services has been
entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the six months ended
December 31, 2023 of the Group have been audited by KPMG,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. There was no change in
our Company’s independent external auditor during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its holdings companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate; and none of the Directors, or any of their spouse or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for equity
or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate, or
had exercised any such right.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
DIRECTORS’ COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of our Controlling Shareholders and Directors confirms that
during the Reporting Period, he or she did not have any interest in a
business which materially competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with our business, and requires disclosure under Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Mr. YE Guofu
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong
April 16, 2024
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. YE Guofu (¥ E), aged 46, has served as a director since
January 2020 and was re-designated as an executive Director with
effect from the Listing Date. Mr. Ye is our founder and has served
as the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of our
Company since February 2020. Mr. Ye is responsible for the overall
strategy, business development and management of our Group.

Mr. Ye founded MINISO Corporation, the predecessor of our
Group, in August 2009 and has since then served as the chief
executive officer of MINISO Corporation until August 2018. After
MINISO Guangzhou, our PRC holding entity before we established
our offshore holding structure, was established in October 2017,
Mr. Ye has since then been serving as a director and the general
manager of MINISO Guangzhou. Mr. Ye accumulated immense
mastery in trendy fashion during the period of Chinese economic
transformation and seized the opportunity to improve the social
quality consumption patterns, bringing a new business model in
China.

Mr. Ye received his junior college diploma in economic
management from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in
China in July 2001.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. XU Lili (#R%2%), aged 42, has served as our independent
director since October 2020 and was re-designated as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from the Listing
Date.

Ms. Xu has served as an independent director of Yalla Group
Limited (NYSE: YALA), a social networking and entertainment
platform company listed on the NYSE, since February 2021. In
addition, Ms. Xu has served as the chief financial officer of ClouDr
Group Limited (HKEX: 9955), a chronic condition management
solution provider in China, since October 2020. Prior to that, Ms.
Xu served as the chief financial officer of Tongdao Liepin Group
(HKEX: 6100), a company engaging in the provision of a variety
of talent acquisition services to individual, businesses and head
hunters listed on the Main Board of the HKEX, from March 2014
to September 2020 and an executive director from March 2018
to September 2020. Prior to that, Ms. Xu held various positions
at General Electric Company (NYSE: GE), a high-tech industrial
company listed on the NYSE, including as the chief financial officer
of GE Power Generation Services China, from January 2005 to
March 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Xu received a bachelor’s degree in international business
from Nanjing University in China in June 2003 and a master of
science degree in local economic development from the London
School of Economics and Political Science in the United Kingdom
in November 2004. Ms. Xu is a public accountant certified by the
Board of Accountancy of Washington State of the United States
since June 2012.

Mr. ZHU Yonghua (5k# %), aged 43, has served as our
independent director since October 2020 and was re-designated as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from the Listing
Date.

Mr. Zhu has been the founding partner of Long-Z (formerly Meituan
DragonBall Capital), a venture capital fund, since January 2017
in charge of the overall investment of Long-Z. Mr. Zhu served as
an executive director of the department of investment in modern
agriculture and food at Legend Holdings Corporation (HKEX: 3396),
a leading industrial investment and operations company in China
listed on the Main Board of the HKEX, from November 2014 to
December 2016. Mr. Zhu worked at Tiantu Capital, an investment
management company, from July 2007 to October 2014 including
as a partner from December 2013 to October 2014.

Mr. Zhu received a master’s degree in finance from Newcastle
University in the United Kingdom in December 2005.

Mr. WANG Yongping (£ k), aged 55, has served as our
independent director since November 2021 and was re-designated
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from the
Listing Date.

Mr. Wang has served as the president of China Commercial Real
Estate Association since August 2016 and as a vice chairman of
the Commerce Economy Association of China since April 2018.
Mr. Wang has also served as an independent director of Easyhome
New Retail Group Co., Ltd. (SZSE: 0785), a China-based company
engaging in investment, development, merchandize distributorship,
marketing and service of the home building material industry and
listed on the SZSE, since December 2019, and an independent
non-executive director of SCE Intelligent Commercial Management
Holdings Limited (HKEX: 0606), a China-based investment holding
company that mainly provides integrated property management
services listed on the Main Board of the HKEX, since June 2021,
and an independent director of Winner Technology Co., Ltd.
(SZSE: 300609) (“Winner Technology”), a China-based company
principally engaged in offline consumer behavior data analysis, and
listed on the SZSE, since May 2023. From April 2017 to May 2020,
he served as an independent director of Winner Technology.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREERE

Mr. Wang was an independent director of Shanghai Youyouto
Investment Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Youyouto”), a
limited liability company established in the PRC principally engaged
in the operation of children’s indoor amusement park, from March
2016 to March 2019, where he was primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on its operations and management.
Shanghai Youyouto was declared bankrupt on December 22, 2020
and is currently in the process of liquidation. Mr. Wang confirmed
that he was not involved in the management and operation of
the business of Shanghai Youyouto. During his directorship with
Shanghai Youyouto, Mr. Wang attended the meetings of Shanghai
Youyouto as its independent director whenever notified and had
reviewed meeting proposals and resolutions provided to him in
relation to the composition of the board of directors, appointment
of new directors and amendment of Shanghai Youyouto’s articles
of association. Mr. Wang confirmed that he had not breached his
fiduciary duties and duties of due diligence during his directorship
with Shanghai Youyouto. Mr. Wang further confirmed that to the
best of his knowledge and belief, as of the Latest Practicable Date,
no claims had been made against him and he was not aware of any
threatened or potential claims made against him and there are no
outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the liquidation of
Shanghai Youyouto.

Before joining our Group, Mr. Wang held various senior
management positions in several national commercial real estate
institutions. Mr. Wang served as a director at Beijing Sperry Real
Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. from March 2014 to February 2020. He
also served as an executive general manager mainly responsible for
its daily management at Zhongshang Lianmeng (Beijing) Real Estate
Consulting Co., Ltd. from April 2011 to December 2020. Mr. Wang
served as an executive vice secretary-general, vice chairman and
secretary-general at China Federation of Urban Commercial Outlets
Construction Administration from November 2003 to July 2010. He
served as a director at Zhongshang Lianmeng (Beijing) Commercial
Investment Co., Ltd. from September 2011 to July 2017. Mr. Wang
also served as an executive editor-in-chief and editor-in-chief at
Journal of Commercial Economics from May 2002 to September
2018 and as a reporter and a chief reporter, mainly responsible for
business news gathering and editing at China Business Herald from
September 1990 to April 2002.

Mr. Wang received his bachelor’s degree in economics from

Hangzhou College of Commerce (now known as Zhejiang
Gongshang University) in China in July 1990.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management team comprises Mr. YE Guofu, an
executive Director, Ms. DOU Na, Ms. YANG Yunyun and Mr.
ZHANG Jingjing.

Mr. YE Guofu (¥E] E) See “Executive Director” for the biography
of Mr. YE Guofu.

Ms. DOU Na (), aged 39, has served as an executive vice
president of our Company since February 2020. Ms. Dou is
responsible for product design and development of our Group.

Ms. Dou served as an executive vice president of MINISO
Corporation from September 2009 to August 2018 in charge of
product design and development. After MINISO Guangzhou was
established, Ms. Dou has served as an executive vice president
of MINISO Guangzhou in charge of product development since
August 2018 and served as a director of MINISO Guangzhou from
December 2018 to March 2020.

Ms. Dou received her specialist degree in clinical medicine from
Wuhan University in China in July 2004 and her bachelor’s degree
in product design from Jiangnan University in China in July 2021.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREERE

Ms. YANG Yunyun (B EE), aged 47, has served as a vice
president of our Company since February 2020. Ms. Yang is
responsible for the risk management and internal controls of our
operations.

Ms. Yang has been serving as a director of MINISO Corporation
since August 2009 and served as an executive vice president of the
risk management center of MINISO Corporation from September
2009 to August 2018. After MINISO Guangzhou was established,
Ms. Yang has served as an executive vice president of MINISO
Guangzhou in charge of risk management since August 2018 and
served as a director of MINISO Guangzhou from December 2018 to
March 2020.

Ms. Yang completed a specialist online course on mental health
education at Beijing Normal University in July 2020.

Mr. ZHANG Jingjing (3R¥ ), aged 37, has served as the chief
financial officer and vice president of our Company since January
2023.

Prior to his promotion as the chief financial officer, Mr. Zhang
served as the vice president of capital markets of our Company
from September 2022, in charge of our Company’s capital markets
matters, including investor relations, strategic investment and
acquisitions, as well as corporate strategy and treasury. Mr. Zhang
joined us in January 2021 as the director of capital markets.

Mr. Zhang has 13 years of experience in capital markets. He started
his career in auditing at PricewaterhouseCoopers, after which
he served in various roles mainly in capital markets in the U.S.,
Hong Kong and China A share markets, including Qutoutiao Inc.
(NASDAQ: QTT) and Weibo Corp. (NASDAQ: WB).

Mr. Zhang received his dual bachelor degrees in World History and
Business Administration from Nankai University in June 2011 and
is currently an FMBA candidate of the executive program at China
Europe International Business School. Mr. Zhang is a Chartered
Financial Analyst and a non-practicing member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Our joint company secretaries are Mr. ZHANG Jingjing and Ms.
WONG Hoi Ting.

Mr. ZHANG Jingjing (5R¥ ) See “Senior Management” for the
biography of Mr. ZHANG Jingjing.

Ms. WONG Hoi Ting (Z8l1F) has been appointed as a joint
company secretary with effect from the Listing Date. Ms. Wong
is an assistant manager of the listing services department of TMF
Hong Kong Limited, responsible for providing corporate secretarial
and compliance services to listed companies. She has over ten
years of experience in the corporate secretarial field. Ms. Wong
is an associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor of social sciences from
Lingnan University in Hong Kong in October 2009 and a master of
science in professional accounting and corporate governance from
City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in July 2014.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no changes in
information of Directors of the Company that are required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules since the
last published annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

We have received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and our Board considers each of them
independent.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to upholding and implementing the highest
standards of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and enhance its value and accountability.

Since the Listing in July 2022, the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code have become applicable to the
Company. Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out
under Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code during the
Reporting Period. The Group will continue to review and monitor
its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of
the Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has
established three Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for the

Directors during the Reporting Period and will review the coverage
of the insurance annually.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised one
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

During the Reporting Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date,
the composition of the Board comprised of the following Directors:

Executive Director
Mr. YE Guofu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. XU Lili
Mr. ZHU Yonghua
Mr. WANG Yongping

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 46 to 51 in
this annual report.

The Board has met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, which relates to the appointment of independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the
Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers each of them to be independent.

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship)
with any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.
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As regards the code provision under the Corporate Governance
Code requiring directors to disclose the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organizations and other
significant commitments as well as their identity and the time
involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed Directors will be provided with necessary
induction training and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars to
provide all Directors with updates on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The joint company secretaries of the Company update and provide
the Directors with written training materials in relation to their roles,
functions and duties from time to time.

Based on the information provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors during the Reporting Period is set
out below:

Name of Director

EENS

Mr. YE Guofu
ERELE

Ms. XU Lili
REE

Mr. ZHU Yonghua
REEESRAE

Mr. WANG Yongping
EXRFERE

ER(EEERTRD O TR EREETRELT
ABBRENARA A RABEEBLNHEE RE
BUAREMEAAYE - A RIREFN S () RAERAE
- EECRE N RARBREREFHEE

ARBIIRSEEREE

IEFZENEETSERHEUENARIZILE
K AR S B AR A EE K EB A RIRER
MHEDER & RAIRROITHEEEEERE
BT - ARRINERLZHNE - THRAZEE
SRHCEMRAD) REMERER REE R E RN
BRMEHNRHEN - EFTEREREAAL
RAIKRE - MR RARHOFHER > UEEFEE
BREEEETHERE -

AARSBAAESE2HEERER  UBREEH
HANG M ARRE o AN AR A B ME N BT )2 A
E=RHAHEAR B RBENE@EIIFF

REBESRENER  EFNBEREZ NI
ZHHT

Nature of trainings attended

Fr2 sl g E

A,B,Cand D
A-B-CkD
A,B,Cand D
A-B-CkD
A,B,Cand D
A-B-CkD
A,B,Cand D
A-B-CkD
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Notes:

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or
briefings

B: making speeches at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

C: participating in training provided by law firms and that relating to the
business of the Company

D: reading materials on various topics, including corporate governance
matters, directors’ duties and responsibilities, Listing Rules and other
relevant laws

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
recommends, but does not require, that the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company deviates from this code provision as we do not
have a separate chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Ye
currently performs these two roles of the Company. Mr. Ye is our
founder and has extensive experience in our business operations
and management. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both chairperson and chief executive officer in the same person
has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within our Group
and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
for our Group. The Board considers that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and
this structure will enable our Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively. The Board will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of our Company if and when it is
appropriate taking into account the circumstances of the Group as
a whole.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The executive Director entered into a service agreement with our
Company on June 26, 2022. The term of appointment is for an initial
term of three years from the Listing Date or until the third annual
general meeting of our Company after the Listing Date, whichever
is sooner (subject to retirement as and when required under the
Articles of Association). The term of appointment shall also be
automatically renewed for successive periods of three years. Either
party may terminate the agreement by giving not less than 30 days’
written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors entered into an
amended and restated director agreement with our Company on
June 26, 2022. The term of appointment is for an initial term of
three years from the Listing Date or until the third annual general
meeting of our Company after the Listing Date, whichever is sooner
(subject to retirement as and when required under the Articles of
Association). The term of appointment shall also be automatically
renewed for successive periods of three years. Either party may
terminate the agreement by giving not less than 30 days’ written
notice, or such shorter period as the parties may agree upon.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has or is proposed to have
a service agreement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the employer within one year without
the payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Articles of Association provide that the Company may by
ordinary resolution appoint any person to be a Director or remove
any Director (including a managing Director or other executive
Director) before the expiration of his or her term of office. In
addition, the Board may, by the affirmative vote of a simple
majority of the remaining Directors present and voting at a Board
meeting, appoint any person as a Director to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting of the Company after his or her appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. An appointment of
a Director may be on terms that the Director shall automatically
retire from office (unless he or she has sooner vacated office) at the
next or a subsequent annual general meeting or upon any specified
event or after any specified period in a written agreement between
the Company and the Director, if any; but no such term shall be
implied in the absence of express provision. Each Director whose
term of office expired shall be eligible for re-election at a meeting of
the Shareholders or re-appointment by the Board.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition, and for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
of Directors and succession plans for the Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than 14 days are given for all regular
Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given by the Company. The agenda
and accompanying meeting papers are provided to the Directors
or Board Committee members at least three days before the Board
meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that the Directors
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the Board meetings or Board Committee meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend
a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman
prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint
company secretaries with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board Committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by all Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, three Board meetings and an annual
general meeting were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance in
Board meetings, Board Committee meetings and general meeting
are set out below:

RBEHRE - BT T ZREFEEZ L —RARRE
FAR -EFHFEFSEZ EFZECeH

BRRAGMFITEINMT -

Number of meeting(s) attended/Number of meeting(s) held

HEERAEBITEBERY

Nominating

and

Corporate

Governance
Audit Compensation Committee Annual
Committee Committee meeting general
Board meetings meeting RERLE meeting
Name of Director meetings BN EE® FHEES EREER BRER
EEpnA ESga; 22 23 ] BEXE
Mr. YE Guofu ZEI = L& 3/3 N/A 0/0 0/0 11
Ms. XU Lili %2222 42+ 3/3 3/3 0/0 0/0 11
Mr. ZHU Yonghua REEZE 4 3/3 3/3 0/0 0/0 11
Mr. WANG Yongping T KF 54 3/3 3/3 0/0 0/0 11

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board KREHEESSRHN ESCXIRNSFLIER

also holds meetings with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors each year.

Note:

(1) Due to the change of financial year end date of the Company,
the Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee did not convene any meeting during the
Reporting Period. Going forward, regular Board Committee meetings
will continue to be held at least once a year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Management Trading of Securities
Policy (the “Code”), with terms no less exacting than the Model
Code, as its own securities dealing code to regulate all dealings by
Directors and relevant employees of securities in the Company and
other matters covered by the Code.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and each of the

Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Code
during the Reporting Period.
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RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION BY
THE BOARD

The Board is the primary decision-making body of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. The Board makes decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company. All Directors, including independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The Board
regularly reviews the functions and responsibilities delegated. The
senior management needs to obtain approval from the Board prior
to entering into any significant transactions.

The Board reserves the right to make decisions on all substantial
affairs of the Company, including: to approve and oversee all policy
and matters, overall strategy and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other major financial and operational issues.

The Company has adopted a policy to ensure independent views
and inputs are available to the Board. The Directors may, at the
Company’s expense, seek independent professional advice, views
and input as considered necessary to fulfill their responsibilities
and in exercising independent judgement when making decisions
in performing their duties according to such policy. The Board will
review the implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism
on an annual basis. The Board has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Board independence mechanism for the
Reporting Period and considered it to be effective.

The Directors are also encouraged to independently consult with
the senior management of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board confirmed that corporate governance is a collective
responsibility of the Directors and their corporate governance
functions include:

(@ to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in complying with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and the
Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, and to make recommendations and
report related issues to the Board;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report; and

()  to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s reporting policies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili, Mr. ZHU Yonghua and Mr. WANG
Yongping. Ms. XU Lili, being the chairwoman of the Audit
Committee, is appropriately qualified as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

(@) to monitor the integrity of our financial statements and our
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as they
relate to our financial statements and accounting matters;

(b) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting; and

(c) to review all related party transactions for potential conflict of
interest situations and approve all such transactions.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the HKEX and the Company.

The Audit Committee convened three meetings and approved
resolutions during the Reporting Period to:

° review the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the audit report
prepared by the external auditor;

o review the quarterly results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the three months ended June 30, 2023 and
September 30, 2023;

° review the financial reporting systems, internal control,
risk management systems and procedures, and the re-
appointment of external auditor; and

° discuss matters with respect to the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Company with senior management
of the Company.
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Compensation Committee

The Company has established the Compensation Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Compensation Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili, Mr. ZHU Yonghua and
Mr. WANG Yongping and an executive Director, namely Mr. Ye. Mr.
ZHU Yonghua is the chairman of the Compensation Committee.

The primary duties of the Compensation Committee are:

(@) to review and make recommendations to the Board with
respect to Directors’ compensation;

(b) to evaluate the performance of our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer and review and make recommendations
to the Board regarding the terms of their compensation; and

() to review and approve the compensation of our other
executive officers and senior management.

The written terms of reference of the Compensation Committee are
available on the websites of HKEX and the Company.

The Compensation Committee approved the following resolutions
during the Reporting Period to:

o review the remuneration policy and package for the Directors
and senior management of the Company and make

recommendation to the Board;

° assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management of the Company; and

° review and approve matters relating to the share incentive
plan adopted by the Company, including the grant of RSUs.
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The Compensation Committee also reviewed and approved the HNE B g BB I E T 5B B2020 A% (9 B
following material matters related to the 2020 Share Incentive Plan: B EREE

On October 20, 2023, the Company granted an aggregate
of 22,472 RSUs pursuant to the 2020 Share Incentive Plan
(the “RSU Grant”) to Mr. Zhu Yonghua. The vesting period
was less than 12 months as the RSU Grant was part of the
compensation stipulated in the director agreement of Mr. Zhu
entered with the Company. The Compensation Committee
considered that (i) there were no restrictions prohibiting a
vesting period of less than 12 months under the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan; and (ii) such arrangement was in line with the
remuneration arrangement as set out in the director agreement
entered into with Mr. Zhu before the date of grant. The vesting
of the RSUs was not subject to any performance targets. The
Compensation Committee further considered that (i) the RSUs
formed part of the remuneration package of Mr. Zhu; (ii) such
arrangement was in line with the recommended best practice
E.1.9 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code; and (iii) the
RSUs were subject to clawback mechanisms. The RSU Grant
aligned with the purpose of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan
to attract and retain qualified personnel, provide incentives
to employees, consultants and directors of our Group, and
promote the success of our business to our Shareholders. In
view of the above, the Compensation Committee considered
it was appropriate to approve the RSU Grant.
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Remuneration of Senior Management

For the Reporting Period, the remuneration by band of members of
the senior management of the Company (whose biographies are set
out on pages 49 to 50 of this annual report) is set out below:

Remuneration band

SR EIEREH
REHRRE - ARASREREBEXE (EBEEHNA

#H
FIHFA9E50 B) FMEBEZTIAT

Number of senior management

SREEEAR

i

Nil to HK$2,000,000 Z%2,000,000# 7T
HK$2,000,000 to HK$4,000,000 2,000,000;# 7T % 4,000,000/ 7T

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Company has established the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the
Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili,
Mr. ZHU Yonghua and Mr. WANG Yongping and an executive
Director, namely Mr. Ye. Mr. WANG Yongping is the chairman of
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

The primary duties of the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee are:

(@ in respect of its nomination functions, to develop and
recommend to the Board criteria for Board and committee
membership, recommend to the Board the persons to be
nominated for election as Directors and to each of the Board
Committees, and develop and recommend to the Board a set
of corporate governance guidelines; and

(b) inrespect of its corporate governance functions, to ensure that
our Company develops, reviews and assesses periodically,
and at least annually, the adequacy of the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and to ensure our
Company’s compliance with the requirements of the NYSE
and the HKEX and make recommendation to the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee are available on the websites of HKEX and
the Company.

E MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

RERGCEERZES
AATDERCETRAD EI27ARREEE AT
A RIIRBREEERZEE -

REREREAZBEH (B IIFNTES (AR
Rt - REFERERENRFEE) AR —RBIT
B (AEEL)EK - ERTREEFRBREE

ERALREGEE -

RELRCEREAZEENIERES

@ BEREBENE HENRNEFSEIES
Afﬂﬁii,\aﬁﬁz,\ﬁﬂﬁ’ﬁ? ﬁé%‘\%
BIREREFMEEFTREGUEMNAE
%Hmll‘?%%?ﬁﬁ% ERXERES R

(b) BMEERERBEMS  BRAAREHEE
PEFEHIE - B MRHEA R RN EERR
RNEREERY  WHERAQFETHRA
KEERZFTEVIRTE - WRAEFS IR R

rBenE

RANMDRER
KA R RIBIHER] -

TED Bk 4 60 2] ) OB SR Y



The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee passed the
following resolutions during the Reporting Period to:

° review the structure, size and composition of the Board;

° assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° review the board diversity policy of the Company;

° consider the re-appointment of the retired Directors and
discuss matters relating to procedure of nomination of
Director candidate by Directors’ evaluation and succession
plan;

° review and implement the Company’s policy and practices on
corporate governance; and

° review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and the relevant disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Nomination Policy

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee would consider
the candidate’s relevant criteria that are necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve diversity of the Board, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity of the Board. The Board reviews the implementation and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level,
including gender diversity, as an essential element in maintaining
the Company’s competitive advantage and enhancing its ability to
attract, retain and motivate employees from the widest possible
pool of available talent. In particular, the Company currently
has one female Director, alongside three male Directors and
will continue to work towards enhancing the gender diversity of
the Board. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, in reviewing
and assessing suitable candidates to serve as a Director, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, and industry and regional experience.
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Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee will discuss periodically and
when necessary, agree on the measurable objectives for achieving
diversity, including gender diversity, on the Board and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company had a total of
four Directors, including one female Director. In terms of gender
diversity of the Board, the Company targets to maintain at least
the current level of female representation in its Board and will
continue to seek opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members of the Board over time as and when suitable candidates
are identified. There is a diverse mix of educational background
and professional experience among the Board members. The
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has reviewed
the Board Diversity Policy and considers that appropriate balance
has been stricken among the Board members in terms of skills,
experience and perspectives.

The Company values gender diversity and will continue to take
steps to promote gender diversity at all levels, in particular the
Board and senior management levels. In addition, the Company
is committed to providing career development for its staff with an
aim to promote them to senior management. The Company will
also take into account gender diversity in staff recruitment at mid to
senior levels so as to develop a pipeline of potential successors to
the Board.

The gender ratios in the Company’s workforce as at December 31,
2023 are as follows:

Female

g

Number

AR ERBWETL

REEFELTIBER  RELREEELRER
EMTmL AV ERRERESTSZ T (8
ZIC)MAIEE B RER I WHBRE

+E
%

317

) F

¥R

RAFREHY - ARRAHAENLES - AP aF—
FEMNEE - GEFSURZTIETHE  ARFH
BRRELRFANESSPOLELL - W4
BRABERIABARRESRESEFTEPRLIEK
B p - EEENEREETELOHREERLE
X - RELECEERZBECENESFS ST
LR URBEFEKRBEREE - K NEBRT
e EDEE T -

ARRERMERZ T - WA BRI R %
BE(CEREFENSRERRE)NMERZ T -
AN ARRBHRETIREBERR  EEETT
BERSRERRE - ARRATKERETSEET
RERIERNZTTL  UBRRESSNETHEIE -

R2023F12 A31H » ARRIE THRILLAILNT -

Male

B
Number As % of total
A8 EEEHNBESL

As % of total

Director ==
Overall employees" 2428 T 0
— Senior management® — SR EIEE?

25.0% 3 75.0%
61.8% 907 38.2%
50.0% 2 50.0%

The Company considers the current gender ratio in the workforce
to be appropriate and will continue to ensure that recruitment and
selection practices at all levels are appropriately structured so that
a diverse range of candidates are considered and gender diversity
across the workforce is maintained.

Notes:
1) Due to the protection of employee privacy (including gender) in some
overseas countries and regions, the number disclosed here only

includes the employees and senior management in mainland China.

2 Details of the senior management are set out in the section headed
“SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 49 to 50 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period to
truly and fairly reflect the situation of the Group and the results and
cash flows of the Group.

The senior management of the Company provides such explanation
and information to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial statements of the Company,
which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITOR’S SCOPE OF WORK

The statement by the auditor regarding its reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 88 to 95 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks (including the environmental, social and
governance risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. The Board oversees risk management
functions directly and also through the Audit Committee and the
senior management.

The senior management is responsible for the overall
implementation of risk management and internal control plans
and policies determined by the Board and managing the risks in
connection with all of the Company’s business operations. The
senior management identifies, assesses and takes measures
against any significant risks that the Company is facing, and
reviews the risk assessment report on a regular basis and reports
to the Board on a regular basis.
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The Board did not identify any significant unresolved areas of
concern during the Reporting Period.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and monitoring and overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems through the internal audit department, and
reporting and making recommendations to the Board where
appropriate.

With effect from the Listing, the senior management has confirmed
and will confirm to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for each financial year.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings by the internal
audit department, will review the effectiveness of the Company’s
and its subsidiaries’ risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for
each financial year, and will consider whether such systems are
effective and adequate.

The periodic review will also cover the financial reporting and
internal audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and
relevant resources. The Board, supported by the Audit Committee
and senior management, will review the management reports and
the internal audit reports. For the Reporting Period, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company effective and adequate (including the processes for
financial reporting and compliance with the relevant Listing Rules).

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination of
inside information. In order to ensure the market and stakeholders
are timely and fully informed about the material developments in the
Company’s business, the Board has adopted the inside information
disclosure policy regarding the procedures of proper information
disclosure. As such, the inside information will not be passed on to
any external party.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLEBLOWING
POLICIES

The Company has adopted the Policy of Compliant and
Whistleblowing and the Policy of Compliance Accountability in
accordance with code provision D2.6 of the Corporate Governance
Code, as well as the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the
Code of Anti-Corruption, the Rule of Integrity Self-Discipline in
accordance with code provision D2.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code. These policies outline the principles and guidelines that the
Company intends to apply to promote and support anti-corruption
laws and regulations and establish a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees and those who deal with the Company
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity with the related
department of the Company, which will then report to the Audit
Committee about any material improprieties related to the
Company. These policies are reviewed from time to time to ensure
their relevance and appropriateness to the Group’s business,
corporate strategy and stakeholder expectations.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The approximate remuneration of the auditor for their audit and
non-audit services provided to the Company for the Reporting
Period is as follows:
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Amount

Kot

Services rendered (RMB’000)
R (AR¥T )
Audit fees) T B 0,600
Tax fees®@ FiIEBFH@ 500
Al other fees® FfiE Eh & RO 500
Total &5t 10,565

Notes: BfRE -

(1) “Audit fees” represent the aggregate fees billed for the Reporting
Period for professional services rendered by our principal accounting
firm for the audit of our financial statements or services that are
normally provided by the auditor in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements.

(2) “Tax fees” represent the aggregate fees billed for the Reporting
Period for professional services rendered by our principal accounting
firm for tax compliance and tax advice.

(8)  “All other fees” represent the aggregate fees for services rendered by
our principal accounting firm other than services reported under “Audit
fees” and “Tax fees”.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. ZHANG Jingjing (“Mr. Zhang”), our chief financial officer and
vice president, was appointed as our joint company secretary
with effect on the Listing Date. In order to uphold good corporate
governance and ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and
applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company has also appointed
Ms. Wong Hoi Ting (“Ms. Wong”) of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a
company secretarial services provider), to act as another joint
company secretary and to provide assistance to Mr. Zhang for
performing his duties as a company secretary of the Company. Ms.
Wong’s primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Zhang.

During the year from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, each
of Mr. Zhang and Ms. Wong has undertaken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has discretion on whether to distribute dividends,
subject to certain requirements of Cayman Islands law. In addition,
our Shareholders may by ordinary resolution declare a dividend,
but no dividend may exceed the amount recommended by the
Board. In either case, all dividends are subject to certain restrictions
under Cayman Islands law, namely that our Company may only pay
dividends out of profits or share premium account, and provided
always that in no circumstances may a dividend be paid if this
would result in our Company being unable to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. Even if we decide to pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon our
future operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial condition, contractual restrictions and other
factors that the Board may deem relevant.

We are a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. We
may rely on dividends from our subsidiaries in China and overseas
for our cash requirements, including any payment of dividends
to our Shareholders. PRC and other regulations may restrict the
ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us. In particular, PRC
laws require that dividends be paid by PRC companies only out
of the profit for the year calculated according to PRC accounting
principles. PRC laws also require a PRC company to set aside
at least 10% of its after-tax profits, if any, to fund its statutory
reserves, which are not available for distribution as cash dividends.
Pursuant to the PRC Company Law, each of our PRC subsidiaries
may pay dividend from the after-tax profit after (i) it sets aside
as general reserves at least 10% of its after-tax profit until the
cumulative amount of its reserves reaches 50% of its registered
capital, and (ii) any losses of such PRC subsidiary from prior years
have been offset. Dividend distribution to our Shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the period in which the dividends are
approved by our Shareholders or the Board, where appropriate.
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If we pay any dividends on our Shares, with respect to holders
of the ADSs, our depositary, as the registered holder of Shares,
will pay such amounts to the ADS holders to the same extent as
holders of our Shares, in proportion to the Shares underlying the
ADSs held by such ADS holders, subject to the terms of the deposit
agreement, including the fees and expenses payable thereunder.

As the Company attaches great importance to provide reasonable
return to investors, the Board has approved and adopted the
Dividend Policy on July 27, 2023, which aims to provide foreseeable
returns to the Shareholders. The Dividend Policy is effective from
July 27, 2023.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and the Articles of Association, in
principle, the Company is targeting an annual dividend no less than
50% of its annual adjusted net profit, a non-IFRS financial measure,
which is defined as profit for the period excluding equity settled
share-based payment expenses.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividends and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time. There can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
timely and non-selective disclosure of corporate information which
enables Shareholders and investors to make properly informed
investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an
opportunity for Shareholders to communicate directly with the
Directors. The chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the
Board Committees will attend the annual general meetings to
answer the Shareholders’ questions. The auditor of the Company
will also attend the annual general meetings to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company
and Shareholders and maintains a website at https://ir.miniso.com,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has reviewed and
considered the implementation of the Shareholders’ communication
policy to be effective as the information of the Company has been
disseminated in a timely and effective manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for
substantially separate issues, including the election of Directors.
Poll voting has been adopted for decision-making at Shareholders’
meetings. Details of poll voting procedures are included in the
circular dispatched to Shareholders. The circular also includes
relevant details of proposed resolutions and/or biographies of the
Directors standing for election. The results of the voting are posted
on the websites of the Company and HKEX in a timely manner after
each general meeting of the Shareholders.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at the
Company’s general meetings according to Articles of Association.
Extraordinary general meetings of the Company may be convened
on the written requisition of any one or more members holding,
as at the date of deposit of the requisition, in aggregate Shares
representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carry the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company. The requisition must state the objects of the meeting and
the resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company, and may consist of several documents in like form
each signed by one or more requisitionists. If the Directors do not
within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition duly proceed to convene a general meeting
to be held within a further twenty-one (21) calendar days, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carry the right to vote
at general meetings, may themselves convene a general meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three calendar months after the expiration of the said twenty-one
(21) calendar days.

As regards proposing a person to stand for election as a Director,
relevant procedures are available on the Company’s website.
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ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following for the attention of the joint company
secretaries:

Address: 8/F, M Plaza, No. 109, Pazhou Avenue, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou 510000, Guangdong Province, China
Email: ir@miniso.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. The information of the Shareholders may be disclosed as
required by law.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted the Amended and Restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company on July 11, 2022, which
took effect from the Listing Date. During the Reporting Period, there
was no change in the Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company.
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Other Information

Hh & ¥

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS ERNE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short EERESTHAE NN TSRS /EEE
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures BHERG - BEROREESTWEZR AR
of the Company or Any of Its Associated Corporations

As at December 31, 2023, the interests and short positions of M2023F 12 A31H » EENARFIZEITHRAR
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, RAREREBEEE (TER(EHFRAEGKL)
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated EXVER) it -« MBERGD REEZFHEE A QIR
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which were B(HEE NI EEN ) EXVEIET R ESH MM A
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the HKEX pursuant NE R FER AR (BREBE(ESF AT
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and 1&0Y B RGBS /Esk 1R BT A R 2 ROA
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under 2 S(b)EEEN AN BRIBE(GES LEEIEE) 5
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register 352MEFBE B EMEER AR © (o) iBIEZE
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of STRIB AR N 7] R PR ORI ¢
the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to the Company and the HKEX

pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interest in the Shares RRD RS

Number of

Shares underlying
outstanding options/
restricted shares/
restricted share

units granted Approximate %
RITERBRE of shareholding
Numberof ERHZRFRD,  in our Company®

Capacity/Nature of interest Shares S PREIRDENH iz NGI)
B RRLE R4 2 E MHER 4 & B BAB DY
Mr. Ye Interest in controlled corporations/founder of a 789,541,061@ (L) - 62.5%
discretionary trust/beneficiary of a trust/ 14,000,000¥ (S) 1.1%
interest of spouse
RhE REEEER BEETRIABREERA/
[
Ms. XU Lili Beneficial interest - 20,0009 (L) 0.002%
(Y% T EniEn
Mr. ZHU Yonghua  Beneficial interest 84,9644 (L) 0.01%
REELE EniEn
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Notes:

M

The calculation is based on the total number of 1,263,689,685 Shares
in issue as at December 31, 2023. The letter “L” stands for long
position and the letter “S” stands for short position.

Represents () 328,290,482 Shares held by Mini Investment Limited;
(i) 203,401,382 Shares held by YGF MC Limited; and (jii) 257,849,197
Shares held by YYY MC Limited. The short position represents Mr.
Ye, through an entity controlled under YGF Trust, has delivered a total
of 14,000,000 shares under credit support arrangement with a return
obligation. For further details of Mr. Ye's interest in our Company,
please see the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” on the next

page.

Represents Ms. Xu’s entitlement to receive up to 20,000 Shares
pursuant to the exercise of options granted to her under the 2020
Share Incentive Plan.

Represents Mr. Zhu’s entitlement to receive up to 16,856 Shares
pursuant to the vesting of RSUs granted to him under the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan and his beneficial interest in 68,108 Shares.

GEE

(©)

)

Other Information

Hib & ®

ZAEIVEN2023F 12 A31HE #TH
1,263,689,685 % Ik (0 HI4EE - TR[LIRKRLGTE -
FR[SIREKA -

#5(i) A Mini Investment Limited#} /5 #7328,290,482

BERE (i YGF MC Limited# 4 #9203,401,382
BB ¢« K (ili)BYYY MC Limited# A K

257,849,197 iy - AR R KRESL L BB
YGF TrustZHMERRBEAIHLHFIMNEGH
14,000,000 A% A fn) » WANEIRIERTS - AEREEL
EARRAERME— B F2HTARIEZRR
TR D R AR R (0 o i R BB | — R

BIR LT RZ2020F i) SR SR B A ER
17112155 % 20,000 A Az 1 BV R

IR S AR 1B 2020 4F B 17 BB o+ B & 5 5 5 1R
M D BB 57 B 12 1S 5 % 16,856 AL AR 17 K #E F &
68,108 D E m iz ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, so far as is
known to any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the HKEX pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO; (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the HKEX.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

As at December 31, 2023, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests
have been disclosed in this annual report), had an interest or short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the HKEX pursuant to Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

B ESCPTiREE &S - 7A2023F12 A31H » B {E[
BENARBERSTRABNA BT EHEN

RRARBEBITHRABRARNR RS EERER (EHER
(BEHFMHE R FEXVED) B - BB E
BETHEAR @REBE(EFLIE D) EXVEET R
FE87 BABAMANLR R L XA IOAR ¢ (b)IR
B(EH LB IERN) 3521547 F AE LR &I A
Frig BRIk R  H()RBEGRESTA]) A
HMEARRNF MR PrEERTIORE

FERRARODRAEABERDPERIAE

2023612 A31H - THIAT (zmE RAFmE
BNERERARARSITHRABRRIN R &8
RO HEERIE(ES RIS EG)) BEXVIEPE2 M E

3D EBAMAA 7 R T R e rL SR A A AR IR
<< %&Hﬁaﬂﬂm%sseﬂ%éﬁawmaﬂ%m*&m
KB -

Approximate

% of
shareholding
in our
Number of Company!
Capacity/Nature of interest Shares RZAAQ T RAER
1 fEmtE gk 2= BAEDEO
YYY MC Limited® Beneficial interest 257,849,197(L) 20.4%
YYY MC Limited® EmiEm
YYY Development Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 257,849,197(L) 20.4%
YYY Development Limited® IR LB R
YGF MC Limited® Beneficial interest 203,401,382(L) 16.1%
YGF MC Limited® EmiEm
Mini Investment Limited® Beneficial interest 328,290,482(L) 26.0%
14,000,000(S) 1.1%
Mini Investment Limited® ey
YGF Development Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 328,290,482(L) 26.0%
14,000,000(S) 1.1%
YGF Development Limited® S EE R
Mr. Ye®eH“®) Interest in controlled corporations/founder of a 789,541,061(L) 62.5%
discretionary trust/beneficiary of a trust/interest 14,000,000(S) 1.1%
of spouse
E S ee@0 EEE R BIBETERIA S EA
@Eﬁ%*&fm
Ms. Yang®@®®e Interest in controlled corporations/founder of a 789,541,061(L) 62.5%
discretionary trust/beneficiary of a trust/interest 14,000,000(S) 1.1%

of spouse
15 22 @euWe)
[

REmEEEs MBERRIAEREREA
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Notes:
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The calculation is based on the total number of 1,263,689,685 Shares
in issue as at December 31, 2023. The letter “L” stands for long
position and the letter “S” stands for short position.

YYY MC Limited is wholly-owned by YYY Development Limited,
a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of BVI. All
shares of YYY Development Limited are held by TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. on behalf of YYY Trust, with TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as the trustee,
and Ms. Yang and her family members as beneficiaries. Ms. Yang
is both the settlor and protector of YYY Trust and is deemed to be
the controlling person of the YYY Trust. Under the SFO, Ms. Yang is
deemed to be interested in all the interests in our Company held by
YYY MC Limited.

YGF MC Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ye.

Mini Investment Limited is wholly-owned by YGF Development
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated under the laws
of BVI. All shares of YGF Development Limited are held by TMF
(Cayman) Ltd. on behalf of YGF Trust, with TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as the
trustee, and Mr. Ye and his family members as beneficiaries. Mr. Ye
is both the settlor and the protector of YGF Trust and is deemed to
be the controlling person of the YGF Trust. Under the SFO, Mr. Ye is
deemed to be interested in all the interests in our Company held by
Mini Investment Limited.

Mr. Ye and Ms. Yang are spouses, and are therefore deemed to be
interested in the equity interests held by each other.

GEE
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ZAEIVEN2023F 12 A31HE #TH
1,263,689,685 % Ik (0 HI4EE - TR[LIRKRLGTE -
FR[SIREKA -

YYY MC Limited 1 YYY Development Limited(—Z
KELABERRBESAETMR N EREERT)
2EWA ° YYY Development Limited#) 2 ZRA% 17
FTMF (Cayman) Ltd.XEYYY Trusti¥h © fEZi=
#TH * TMF (Cayman) Ltd. B FEA BT RER
FEXEBZEA - BLLTHRYYY TrustlETA K
REA + WIHIRBYYY TrusttIZHIA « IRIEGES
NEVEIEH]) - HE LR R/EYYY MC Limited 5
BARNAMIA AT R ER -

YGF MC Limited REE £ 2 E S o

Mini Investment Limited B YGF Development
Limited( — KB R BAER RS AE T ML
HWBEREBEAT)EEHE - YGF Development
Limited 892 #8A% {7 R TMF (Cayman) Ltd. XX YGF
TrustiF g o f£:Z{55E+F ' TMF (Cayman) Ltd. &5
A EEAERAREKNEATBA « BEALEHR
YGF Trustf)ZsEA RIREA - WHARAYGF Trust
IEHIA o IRIBCE S REEGRD) - EAERR R
FEMini Investment Limited$% 58 282 R K FT A =
HakER o

ERAERGREREEBRE  RUBRAESTTR
BRBET S R o
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, no person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or any of its Associated Corporations” had an interest
or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the HKEX pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

2020 SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan was first adopted by the Board
in September 2020 and was further amended in June 2022, the
amendments of which took effect upon the Listing. Since the
Listing, the 2020 Share Incentive Plan was subject to Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules. The Company relies on the transitional
arrangements provided for under the new Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules which became effective on January 1, 2023.

The principal terms of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan, as amended,
are as described below.

Purpose

The purposes of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan are to attract
and retain qualified personnel, provide incentives to employees,
consultants and directors of our Group, and promote the success
of our business.

Eligible Participants

Eligible participants include employees, consultants, and directors
of our Group (the “Participants”). The plan administrator may,
from time to time, select from among all Participants to whom
awards in the form of share options (the “Options”), a right to
purchase restricted Shares (the “Restricted Shares”) or a right to
purchase RSUs (collectively, the “Awards”), will be granted and will
determine the nature and amount of each option.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum aggregate number of Shares that may be issued is
147,301,128 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate”) of which only up to
71,485,122 Shares may be issued pursuant to Awards granted in
the form of Options.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

B FXPrIREESN - 2023 12A31H - BES
(ERZHR[EBERESTRABRARFSHS
IFEEE A E /D « RGN REREFHER R
KA —E)IN o R A LR AR IR
BERE(ESFREEED) EXVEFE2REINE
A AN T S B R BT R s AR SR AN R AR R (B
FMEREEG)) F33615BFEME ek skk

A

=

2020 F 10 BT &

2020 F M0 BN ET IR 2020F9 A N EE =2 K
o WR202256 HiEE—FEE] - BETR LML
Ko B ETTHE - 2020 FRR 10 B E AT EI S ETARADD
FITERR - AARMFRECETHRAD FFE17E(F
202391 A1 BBER) TR ERBELHE -

RRIEET 20204 B0 AL B AT 81 &Y I 2 RSt an
T o

B#Y

2020 IR BN At Bl S RS BB A ERAR
HBAKERE BRNMES @ RERMNEHEN
SR -

RERBERE

RERZ2EEZERASEESR BERIEZ(2H
&) o FHEIE IR ARG SER A RRRE ([BR
) BEXRHIED (TZRERG )N E
BRI M B EN (RHE B mE 2R
FRETER  UYHETSBRENEERSHE -

RARGEE

Al BTV &= B B R 147,301,128 %A fn ([t
BIRE])  BEE&ZT71,485122[ A AR IBIARE
T 2 S O B2 T LA AT o



As of July 1, 2023, Awards representing 6,968,140 Shares were
available for grant under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan. During
the Reporting Period, RSUs representing a total of 125,672
underlying Shares were granted to eligible Participants pursuant to
the 2020 Share Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2023, Awards
representing 7,071,028 Shares were available for grant under the
2020 Share Incentive Plan.

As of July 1, 2023, 48,527,444 new Shares were available for
issue under the Scheme Mandate. During the Reporting Period,
no new Shares were issued pursuant to the 2020 Share Incentive
Plan. As of December 31, 2023 and the Latest Practicable Date,
48,527,444 new Shares (representing approximately 3.9% of the
weighted average number of Shares of the Company as of the
Latest Practicable Date) were available for issue under the Scheme
Mandate.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all Options that may be granted in aggregate does not exceed 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue and is subject to an annual
limit of 3% of the total number of Shares in issue in any financial
year.

Remaining life and option period

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan commenced in September 2020 and
shall continue in effect for a term of ten years with a remaining life
of approximately seven years, unless sooner terminated under the
terms of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan.

The plan administrator shall determine the time or times at which
an option may be exercised in whole or in part, including exercise
prior to vesting; provided that the term of any option granted under
the 2020 Share Incentive Plan shall not exceed ten years. The plan
administrator shall also determine any conditions, if any, that must
be satisfied before all or part of an option may be exercised. There
is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

Vesting period

In general, the plan administrator determines the vesting schedule,
which is specified in the relevant award agreement.

Other Information
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#HZE2023F7A18 ' RIE2020F K70 EN A&
A 6,968,140 MG (D AU EEE) - MRS ES -
RIZ2020F R B EFTE EMAERSEERD
125,672 1% 10 &9 PR #ll i D BE A7 - E,Z2023
F12 8318 @ RIE2020F I g Bzt 2 a] R H
7,071,028 % 10 HY £2E) o

H=E=2023F7A1H - REBEFTEEETHET
48,527,444 5% 10 - MEREER - BEERIE2020
FRRN BB B BITH D - BlE2023F12 H31
BESEERAITEE - BRIBEFrSIRE ] #ET
48,527,444 85D (AR RIHE REER AI1TH
HANAE S IR0 80493.9% ) ©

A]RERR tH B P /B RE BT TR 1R R BE R TT VAR 1D 48
BT ERB D BT BN 10% I X PR PME AT BA IR
FREEHETRNEBN3%MNFERE

FISRFEIR B IR REEAR

20204F I (7 BNz T B2 2020F9 AFKE N - AW
HAE+TF  FHRFHOELT - BIERIE2020F 1
RN ET B IETRIR BT AR LE ©

BB ARE T A 2B ITEBRENRE
(BREITERFBANER)  BRIE2020F K0 5E
AR EABRENHR I SBETF - 58
B ATVEEE A R EB 0 BRI TE AT A E M
RMERMENSE () - WEITEBREN VAR
BV ER A HARR o

7 8
—mE - FAEEEARERBRERL - ENE
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Limit for each Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders in general meeting, the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of
Options granted and to be granted under the 2020 Share Incentive
Plan and any other plan of our Company to an eligible Participant
within any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
issued and outstanding at the date of any grant.

Consideration and exercise price

The principal terms of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan does not
specify the amount payable on application or acceptance of the
Awards and the period within which payments or calls must or
may be made. The plan administrator determines the terms and
conditions of any award granted pursuant to the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan, including, but not limited to, the exercise price,
grant price, or purchase price. The plan administrator determines
the exercise price for each award, which is stated in the relevant
award agreement shall not be lower than the fair market value of
the Shares on the date of grant, which shall be the higher of: (i) the
closing sales price for such Shares or securities as quoted on the
principal exchange or system on which the Shares or securities
of our Company are listed (as determined by the Board or the
committee delegated with the authority to administer the plan) on
the date of grant, and (ii) average closing sales price as quoted on
the principal exchange or system on which the Shares or securities
of our Company are listed for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Outstanding Options, Restricted Shares and RSUs granted

As of December 31, 2023, the number of underlying Shares
pursuant to the outstanding Options granted amounted to
5,169,104 Shares, representing approximately 0.41% of the issued
Shares. The outstanding Options are held by 173 grantees. Up
to a maximum of 48,527,444 Shares may be further issued upon
the exercise of the Options to be granted under the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan. Of the 5,169,104 Options, 2,237,104 have vested
and 2,932,000 remained unvested as of December 31, 2023. All the
Options under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan were granted between
January 16, 2020 and October 15, 2021 (both days inclusive).
The exercise price of the Options granted under the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan is US$0.00 per Share or US$0.036 per Share.

Save for the Awards which were lapsed during the Reporting Period

as disclosed below, there was no Award which was cancelled
during the Reporting Period.
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The Company has not granted further Options under the 2020 ARARR LT A& B EARIE 2020 F iR 1 BB ET &
Share Incentive Plan after the Listing Date. Details of the BT EMBRE - RBEH - RIE2020F 870 UE
movements of the Options granted under the 2020 Share Incentive  =TEIR FHERAEL S B NT

Plan during the Reporting Period are as follows:

Weighted

average

closing price

of Shares

immediately

Number of Number of before the
Options Numberof Number of Number of Options date of

outstanding ~ Options ~ Options  Options  outstanding exercise

asof  granted lapsed  exercised asof  during the

July1, duringthe duringthe duringthe December31,  Reporting

2023 Reporting Reporting  Reporting 2023 Period

HEN20E  Period  Period  Period BZ2028% RARHES

Exercise TR1E  REER  REEE  REER 128MB BEGR

Name or category of grantee Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price BEEM  BAN  BaMb  BREN  BAEN BEENmE
RRARLLSER RFEH BEA 1A %8 ERERR BEERR BREHE EREHE  RREMA  TOURE
Director E%
XulLil October 15, 2020 50% of the number of Shares shall ~ Maximum exercisable termis ~ US$0.00 20,000 - - - 20,000 N/A
become fully vested upon grant tenyears fromthe dateof ~ per Share
and 50% of the number of Shares  grant
shall become fully vested after 1
year of the date of grant
"R 202010 A 158 RAZAMN% AN TR EE BRFEMEINERINR BRO00ZET el
RERSENS%ERRTFRS-  BRATE
Fhar5E
Five highest paid individuals during ~ January 16, 2020 5 years Maximum exercisable termis — US$0.036 1,345,000 - - - 1,345,000 N/A
the Reporting Period in aggregate  and September 27, tenyears fromthe date of ~ per Share
(in aggregate) 2020 grant
REEELERREAL(RT)  NNF1ABAR  5F ERTRBRHORRANE  5HR00%6 el
0204595278 HRATE B
Other grantees (in aggregate) January 16, 2020 5years Maximum exercisable termis~ US$0.036 4,336,396 - 104800 427492 3,804,104 US$6.04
and September 27, tenyears fromthe date of ~ per Share
2020 grant
EfARA(BH) NNF1A6BR 55 AETRELHNRRTAR  5R00% VEST
20204597278 BRATE e
Total 5,701,396 - 104800 427492 5,169,104
ait
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As of December 31, 2023, the Company has not granted any HE2023F12A31H ' ARAR T HEKBE
RSUs under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan which will be satisfied 1R #E2020F &0 B E) =1 B3% F 17 2R $I 8% 15 B AL
by issuance of new Shares after the Listing date. Details of the (AT RO A EE) - RIS - 8152020
movements of the RSUs granted under the 2020 Share Incentive FRRM R BIET 2R T IR BN (0 B8 (I IARITAR
Plan which will be satisfied by existing Shares during the Reporting MAEAEE)BEFENT -

Period are as follows:

Weighted

Number average

Number Number Number Number of RSUs  closing price

Closing of RSUs  of RSUs ofRSU  of RSUs outstanding of the Share
price  Fairvalue outstanding granted lapsed vested asof immediately
of Shares o RSUs asof duringthe duringthe duringthe December 31, before the

immediately atthedate July1,2023 Reporting  Reporting  Reporting 2023 date of
beforethe  ofgrant  EZ202F Period Period Period  EZ2023% vesting
date of grant  ZRAIRA TRIE  REES  REEE  RESE 12A%A  RAREE
RORBE BURRT  RGEM REM  BAMN  EEEN  ROEM  BSRAMA

Name or category of grantee Date of grant Vesting period Purchaseprice  Performance target  HF AMAIN REN  SRHERG XRERGE IRERG ZRHERS  IRIRG fimig
REARZSERR il L BEE XEEE YnE  AMEE  BAHE BH EUER BN ERMA  THOURE
Director
B3
Zhu Yonghua October 15,2022 80,936 Shares shall vestonthe  US$0.00 Per Share  N/A US§120  US$1.20 62,500 - - 62,500 - US$6.45
date of grant and 62,500
Shares shall vest on the first
trading day after the first
anniversary of the date of
grant
REE 20205107158 80 96MRMRMHEREFENEE BRO00ET 0 il 12051 120%71 6455
RE250BRABRET RS
E-BEERENERR AR
5B
October 20,2023 22,472 Shares shall vest in US80.00 per Share ~ N/A US$6.24  US$6.27 - 2412 - 5616 16,856 US$6.24
equal portions on October
20, 2023, January 15, 2024,
April 15,2024 and July 15,
2024, respectively.
20235107208 RARHEAEARN02F  FRO00ET Byl BUET  627ET B2UET
10A208 + 202451815
A 204%4 158 22024
E7A15A5E «
Five highest paid individuals  December 6, 2022 and 4-5 years US$0.036 per Share  One of the highest US§279&  US$289& 5218400 - - - 5218400 N/A
during the Reporting Period in ~ March 20, 2023 paid individuals US84375  US$445
aggregate has performance
targets, please refer
to the announcement
published by the
Company on March
21,2023 for details
REEEREEETAL(R3) 00512868 45% Ehomekn  AP-EREFALAR 279%TR  280%TR AER
23537208 B HEEAE  4mET 44ET
ARAR2BE3A
PALERENS
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Weighted
Number average
Number Number Number Number of RSUs  closing price
Closing of RSUs  of RSUs ofRSU  of RSUs outstanding of the Share
price  Fairvalue outstanding granted lapsed vested asof immediately
of Shares  of RSUs asof duringthe duringthe duringthe December31, before the
immediately atthedate July1,2023 Reporting  Reporting  Reporting 2023 date of
beforethe  ofgrant EZ2023% Period Period Period BZ2023% vesting
date of grant  RRHIRA THIE  REEE  REEE  RESE 2% RORBE
RORBE BURRT R6EM R BAMN CEEN  BAEM  BERHA
Name or category of grantee Date of grant Vesting period Purchaseprice  Performance target  &F AHAIN REN  SRAIRG ERARE SRERG ERHRS  SRIRG g
REAREZER BSilik L 5 KEE £ERR UmE  MEE  EUEE By EUHE  ENEA B8R THUHE
Other grantees (in aggregate) ~ December 6,2022  3-4 years 1S50.036 per Share  N/A US$279  US$2.89 306,000 - - 54,000 252,000 US$5.55
EtARA (B3 2020512768 345 5lR0.036%T Byl QT9ET 289%T 5555
December6, 2022 3years 1S80.036 per Share  N/A USS279  US$2.89 289,600 - 92,800 83,200 113600  US$5.21
2000512568 3 BR0.036% T TR AI9ET 280FT 5AET
December 20,2022 3 years US$0.036 per Share  N/A US§265  US$2.78 11,400 - - 3,800 7,600 US$4.96
ANNEFRANE 3 Bhooekr  TER 255X 27851 4965
March 20, 2023 3years US80.036 per Share  N/A US84.375  US$4.45 76,680 - - - 76,680 NA
202353520 3 ER0.0365%T TR 43BET 44SET B lii
June 21,2023 3years US50.036 per Share  N/A US8402  US$399 200,880 - 30,960 - 169,920 NA
200356218 3 BR0.036% T TR 4RET 399ET TR
October 10,2023 3years US$0.036 per Share  N/A US§6.50 US§6.50 - 26,040 - - 26,040 N/A
ABEI0AI0E 3% Bhoexr  TER 650X 650 TER
December 20,2023 3 years US80.036 per Share  N/A USS496  US§4.72 - 77,160 - - 77,160 N/A
ABF1RRNE  3F ghomexn TR 46FT AT TER
Total 6,165,460 125672 123,760 209,116 5,958,256
ait

All the Awards granted by the Company as of December 31, 2023
will be satisfied by utilizing the Shares already issued to certain
share incentive award holding vehicles of the Company before the
Listing.

The Company has not granted further Restricted Shares under the
2020 Share Incentive Plan after the Listing Date and during the
Reporting Period. As of December 31, 2023, there are no Restricted
Shares outstanding under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan.

Further details of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan (including the
accounting standard and policy adopted for assessing the fair value
of the share awards) are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HE2023F12A31H » ZARABARENFTE EE S
BIBEA ETRAIE 21T TARRIHE TR BB i
NEIMRRD AT o

R LET AR RRERA - AR ELERIE2020F
Bt BB B — PR T XR B - BE20234F
124318 - RIF2020F Mt BT &I B EHTTAEIN
H IR BIRAD ©

2020 F Bt BN R EIH0E — P15 (B AFHEK
0 B2 A S BE T RN & 5HER R BUR) BN &7

B IRE W25 o

20235 HE « BAER



Other Information

Hh & ¥

PURCHASE, SALE, CANCELLATION OR HBE  HE& S#HfiBOAATIMNLEST
REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED ®%
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, the Company repurchased a total of REMEBAN - NRARREIMARHE (BEH
708,400 Shares at an aggregate consideration (including all the ~ A EBAR ) 26,290,421 7L B T #£51708,400
relevant expenses) of HK$26,290,421 on the HKEX and a total Bty RN R A2 T A BB E (B E B EARXS)
of 362,527 ADSs at an aggregate consideration (including all the 6,981,016 LBl T #£51362,527 Ik E R F5EAR ©
relevant expenses) of US$6,981,016 on the NYSE.

Particulars of the repurchases made by the Company during the six RARNEZE2023F12 A31 HIEAEAELAE
months ended December 31, 2023 are as follows: EIFFBWNT :

HKEX B#32 Fir

Price paid per Share Aggregate consideration

BERRG XS HERK paid (including all the

Highest price Lowest price relevant expenses)

(HKS$) (HKS) (HKS)

No. of Shares B AL E

Trading Month repurchased BaE BRIKE (BfEFREHERERY)

x5 BH IBERAEE (E7t) (#B7) (E7T)

December 2023 708,400 37.85 36.35 26,290,421
2023%12 A

NYSE #3533 Ffr

Price paid per Share Aggregate consideration

MR T HER paid (including all the

Highest price Lowest price relevant expenses)

(uss$) =) e

No. of Shares RN E

Trading Month repurchased BaE RIEE (BEFMEMEBERX)

x5 AH BERGEE (%£7T) (27t) E3D)

December 2023 1,450,108 4.9825 4.57 6,981,016
2023F12 A

m MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
securities listed on the HKEX or on the NYSE during the Reporting
Period.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

On July 13, 2022, the Shares were listed on the Main Board of the
HKEX. The net proceeds from the Global Offering were HK$482.1
million. As of December 31, 2023, there has been no change in the
intended use of net proceeds as previously disclosed in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.
The Company expects to fully utilize the residual amount of the net
proceeds in accordance with such intended purposes within 48
months from the Listing.

Other Information

Hib & ®

Bk EXFIEEESN - MBEHRA - ARRHEAM
MEBARSERE  HERBOARQBRE R IR
AZZ P E AR R S o

RRBEMEREAR

720227 4138 + BRI RFTER ET o 23k
BEFRSHIE R A482 1 AEBTT - H 22023F
124318 * SRR BIRER [ KRR EIRFABRIA
Rg ] — S ENREREFER TR EE
&) o KA AIFERHA L8481 B AR IEZESETEH
BERHE AR FENRE -
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Other Information

Hh & ¥

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had utilized the net proceeds

as set out in the table below:

Purpose

ik

Store network expansion and upgrade

% of

total net
proceeds
PSR
B

RN TR

Amount
of net
proceeds
FERE
FHLH

(HK$ million)

(BEET)

Unutilized
amount

as at

June 30,
2023
A2023 &
6H30H Lt
ABALHE
(HK$ million)
(EBER)

Amount
of net
proceeds
utilized
during the
six months
ended
December 31,
2023
REZE
20235
12A31HLE
~NEAEEA
R
FHEEH
(HK$ million)
(EBER)

HZE2023%12 A31H ' AEECHANMERIAE

Amount

of net
proceeds
unutilized
amount

as of
December 31,
2023
HZ2023%F
12A31H
REAMN
FriSTIE
FHELE
(HK$ million)
(EBER)

PIE BB BERRAR 25% 120.5 - - -
Supply chain improvement and product development
HERERNERME 20% 96.4 - - -
Strengthen our technology capabilities
2R PR RE 20% 96.4 49.4 28.8 20.6
Invest in brand promotion and incubation
RERREHERIEER 20% 96.4 - - -
Capital expenditures, which may include, among others,

acquisitions of, or investments in, businesses or assets

that complement our business
BARX - Ahr B RENE SR E BEMERERNER

NEE 5% 24.2 - - -
Working capital and general corporate purposes
LBEeN—ROARE 10% 48.2 - - -
Total 5T 100% 482.1 49.4 28.8 20.6
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MATERIAL LITIGATION

The Company was not involved in any material litigation or
arbitration during the Reporting Period. The Directors are also
not aware of any material litigation or claims that are pending or
threatened against the Company during the Reporting Period.

APPROVAL OF ANNUAL REPORT

The annual report and the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Reporting Period were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on April 16, 2024.

Other Information

Hib & ®

B AR

R - AATESRAEMEAFARIDE -
REEE - BN TNEEAERRE A EERRK
BB P AT AR ©

BEFERE

R2024F4 A16 8 - K= MIRERMBARE
BEHEREH 2 FEREMGAUBIHRE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR ET RS

KPMG'

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
MINISO Group Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MINISO
Group Holding Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 96 to 241, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the six months then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the six months then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. The matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR RS

FREEITEE
RRETFERERERMNERAE - RREAH
HAEMBRRONEARAEEZNER - ZFHEHE
BABABRBGEMBEREA MDA R ETERE
B BT S ELEREHEBOER -

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Assessment of write-down of inventories

FERERE

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 129.

B E I BEIREMNT 17 RE129BHIETHEE

The Key Audit Matter
BARESE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMETNAREZEE

The Group had inventories of RMB1,922,241 thousand as
of December 31, 2023.

2023612 A31H + EEEEBFEARK1,922,241,000
I o

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Write-down of inventories is recorded
when estimated net realizable value is less than cost. In
determining write-down of inventories, the Group considers
factors such as inventory aging, forecasted product
demands, historical pricing trends and anticipated future
pricing strategies.

FERKARAISTFENBIEE ALK - B8 AI23%E
BEREARAFEEREALR EREFERER @ E5Eg
ZEFERE  BHAERTXR  BEEEBZAREBEZ
EEXRRERZE -

We identified the assessment of write-down of inventories
as a key audit matter because a high degree of
subjective auditor judgment was required in evaluating
the assumptions used to estimate the write-down of
inventories. These assumptions include forecasting future
product demand and estimating selling prices for future
promotional events.

BPEFEEREN G ABRENFE - AR EFERE
PTAMRERR - FEXBAIEENEXHE - 25BXEER
RIEE RSP N FEEIARKREMFT R RIEFEE -

Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter
included the following:

BBl AR Rt FRNBHEF B

e We evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of certain internal controls over the
Group’s process in assessing the write-down of
inventories. These included controls related to the
Group’s estimation of forecasted future product
demand and the estimated selling prices in future
promotional events.

o HFIFHE BEEEEFEFERERRIZAERA D
BB FETERE - B S5EERREREET
VTR IR EE R SK R fh At S B eV ET AR R RO 12 -

e We compared the prior period forecasted future
product demand to actual results to assess the
Group’s ability to accurately forecast.

e HMUKABMEHPRKERTRKEEREE - U
ft BESEEETERARES o

e  We evaluated the Group’s forecasted future product
demand for a selection of inventory items by
considering historical sales trends and any known
changes that would impact future product demand.

s HMBEZEAEHEBE REMARTERRERT
ENENEY M EEEETHEEEBNEHRK

Em®BK
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Assessment of write-down of inventories

HFRAERL

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 129.

BB E B BN 17 RE129EHETBIE °

The Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRPMET W REZEE

e We evaluated the Group’s assessment of the
estimated selling prices in future promotional events
for a selection of inventory items based on historical
pricing trends and the anticipated markdowns in
planned promotional events.

s HBMERBEHEBD N HELTDNTARARE
fh BEREEHETHEEREANAKERSS TGS
(EEIREE

Assessment of impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets related to certain self-

operated stores

FERETEEERBNYE BERRBUREREEERE

Refer to Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 128.

FEHGRE ML 13R 14 R E 128 EHIE 5T IHUE ©

The Key Audit Matter
BARESE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMETNAREZER

The Group had property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets related to self-operated stores of RMB128,879
thousand and RMB998,032 thousand respectively, as of
December 31, 2023.

B Zx2023F12A31H @ EKEMNELEEBENYXE  BE
NEBEEBAREREEED IR/ ARK128,879,000T X AR
#998,032,000 T °

Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter
included the following:

HPIBLA AR TRt FIRMBE R R

e We evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of certain internal controls related to the
Group’s impairment assessment process for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets related to
the self-operated stores. This included controls related
to the determination of the forecasted sales and the
market rentals.

o HMY BEXEMELEHEBHYE - BEREHAR
2 B E R RORERT R IZ BRI B0 & T R ERIE HIlHE
MERVERET BT A MM ET T AR - RIEEER
TE ORI 355 58 R 5 E S AR R RO BIE BE -
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Assessment of impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets related to certain self-

operated stores

AHMERETEEERENYE BERREUAREAREERE

Refer to Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 128.

EREGE AN 18R 14 R E 128 IS ©

The Key Audit Matter
HARETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPMET W REZEIE

As discussed in Note 2(h)(ii), each individual self-operated
store is a separate cash-generating unit (“CGU”). For self-
operated stores where an indication of impairment is
identified, an impairment assessment will be performed by
comparing the carrying value of the self-operated stores
with their recoverable amounts, being the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. If the carrying
value of the self-operated stores exceeds their recoverable
amounts, the Group writes down the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets which belong to the
self-operated stores to the estimated recoverable amounts.
MM F2(n) (i) FTateR - BEEEEARBEBENReEEEN
(REEAEN]) - HBRREFRONELEENS - E5E
BALREEENROEREATKEEE - AAEBERY
ERAREREE(ARSERE)ETREN G - MEEE
WEREEBRAEIKOEE X EXESHELEMENY
% BB LR AEAEEEMRERAMG T WESEE

We identified the assessment of impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets related to
certain self-operated stores as a critical audit matter.
A high degree of auditor judgment was required in
evaluating the significant assumptions used by the Group
in estimating the recoverable amount. Specifically, the
forecasted sales used to estimate the self-operated stores’
value in use were challenging to test as they represented
subjective determinations of future sales trends that
were also sensitive to variation. Minor changes to those
assumptions could have had a significant effect on the
Group’s assessment of the forecasted sales. Furthermore,
specialized skills and knowledge were needed to assess
the market rentals used to estimate the self-operated
stores’ fair value less costs of disposal.

HfEEETEEERENDE  BERREBEREREEE
BURER AP A — AR ENFIE - 51 ESEANRE
BRI R e BN EARER - ZHAAELREELH
& - ARME  HARMTELEEABENRAHEESHED
AREERENE - AREMRRTHARKEEBEHN T HH

B - R BREK - ZEBERVW N EDERYE BEKE
MIBAHEBNFEELEEATE - 1IN BXEREERA#E

AHEMSEERE TR - MmEEEAREERELENQ
AREBERLERA -

For those self-operated stores with an indication of
impairment, we evaluated the Group’s forecasted
sales for a selection of those self-operated stores
by considering historical sales and future operation
plans. We also performed sensitivity analyses over
the forecasted sales for the selection of those self-
operated stores to assess their impact on the value in
use of the self-operated stores.
RETBETRNELENS @ RMEEEELENTE
RISHEFHEITAIAR - Z BBEHERE R RREETT
2 - RFITMEZFEFTHEEENTERHE R E TR
o SHEEEEEENERBENTE -

We involved valuation professionals with specialized
skills and knowledge, who assisted in evaluating the
market rentals used by the Group to estimate fair
values less costs of disposal for a selection of self-
operated stores by comparing the respective market
rental ranges that we independently developed using
external data to the Group’s estimates.

B AABEERERABNEEREEAL - A8
AEEEERN AT EENEEENAABERERE
BCRRS PR M TISE S - 77 3 B I A A SN 2R
BYHETE R TISE S HE RS SEEAMEHEETTHER -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR RS
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chung Kai Ming.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

April 16, 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BlEmE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, except for per share data)

AAREF 25 BREREIEIN

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
#HZE2023F HZ2023F
6A30HIEFE 12A31ALAEAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Revenue YA 5 11,473,208 7,632,467
Cost of sales $HERA 7 (7,030,156) (4,391,428)
Gross profit 7 4,443,052 3,241,039
Other income E A1 A 6 17,935 18,993
Selling and distribution expenses 5% & 7 #5557 7 (1,716,093) (1,363,114)
General and administrative expenses —#& %7 THFI 52 7 (633,613 (357,689)
Other net income E 3 A 8 114,106 21,105
Reversal of credit loss/(credit loss) on trade and other receivables
BoREMERHEEEBERE(FEHE) 1,072 (2,080)
Impairment loss on non-current assets 3F7 84 & R AR 8 (3,448) (4,547)
Operating profit 4% FE 2,223,011 1,553,707
Finance income 81 #1A 145,225 123,969
Finance costs B1 75 A (34,622) (25,202)
Net finance income 81 75U A /548 9 110,603 98,767
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax
DB AR R A AR E N R E - BiR T - 268
Profit before taxation %51 58 2,333,614 1,652,742
Income tax expense FT{5 %7 X 10 (551,785) (396,665)
Profit for the year/period &,/ # R F 7 1,781,829 1,256,077
Attributable to: ST A £ B
Equity shareholders of the Company 7R A BIHEZE TR 1,768,926 1,248,405
Non-controlling interests JE¥2 iz 12,903 7,672
Profit for the year/period &,/ # R F 7 1,781,829 1,256,077
Earnings per share SR 27
Basic earnings per share (RMB) &A% &R 27| (AR T) 11 1.42 1.00
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) &A% #5822 7| (AR T) 11 1.41 1.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEMIFI T RAR A B HREMN —F D - AR B #
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity SIREEAFEAFMBEKRMORSGEBEAM T
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit of the year 24(d)

are set out in Note 24(d).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEmRkEMEERER

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, except for per share data)

(UAAR¥ETF T2 - BREREEN)

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023

HZE2023% BZE20234F
6A30HILFE 12A31BLEAER
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Profit for the year/period & /1 7 1,781,829 1,256,077

Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

BE A E 7 EER IR -

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of foreign operations

BE BN EBIBRRNERL Z58 12 41,198 (32,504)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year/period

F/HRNEM2EKE(FE) 41,198 (32,504)

Total comprehensive income for the year/period &/ Hi 2H W #5 1,823,027 1,223,573

Attributable to: LA™ A L FE{f :

Equity shareholders of the Company 7R AI#EZE AR 1,808,797 1,217,804
Non-controlling interests 3F#2f% 35 19,230 5,769
Total comprehensive income for the year/period F,/EiN 2 iz 458 1,823,027 1,223,573

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEMB e mAr e I S Rk A — 2B ©
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(BARBEFT25)

As at
As at June 30, December 31,
"6 H308 M®12A31H
2023 2023
20234 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T AREBTT
ASSETS &
Non-current assets FERENE &
Property, plant and equipment ¥ « iE & % 13 534,634 769,306
Right-of-use assets {§ & E 14 2,552,600 2,900,860
Intangible assets & &&= 15 25,277 19,554
Goodwill B2 21,069 21,643
Deferred tax assets LTI IBE &= 10(c) 161,617 104,130
Other investments Eth & 16 73,870 90,603
Trade and other receivables & 5 K H i fE U 08 18 74,641 135,796
Term deposits & Hi1E K 100,000 100,000
Interests in equity-accounted investees
AR A A BRA IR E A R A= = 15,783
3,543,708 4,157,675
Current assets B & E
Other investments H 1% & 16 205,329 252,866
Inventories ¥ & 17 1,450,519 1,922,241
Trade and other receivables & 5 [ £ {th & Ui 58 18 1,150,156 1,518,357
Cash and cash equivalents 3% MIR&EEY 19 6,489,213 6,415,441
Restricted cash 5 [R #l37 & 20 27,073 7,970
Term deposits & HA1F 581,715 210,759
9,904,005 10,327,634
Total assets EE#AH 13,447,713 14,485,309
EQUITY #3
Share capital J&7A 24(a) 95 95
Additional paid-in capital EAATE 24(a) 7,254,871 6,331,375
Other reserves Eth & 24(b) 1,106,718 1,114,568
Retained earnings B 174 a% 539,331 1,722,157
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AN EIREE R RS 8,901,015 9,168,195
Non-controlling interests JE#E IR #E % 17,253 23,022
Total equity #5458 8,918,268 9,191,217
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

LIABILITIES &f&
Non-current liabilities IERE & &

AN
I%IT\III

B REAR AR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

As at June 30,
76 A30H

2023
20234
RMB’000
AREFIT

(AARBEFTZ25)

As at
December 31,

®12A31H

2023
20234
RMB’000
ARETIT

Contract liabilities & 48 & 5 46,754 40,954
Loans and borrowings & 7 & {& 3k 7,215 6,533
Other payables £t f& - 5018 22 - 12,411
Lease liabilities FHE & & 23 556,801 797,986
Deferred income #EEU =5 33,080 29,229
643,850 887,113

Current liabilities i & &
Loans and borrowings B & & &£ = 726
Trade and other payables & 5 K H b & {308 22 3,019,302 3,389,826
Contract liabilities & 418 & 5 292,887 324,028
Lease liabilities FHE & & 23 328,933 447,319
Deferred income #EFEU Z5 6,778 6,644
Current taxation ENHATH 1B 237,695 238,436
3,885,595 4,406,979
Total liabilities & 5458 4,529,445 5,294,092
Total equity and liabilities # & & &4 58 13,447,713 14,485,309

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on
April 16, 2024.

Ye Guofu
Executive Director and Chairman

Xu Lili
Independent Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

=5

EE)J%%

’4‘;‘_

BfEm

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

=
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2H%

(AARBEFTZ25)

~ == N /2
e

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(BARBEFT25)

For the
year ended
June 30,
2023

HZE2023%
6A308 LFE
RMB’000

Cash flows from operating activities && EEFTEH LR

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

HZ2023%F

12A31HLAEA

RMB’000
ARMTF T

Cash generated from operations &£ & FT15355 & 21(a) 2,084,952 1,448,307
Income tax paid & 5% (418,922) (350,766)
Net cash from operating activities & ZE ISR &2 1,666,030 1,097,541
Cash flows from investing activities R &FBFIERER
Payment for purchases of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets
BEVE  BERXEARELEEONK (174,147) (264,766)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets
BEME BB KRG EREERGE 5,224 427
Refund of prepayments g B (I B 200,000 -
Payments for purchases of other investments & E E 1% & 814 3 (7,880,763) (2,553,982)
Proceeds from disposal of other investments &z & E (% & F{3 508 7,808,395 2,503,982
Placement of term deposits 77 A 2317 X (761,371) (210,405)
Release of term deposits I2EUE 27 316,542 581,371
Interest income | S IMA 145,225 122,231
Investment income from other investments E 1% & 81 & lizs 42,921 14,281
Payments for investments in equity-accounted investees
PR A ABRE IR B R RIRIR I3 - (16,066)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired
WE-FMELR - MRAEHRE 26 4,568 -
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities & %8 (FTH) /i8R & F8E (293,406) 177,073
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from financing activities B EEEfERER
Proceeds from Hong Kong public offering and exercise of the over-allotment
option, net of underwriting commissions and other issuance costs

ln‘mAiﬁaﬁlJle%

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(AARBEFTZ25)

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
HZ2023F

HZE2023%
6A30HILFE 12A31BLEAER

RMB’000
ARBFT

RMB’000
AR®F T

BENRBE MR RERTRAEIE IR eEAe REMBETRA 469,683 -
Proceeds from capital injection from shareholders, subscription of

restricted shares, restricted share units and exercise of options
BEEE - RERENEARG - BREIMEAR D BAATTEPERFRE 382 168
Repayment of loans and borrowings &8 &5 J2 £ 51 21(b) (206) -
Payment of capital element and interest element of lease liabilities
XEERENERBAMAS B 21(b) (346,008) (236,519)
Payments of repurchase of shares [E§& {5708 32,711) (73,560)
Prepayments for repurchase of shares @E%HXTJJ i‘Eﬁ?ﬂIﬁ (3,693) (87,324)
Dividends paid B % & 24(d) (370,787) (923,664)
Payments of listing expenses relating to Hong Kong public offering
SRHEBEALHABEN EMEY (42,616) -
Net cash used in financing activities B EE T AR & B4 (325,956) (1,320,899)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
RERBLSEYEN (D) F 1,046,668 (46,285)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period
E/BURERELSEN 5,348,492 6,489,213
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held
ExSBHMsReNy S 94,053 (27,487
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period
£/ BMARERRSEEN 19 6,489,213 6,415,441
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BRI s AR A IS RERN —B 5

financial statements.

2023 EiRE o BAER LK



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
I%IT\I:I

BT R MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

1

GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

1.1

General information

MINISO Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on January 7,
2020, as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company completed its initial public offering (“IPO”)
on October 15, 2020 and the Company’s American
Depositary Shares (“ADSs”) have been listed on the
New York Stock Exchange since then. Each ADS of
the Company represents four ordinary shares. The
Company’s ordinary shares have also been listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) since July 13, 2022.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”). The Group is principally engaged in the
retail and wholesale of lifestyle and pop toy products
across the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
other countries in Asia, America, and Europe, etc. The
Company does not conduct any substantive operations
of its own but conducts its primary business operations
through its subsidiaries.

m MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF 1 —REMRFIEMBLATRE (B)
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
1.2 List of principal subsidiaries 1.2 FERBATIRE
Set out below is a list of the Company’s principal TREHAQATR2023F12 A31 HHY
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2023: TEWBATIRZE :

Company name

AL

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and business

ML, S
FEI L]

Registered/issued

and paid-up capital

B #T UK
SR RA

Group’s
effective
interest
(direct or
indirect)
TEEH
BERFI=
(B EE)

Principal activities

MINISO Universal Holding Limited ~ BVI USD50,000/- 100% Investment holding
MINISO Universal Holding Limited ~ HE#B7A#S 50,000% T,/ - 100% HEER
MINISO Global Holding Limited BVI USD50,000/- 100% Investment holding
MINISO Global Holding Limited KBERAES  50,000%7T,- 100% I&EER
MINISO Development Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD10,000/- 100% Investment holding
Limited and wholesale of
lifestyle products
MINISO Development Hong Kong &7 10,000/ 7T,/ - 100% REZBRMEERE
Limited EmitE
MINISO Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD80,100,000/ 100% Investment holding
Limited HKD80,100,000
ZEERREBTBBRAA BE 80,100,000/ 7T, 100% A ER
80,100,000/% 7T
MINISO Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HKD350,000,000/ 100%  Wholesale of lifestyle
HKD350,000,000 products
ZEIEm (BE)ARAF BE 350,000,000/ 7T, 100% HEEREEMIE
350,000,000/ 7T
MINISO (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (i)(i) PRC RMB146,862,372/ 100% Wholesale and retail
RMB139,693,019 of lifestyle products
ZEIER (BMNABREERARNG — PE AR #146,862,3727T, 100% AEREEMBLE
AR#139,693,0197T REE

2023 EHiE o FAIEM
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Notes to the Copsolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

1

Company name

NGIEL

MINISO (Henggin) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd. (ii)

HEEm (BE)EERERLQF)

MINISO International (Guangzhou)

Co., Ltd. (i
ZEIEmBEER (BMN) AR 2 A

MINISO Youxuan Technology
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (i)
AEMEERHE (BM) B R 2 A (i)

Pt. MINISO Lifestyle Trading
Indonesia

Pt. MINISO Lifestyle Trading
Indonesia

MINISO Life Style Private Limited

MINISO Life Style Private Limited

USA MINISO Depot Inc.

USA MINISO Depot Inc.

MIHK Management Inc.

MIHK Management Inc.

m MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

1.2 List of principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and business

MBI, L
I SE 7 30 B

PRC

A

PRC

R

PRC

R E

Indonesia

HE e

India

ENE

United States

xH

Canada

1 —REMRTENBLRRE (E)

Group’s
effective
interest
Registered/issued (direct or
and paid-up capital indirect)
REEH
T, ZTUR ERAIR
BERE =EAE)
RMB10,000,000/- 100%
AE#10,000,0007T, - 100%
RMB65,000,000/ 100%
RMB65,000,000
AER65,000,0007T, 100%
AE#65,000,0007C
RMB10,000,000/ 100%
RMB5,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T, 100%
AE#5,000,0007T
IDR53,289,350,000/ 67%
IDR53,289,350,000
53,289,350,000E/E/& 67%
53,289,350,000E0/E &
INR669,540,570/ 100%
INR669,540,570
669,540,570 E & L,/ 100%
669,540,570ENEE L
USD67,041,441/ 100%
USD67,041,441
67,041,441% 7T,/ 100%
67,041,441 7T
CAD100/CAD100 100%
100/17C,/10007C 100%

E (&)

1.2 FERBLARRE

Principal activities

Brand licensing

IR

Wholesale of lifestyle
products
HEREEmALE

Online sales of
lifestyle products

HEREEm
REHE

Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products

ERREEMILE
FEE

Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products

ERREEMILE
FEE

Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products

AR EEmLE
REE

Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products

HEREEmBLE
REE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF 1 —REMRFTENBARIBE (E)
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
1.2 List of principal subsidiaries (continued) 12 FEMBATZE (B)
Group’s
Place of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment  Registered/issued (direct or
Company name and business and paid-up capital indirect) Principal activities
TEEH
MR R B BTUR BERFI=
PNEIE FEZ L HERA (E#ER )
MINISO LIFESTYLE SINGAPORE Singapore SGD3,000/SGD3,000 100% Wholesale and retail
PRIVATE LIMITED of lifestyle products
MINISO LIFESTYLE SINGAPORE 3/l 3,000%7 M4 7T, 100% HAEREEMALE
PRIVATE LIMITED 3,000%7 I3 T REE
MINISO VIETNAM LIMITED Vietnam VND20,000,000,000/ 90% Wholesale and retail
LIABILITY COMPANY VND20,000,000,000 of lifestyle products
MINISO VIETNAM LIMITED e 20,000,000,00085 /& 0% HEREEMBE
LIABILITY COMPANY 20,000,000,000/# 7 & REE
TOP TOY (Guangdong) Cultural PRC RMBS5,000,000/- 100% Wholesale and retail
Creativity Co., Ltd. (Formerly of pop toy products

known as TOP TOY (Guangdong)
Technology Co., Ltd.) (ii)

BRI (BR)XLAIEARR AE¥5,000,0007T,/- 100% it EEmALE
AR (EA%  BRERAFI NEE
(BHR)BIBARAR)()

Mingyou Industrial Investment PRC RMB2,300,000,000/ 100% Development of
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (i)(i) RMB2,126,000,000 headquarters

building

ZBEZEIE (BM) BB A H AR#2,300,000,0007T, 100% HBEANEFRE

AR#2,126,000,000 7T
Notes: MI5E -
()  These entities are wholly-owned foreign companies (i) ZEE R ARNRBIKMINGBEE R
established in the PRC. Al e

(if) These entities are limited liability companies established (ii)
in the PRC.

2023FEHE o HAES g



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”),
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Material accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below. The Group has consistently applied
these accounting policies to all periods presented
in these consolidated financial statements, unless
otherwise stated.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current accounting period reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The Company has changed its financial year end date
from June 30 to December 31. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements of the Group are
for the six months ended December 31, 2023. The
comparable amounts presented in these consolidated
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023
are therefore not comparable.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that other investments as explained in Note 2(m).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following new and amended
IFRSs issued by the IASB to the financial statements for
the six months ended December 31, 2023:

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

° Amendments to |AS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

° IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts and Amendment to
IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

° Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the six months
ended December 31, 2023 as set out in Note 32.
Impacts of the adoption of the new and amended IFRSs
are discussed below:

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments require entities to disclose material
accounting policy information and provide guidance on
applying the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosure. The Group has considered the accounting
policy information it has been disclosing and determined
that it is consistent with the requirements of the
amendments.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

110

(©

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred Tax related

to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption such that it does not apply
to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences on initial recognition such as
leases and decommissioning liabilities. For leases and
decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred
tax assets and liabilities are required to be recognized
from the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an
adjustment to retained earnings or other components
of equity at that date. For all other transactions,
the amendments are applied to those transactions
that occur after the beginning of the earliest period
presented.

Prior to the amendments, the Group did not apply the
initial recognition exemption to lease transactions and
had recognized the related deferred tax, except that the
Group previously determined the temporary difference
arising from a right-of-use asset and the related lease
liability on a net basis on the basis they arise from a
single transaction. Following the amendments, the
Group has determined the temporary differences in
relation to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. The change primarily impacts disclosures
of components of deferred tax assets and liabilities in
Note 10(c), but does not impact the overall deferred tax
balances presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the related deferred tax balances
qualify for offsetting under IAS 12.

Other than the Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies and the
Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction, the
other two developments do not have a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Basis of consolidation

U

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences
until the date on which control ceases. Intra-
group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealized profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. Non-controlling interests are
measured initially at their proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets at the date
of acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEAREFBEK(E)
(continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (continued) d) HFEEE(E)

112

U

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the period between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related non-controlling
interests and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary is
measured at fair value when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

Interests in equity-accounted investees
The Group’s interests in equity-accounted
investees comprises interests in associates.

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An interest in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate or joint venture that forms part of
the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see Note 2(h)(ii)). At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
reporting period are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

114

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

Interests in equity-accounted investees
(continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate, after applying the ECL model to
such other long-term interests where applicable
(see Note 2(h)(i)).

Unrealized gains arising from transactions with
equity-accounted investees are eliminated against
the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee. Unrealized losses are eliminated in
the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the
extent there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
(iii) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognized immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(h)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the reporting period, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

116

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iv) Business combinations

(v)

Except for business combinations under
common control, the Group accounts of business
combinations using the acquisition method when
the acquired set of activities and assets meets the
definition of a business and control is transferred
to the Group (see Note 2(d)(i)). In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets
is a business, the Group assess whether the set
of assets and activities acquired includes, at a
minimum, an input and substantive process and
whether the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs.

The Group has an option to apply a “concentration
test” that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The optional concentration test
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset of group of similar identifiable
assets.

Asset acquisition

Groups of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are assessed to determine if they are business
or asset acquisitions. On an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, the Group chooses to apply
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is an asset rather
than business acquisition, when substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(v) Asset acquisition (continued)
When a group of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed do not constitute a business, the overall
acquisition cost is allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities based on their
relative fair values at the date of acquisition. An
exception is when the sum of the individual fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
differs from the overall acquisition cost. In such
case, any identifiable assets and liabilities that
are initially measured at an amount other than
cost in accordance with the Group’s policies are
measured accordingly, and the residual acquisition
cost is allocated to the remaining identifiable
assets and liabilities based on their relative fair
values at the date of acquisition.

When acquiring assets by obtaining a controlling
interest in a legal entity that does not constitute a
business as a step acquisition, the previously held
equity interest is included as part of the cost of the
acquisition and is not remeasured.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognized
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

118

C)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives and is generally recognized
in profit or loss.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the
construction in progress.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Apartments
Leasehold improvements

30 years

Over the shorter of
lease term or the
estimated useful
lives of the assets

Office equipment 2 -5 years
Store operating equipment 2 -5 years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years
Moulds 1-2years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values,
if any, are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and accumulated
impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

Amortization is calculated write off the cost of intangible
assets with finite useful lives using straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives and is generally
recognized in profit or loss. Their estimated useful lives
of intangible assets are as follows:

Software 5 years

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

120

@

Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognizes
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets which, for the
Group are primarily staff apartments with lease term
of less than 12 months. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalize the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalized are recognized as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease liability is
initially recognized at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortized cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognized when a lease is
capitalized is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(h)(ii)). Depreciation is calculated to write off the
cost of items of right-of-use assets, using the straight-
line method over the unexpired lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

@

Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognized the change
in consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and presents
lease liabilities separately in the consolidated statements
of financial position.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

122

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

U

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, term deposits,
trade and other receivables).

Other financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss, including other investments,
are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

o fixed-rate financial assets and trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

° 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

° lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

124

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realizing security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 30 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

o existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognized as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognizes an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognized in accordance with
Note 2(t)(iv) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortized cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

126

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

° significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

° significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognized as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

o right-of-use assets;

° intangible assets;

o goodwill;

o interests in equity-accounted investees; and
o investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, an impairment
assessment is performed, where the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. Assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or cash-generating units (“CGU”s)
(e.g. the Group’s individual self-operated stores).

° Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

128

(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favorable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of
an asset.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior periods. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the periods in which the reversals are
recognized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are finished goods which are held for sale,
including the products placed at franchisees’ stores,
and low value consumables to be consumed in the
ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value.

Cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognized.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realizable value is recognized as an expense in the
period the write-down occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognized
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Loss of inventories is recognized as an expense in
the period the loss occurs. For the products placed at
franchisees’ stores, the Group bears inventory loss up to
a pre-determined loss rate as agreed with franchisees.
The Group requires compensations from franchisees
for the inventory losses in excess of the pre-determined
loss rate.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

130

0)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue (see Note 2(t)). A
contract liability would also be recognized if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognizes the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognized (see Note 2(k)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see Note

2(t)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognized when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognized
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see Note 2(h)(i))-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 2(h)(i).

Other investments

Other investments are classified as measured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Changes in the fair
value of the investments are recognized in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortized cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of
new shares are recognized in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see Note 2(v)).
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

132

(@)

Employee benefits

U

(ii)

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.

Contributions to defined contribution plans
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in mainland
China participate in a defined contribution of
basic pension insurance in the social insurance
system established and managed by government
organizations. The Group makes contributions
to basic pension insurance plans based on the
applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated
by the government. Basic pension insurance
contributions are recognized as part of the cost of
assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme
under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong, which
is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The
contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on
minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5%
of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
There are no forfeited contributions for the MPF
Scheme as the contributions are fully vested to
the employees upon payment to the scheme. The
assets of this pension scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contributions to defined contribution plans
(continued)

The Group participates in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans which are
available to all other overseas subsidiaries. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
fund and the Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee
services in the current and prior periods. The
Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Group operates certain equity-settled share-
based compensation plans, under which the
Group receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments of the Group.

The fair value of share awards granted to
employees is recognized as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-based
payment reserve. The fair value is measured
at grant date, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the shares or share
options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares or share
options, the total estimated fair value of the shares
or share options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the shares
or share options will vest.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

134

(@)

Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of shares
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognized
in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or
loss for the period of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognized as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of shares that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to equity). For shares
granted, the equity amount is transferred from
share-based payment reserve to share premium.

If new equity instruments are granted to the
employee and, on the date when those new equity
instruments are granted, the entity identifies the
new equity instruments granted as replacement
equity instruments for the cancelled equity
instruments, the entity shall account for the
granting of replacement equity instruments in the
same way as a modification of the original grant of
equity instruments.

At the date the replacement awards are granted,
the entity accounts for any incremental fair value in
addition to the grant-date fair value of the original
award. The incremental fair value is the difference
between the fair value of the replacement award
and the net fair value of the cancelled award, both
measured at the date on which the replacement
award is issued. The net fair value is the fair value
of the cancelled award measured immediately
before the cancellation, less any payment made to
the employees on cancellation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based payments (continued)

The Group recognizes the effects of modifications
that increase the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement or are otherwise beneficial
to the employee. If the Group modifies the terms
or conditions of the share awards granted without
reducing the number of equity instruments granted
in a manner that reduces the total fair value of
the share-based payment arrangement, or is
not otherwise beneficial to the employee, the
Group nevertheless continues to recognize as a
minimum the original grant date fair value of the
equity instruments granted (unless those equity
instruments are forfeited) as if that modification
had not occurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognizes
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

136

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of each reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous periods. The amount of current tax payable is
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
or received that reflects uncertainty related to income
taxes, if any.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognized for:

° temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or
deductible loss) and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences;

° temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

° those related to the income taxes arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organization for Economic Co-operation and
Development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The Group recognized deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a
deferred tax asset in full, the future taxable profits,
adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences,
are considered, based on the business plans for
individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilized. Such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and reflects uncertainty
related to income taxes, if any. The measurement of
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

138

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if all of the following conditions are met:

° the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities;

o they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

o the same taxable entity; or

o different taxable entities, which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of products and the provision of
services.

Revenue is recognized when control over the product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled in exchange for the satisfaction
of a specific performance obligation, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any sales rebates and sales return.

The Group allocates the transaction price expected
to be received from franchisees or distributors to
different performance obligations based on their relative
standalone selling prices. In particular, the consideration
in arrangements with franchisees and distributors
includes sales-based amounts. Such sales-based
amounts are excluded from the transaction price until
the sales by franchisees have occurred and would be
allocated entirely to the franchise/distributor license fees
as they relate entirely to the Group’s promise to provide
franchisees/distributors access to the Group’s brand
name and trademarks.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for the effects of any significant financing
component if the expected period of financing is 12
months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(®)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

U]

Sales of products

Retail sales in self-operated stores

Revenue from retail sales to customers in self-
operated stores is recognized at the point when
the end customer takes possession of and pays
for the products.

Product sales to franchisees

The Group has entered into a series of agreements
with certain franchisees, primarily in the PRC,
Indonesia and Vietnam, which mainly include
a license agreement and a sales agreement
(collectively “Franchise Agreements”), whereby the
franchisees are licensed to operate the franchised
stores and are authorized to sell, in their own retail
stores, the products that they have purchased
from the Group. Revenue from sales to these
franchisees is recognized at the point when they
obtain the legal title of the product and become
obliged to pay for the products, which is when the
franchisees sell the product to their customers in
the franchisees’ stores.

For product sales to franchisees, the Group has
determined that the franchisees are the customers
of the Group. The franchisees operate retail stores
at their own chosen locations under the framework
set out under the Franchise Agreements. At
inception of the franchise arrangement, franchisees
are required to place a deposit with the Group
which covers the estimated maximum value of
merchandise that their stores may hold throughout
the franchise period, and this amount is reviewed
upon renewal of the franchisee arrangement. The
deposit is refundable at the expiry of the Franchise
Agreement, provided that the franchisees have no
remaining merchandise unsold and have settled
other balances with the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Revenue and other income (continued)

U

Sales of products (continued)

Product sales to franchisees (continued)

The franchisees employ and manage their
own staff to operate the stores and serve their
customers (i.e. end consumers who visit the
stores), and bear the costs associated with the
operation. The franchisees’ retail stores generally
carry a wide range of merchandise that they
exercise discretion to select from the Group’s
array of product categories.

The franchisees are responsible for the placement,
physical custody and condition of the merchandise
that they have selected after the deliveries are
accepted in stores. They also control the physical
access to merchandise in possession through their
operation of the retail stores. In general, the Group
does not have any obligation or practice to accept
any return of unsold products, except for rare
cases such as a latent defect subject to a product
recall or certain limited seasonal items that have
passed their sales season.

The franchisees have the right to price their
merchandise within a specified range of the
recommended retail price set by the Group. They
also have the ability to carry out discretionary
promotional campaigns for their stores or decide
whether to participate in a promotional campaign
launched by the Group. The franchisees can
offer more discounts on selected items beyond
the range specified in discretionary promotional
campaigns, and will have to bear a substantial
portion of reduced margin from lowering the sales
price for such campaigns.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

142

(®)

Revenue and other income (continued)

U

Sales of products (continued)

Sales to offline distributors

The Group has entered into a series of agreements
with certain offline distributors, primarily overseas,
which mainly include a master license agreement
and a sales agreement, whereby the distributors
are authorized to sub-license the operation of
franchised stores in its authorized territory and sell
the products that they have purchased from the
Group to the franchised stores in its authorized
territory. Revenue from sales of products to these
distributors is recognized at the point when the
products have been shipped from or delivered to
the specific locations according to the detailed
agreement between the Group and distributors.
Revenue is recognized based on the contract
price, net of sales rebates.

Online sales

Revenue from online sales to customers, which
are conducted through the Group’s self-operated
online stores on WeChat Mini Program and third-
party e-commerce platforms, is recognized at
the point when the products are delivered to
customers. The Group has also entered into
agreements with certain online distributors, who
are authorized to sell products to customers
through their online stores on various major
e-commerce platforms. Revenue is recognized
when control of the goods has transferred
according to respective agreed terms of delivery,
which is at the point in time when the distributor
obtains control of the distinct good.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Revenue and other income (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

License fees, sales-based royalties and
sales-based management and consultation
service fees

Franchisees and distributors are required to
provide non-refundable upfront payments
in exchange for the franchise right or sub-
license right, which represent primarily their
right to access the Group’s brand name and
trademarks. In addition, franchisees are also
required to pay sales-based royalties and sales-
based management and consultation services
fees for such access. The fixed component of
such royalties is recognized as revenue over the
estimated license period, while the sales-based
component is recognized as revenue when the
related sales occur.

Customer loyalty program

The Group maintains spend-based customer
loyalty programs for MINISO and TOP TOY
brands, under which loyalty points are rewarded
to end customers based on the spend level and
are redeemable in future purchases when certain
criteria is met. Transaction price is allocated to the
product(s) and the loyalty points are rewarded on
a relative standalone selling price basis. Revenue
associated with the price allocation of loyalty
points rewarded is deferred and a corresponding
liability is established in contract liabilities.

The Group has established a premium paid
membership program to cultivate customer loyalty
and encourage repeat purchases. Under such
membership program, customers pay membership
fee in advance for subscriptions of premium
members in a specific membership period, which
ranges from 1 month to 1 year. Premium members
are entitled to special prices for select products
and additional discounts throughout membership
period. The membership fee is recognized as
revenue over the specific membership period.
Unamortized portion of upfront membership fees
received were recognized as contract liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognized as
other income in profit or loss based on the timing
of when the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognized in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

U

Functional and presentation currency

Item included in the financial statements of
each entity in the Group are measured using the
currency that best reflects the economic substance
of the underlying events and circumstances
relevant to the entity (the “functional currency”).
The functional currency of the Company is United
States Dollars (“USD”). As the major operations of
the Group are within the PRC, the Group presents
its consolidated financial statements in Renminbi
(“RMB?”), unless otherwise stated. All values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the reporting
period are translated into the respective functional
currencies of Group companies at the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss and presented within
other net income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the
date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign operations

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences in the
translation reserve relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(W)

Related parties (continued)

o The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

° A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

o The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

2 BEAETHEGE)

(W)

EERE S (&)
X (a) 7 Pt 0 {8 A 45l 3l

g

()42 il

S K
i

!
kol

H@OFAABEAEAZENE
- EX( )(I)EPP)?L{I/\%EE%(E)Z
ERNSABDMAREEAS -

3

e ZER HMBEBEOEMAK
8 - AAKESAKENE AR
HEAREIE A BIRTS ©

—BATHREREKBIEERZER

REXHRALETEZALIRZAT

BOFEKE -

D ERER

REDE  AREMBHERRPRENS

DHIER £ EHRHERAEER

BITRERBAHAREE S XK
B BETTE IR B ANAR BT (4 #8175
BRI PHETE ©

EREZNZEDBTEE G AR
BEZA ﬁEZZDE%Er%%**’“uBE’\JEDﬁD
RIEHE - FPRRRERE - HHEM

sk He HEA“%E@F%ME%E%%H’]K
BELEFEHBRAL - BlERR - @
MFBBERE DR EME LAKE DT
% - BT IAREAR -

2023 ERE o BAIER LEL



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements is included in the
following notes:

° Note 2(t)(i)-product sales to franchisees: whether
revenue from product sales to franchisees is recognized
at the point when the franchisees sell the product to
their customers in the franchisees’ stores

° Note 2(t)(ii)-license fees, sales-based royalties and
sales-based management and consultation services
fees: whether revenue is recognized over time

Note 27 contains information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to measurement of ECL allowance for
trade receivables and fair value of financial instruments. Other
significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Write down of inventories

The Group determines the write-down for obsolescence,
anticipated markdown and low demand of inventories.
Write-down of inventories is recorded when estimated
net realizable value is less than cost. In determining
write-down of inventories, the Group considers factors
such as inventory aging, forecasted product demands,
historical pricing trends and anticipated future pricing
strategies. It could change significantly as a result of
change in the product demands and pricing strategies
due to change in market condition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Impairments of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets related to self-operated stores

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for certain property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets related to self-operated stores,
recoverable amount of these assets needs to be
determined, being the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgment relating to items such as forecasted
sales. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable approximation
of recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as forecasted sales. It is
difficult to precisely estimate fair value less costs of
disposal because market rentals used to estimate the
self-operated stores’ fair value less costs of disposal
may not be readily available. The Group evaluates
market rentals with the assistance of valuation
professionals.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and other
deductible temporary differences carried forward are
recognized and measured based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
periods. In determining the carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to
the operating environment of the Group and requires
significant level of judgement exercised by the directors.
Any change in such assumptions and judgement would
affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be
recognized and hence the net profit in future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

150

(d)

Share-based compensation

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is estimated using a model
which requires the determination of the appropriate
inputs. The Group has to estimate the forfeiture rate
in order to determine the amount of share-based
compensation expenses charged to the statement
of profit or loss. The assumptions and models used
for estimating the fair value of share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in Note 25.

Depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets, are depreciated or amortized
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during
any reporting periods. The useful lives are based on
the Group’s historical experience with similar assets.
The depreciation and amortization expenses for future
periods are adjusted if there are material changes from
previous estimates.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organized by a mixture of both brands and geography. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is

reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented two
reportable segments of MINISO brand and TOP TOY brand

during the year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months
ended December 31, 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEHRE(F)

Other operating segments have been aggregated and Hipga g a Mt 25 Htn3] o 5T A
presented as “other segment”. Business included as Hibn g BE’J%FEE&i%ZBEGHSOHEEF
other segment did not meet the quantitative thresholds for X2023F12 A31 H 1E75{E B WK E R 0] 23R
reportable segments for the year ended June 30, 2023 and DEHE(EPIE - DECERAT -

the six months ended December 31, 2023. The segment
information is as follows:

Reportable segments  Operations A 2D 3P e

MINISO brand Design, buying and sale of lifestyle ZEIEmmhE EREREEMAFRE - B
products B MIHE
TOP TOY brand Design, buying and sale of pop toys TOP TOY & BRI ARG BER
()  Segment results, assets and liabilities () PWBHXE -BEEREE
Information related to each reportable segment is set BRI 2RO HHEEERFINDET - TR
out below. Segment profit/(loss) before taxation is used AT ERFIE, (E18) AR 24 -
to measure performance because management believes FHeEEE *7‘7%%1;@,\%1?5%%‘55%
that this information is the most relevant in evaluating PR AANEE o

the results of the respective segments.

As at and for the year ended June 30, 2023
120236 A30A REZZALLFE

Other
Reportable segments segment

BEE G Hitr 75
Total

MINISO  TOPTOY  reportable
brand brand  segments
28/@%  TOPTOY PES:
Mg Mg ok r=x1)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

External revenues JMBIA 10,861,222 533,367 11,394,589 78,619 11,473,208
Inter-segment revenue 2 #FHA 71 7,946 8,017 367,032 375,049
Segment revenue 2 A 10,861,293 541,313 11,402,606 445651 11,848,257
Segment profit/(loss) before taxation %t 317 i /(& 2,354,357 (20412) 2,333,945 17814 2,351,759
Finance income B/ 75 A 139,577 1,201 140,778 2,969 143,747
Finance costs BI7A 24 (29,751) (4,863) (34,614) ®) (34,622)
Depreciation and amortization 72 [ %4 (302,070) (64,405)  (366,475) (4,339 (370,814)

Other material non-cash items: EtEAFEEER
- reversal of credit loss/(credit loss) on trade and other receivables

~ESREMEKTIBEEEERR/ (FEFR) 1,409 (246) 1,163 1) 1,072

- impairment loss on non-current assets
—JEnBEEREEE (1,433) (2,015) (3,448) = (3,448)
Segment assets 7 HEE 10,573,747 361,397 10,935,144 190,366 11,125,510
Additions to non-current assets during the year* & PR E) & E3E 28" 933,768 37,434 971,202 4,221 975,423
Segment liabilities 238 & & 3,937,784 493,044 4,430,828 43699 4,474,527
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEBHRE (E)

() Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () DEFE - EEREEE)

As at and for the six months ended December 31, 2023
120231231 ERBEZA L~ EA

Other
Reportable segments segment

AR B Htrp s
Total

MINISO  TOPTOY reportable
brand brand  segments
ZRIER  TOPTOY 2R
e -
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSI ARETn AR¥TR ARETT ARETR

External revenues ShEBUTA 7,251,610 368,842 7,620,452 12,015 7,632,467
Inter-segment revenue 7 ZBEI4LA 2,198 4,172 6,370 93,921 100,291
Segment revenue 2 £ A 7,253,808 373,014 7,626,822 105,936 7,732,758
Segment profit before taxation A& 2 571 1,644,839 6,479 1,651,318 2,924 1,654,242
Finance income &4 A 120,064 640 120,704 1,911 122,615
Finance costs BI#A & (23,042) (2,146) (25,188) (14) (25,202)
Depreciation and amortization 17 & [ & (245,796) (31,908)  (277,702) (3,058 (280,760)

Other material non-cash items: HtEAFEEES
- (credit loss)/reversal of credit loss on trade and other receivables

-BREMEKSE(FEEE) / FEFERR (2,791) 988 (1,803) (277) (2,080)
- impairment loss on non-current assets
—¥RPEERERE (3,682) (865) (4,547) - (4,547)
Segment assets FHEE 11,547,381 400,602 11,947,983 191,275 12,139,258
Additions to non-current assets during the period* EiAI5F RN & =8 ngE* 733,107 75,329 808,436 2,941 811,377
Segment liabilities 2 HEE 4,841,577 335870 5,177,447 41,403 5,218,850
Note: Pff=E -
* The additions to non-current assets do not include * EMEEEMNL M BIEEEFEE
additions to deferred tax assets, non-current E - EMBTENFIR - FERBEFEW
prepayments, non-current trade receivables and non- IR R E A IERENIZ E HIE N o

current other investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEHE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of information on reportable (i) FEFRDEBEREEGEHRRPRE
segments to the amounts reported in the financial HERERNEER
statements
For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
HZ=2023F B Z2023F
6H30HIEFE 12BA31HLWENEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ET T
i. Revenue WA
Total revenue for reportable segments 7] 2 ¥} 7 ZRAE U A 11,402,606 7,626,822
Revenue for other segment EHth 75 =F U A 445,651 105,936
Elimination of inter-segment revenue % 38 E U AR (375,049) (100,291)
Consolidated revenue & YA 11,473,208 7,632,467

ii. Profit before taxation %t 515/
Total profit before taxation for reportable segments

A2 E WA EHLREE 2,333,945 1,651,318
Profit before taxation for other segment
HAth o FF AT A 17,814 2,924

Unallocated amounts: KD B &% :
— Expenses relating to construction of headquarters building and
depreciation expense of apartments for use as staff quarters

—BESRKEEREERAY MBEE IR ABITER X (18,145) (1,500)

Consolidated profit before taxation #t A4z & Fl & 2,333,614 1,652,742

2023F EE o BAIER LB



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEHE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of information on reportable (i) FEFRDEBEREGBEHRRPRE
segments to the amounts reported in the financial HEREREER (8)

statements (continued)

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
A6 H30H M12A31H
2023 2023
20234 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR¥F T
iii. Assets E&E
Total assets for reportable segments 7] 2 R 20 & E 425 10,935,144 11,947,983
Assets for other segment Eth 9 &8 E & 190,366 191,275

Other unallocated amounts H A&7 Al & %8
— Assets relating to construction of headquarters building

—RERERRIEEEE 2,078,833 2,107,557
— Apartments for use as staff quarters

—FBEETIEENAE 243,370 238,494
Consolidated total assets &} EE 4258 13,447,713 14,485,309

iv. Liabilities £ &

Total liabilities for reportable segments 7] 2%k 5 #f & (E4E%8 4,430,828 5,177,447
Liabilities for other segment EAh 5 Zf & & 43,699 41,403

Other unallocated amounts E K 7 fd & %8
— Liabilities relating to construction of headquarters building

—BESREREREEAE 54,918 75,242

Consolidated total liabilities & & (&4 %8 4,529,445 5,294,092

L% MINISO e Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(i

Reconciliations of information on reportable

segments to the amounts reported in the financial

statements (continued)
v. Other material items

Finance income B 75U A

Finance costs B 7k 2

Depreciation and amortization #7£ % # 4

Reversal of credit loss/(credit loss) on
trade and other receivables

g5 REMBWFIBEEEERE,
(FEEE)

Impairment loss on non-current assets

FFREBEERERE

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

BRI R HRR P RS

For the year ended June 30, 2023

B Z2023%6 A30H ILF/E

Reportable
segment Other  Unallocated Consolidated
totals segment amount totals

AI2F{HH

At E@HB  ASESE  ABHAH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBFT ARBTT AREBTT
140,778 2,969 1,478 145,225
(34,614) 8 - (34,622)
(366,475) (4,339) (20,353) (891,167)
1,163 91) - 1,072
(3,448) - - (3,448)

For the six months ended December 31, 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEAER

Reportable
segment Other Unallocated Consolidated
totals segment amount totals
CIES 5
At Htta®  ARoBRSHE aftEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥TRT AR¥Tx AR%¥TxR
Finance income B1 7545 A 120,704 1,911 1,354 123,969
Finance costs B %7 (25,188) (14) - (25,202)
Depreciation and amortization #78 & # (277,702) (3,058) (4,481) (285,241)
Credit loss on trade and other receivables
B 5 REMEKFIREEEE (1,803) (277) - (2,080)
Impairment loss on non-current assets
EMBNVE EREBE (4,547) - - (4,547)
2023FERE o HAIER BN



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4

(iiiy Geographic information (iii)

The geographic information analyses the Group’s
revenue and non-current assets by the Group’s
country of domicile and other regions. In presenting
the geographic information, segment revenue has been
based on the geographic location of customers and
segment assets are based on the geographic location of

7 EbERE (F8)

M ER

MWIHERHEARE R AEBRRME i [
DM AEBEHBAMGERBEE - £
S E R - D EBRAERTF M
BUE  momMEENERNEENNE

fE -

the assets.

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
H Z=20234F HZE2023%F
6A30HILFE 12A31HLL<EA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AR¥ET T

i. Revenue Wt A
the PRC (place of domicile) A Bl (FT7ELt) 7,650,821 4,843,127
Other Asian countries excluding the PRC Bk fF B4 E b g5 MBI 2R 1,821,080 1,157,261
America X[ 1,738,058 1,403,936
Europe BUM 151,496 154,737
Others E A 111,753 73,406
11,473,208 7,632,467

ii. Non-current assets EREEE

As at
June 30,

M6 H30H

2023
20234

RMB’000
ARBTIT

As at
December 31,

MW12831H

2023
20234

RMB’000

AR®T T

the PRC (place of domicile) 7 & (BT #EHb) 2,672,426 3,052,525
Other Asian countries excluding the PRC K& /8 B 4Ng E i g2 ISR 121,614 166,623
America == 512,322 644,765
Europe BN 1,859 99,029

3,308,221 3,962,942

Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets, non-
current prepayments and non-current other investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from the sale of
lifestyle and pop toy products through self-operated stores,
franchised stores, offline distributors in the PRC and overseas
and online sales conducted through the Group’s self-
operated online stores on WeChat Mini Program, third-party
e-commerce platforms and through online distributors. Other
sources of revenue mainly include license fees, sales-based
royalties and sales-based management and consultation
service fees from franchisees and distributors.

()  Disaggregation of revenue
In the following table, revenue from contracts with
customers is disaggregated by major products and
service lines and timing of revenue recognition.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

5 WA

AEERWATZREBEBTEMNMGINNEE
JE - EE R TRERHEEEEREERM
BRI AEmR A BBARBEEMEMEF
FME=7EETE LB EBENB B
ERIEEETTRVAR LIHE - RBMARRER
BREKEMBARMAERNEES  ENEE
BV R A B R ENIHE R E IR KA RS
o

) WADEE
ETERT  EPFAORARERERM
RIS AR AN FER S D48

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023

220234 HZE2023%F

6 H30HIEFE 12HA31HIEAEAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT AE¥ETT

Major products/service lines £E&Zd7,~ TRER
- Sales of lifestyle and pop toy products
—EEREEMXARIAEREE

- Retail sales in self-operated stores

—HEETEHE 990,048 1,004,114

- Product sales to franchisees

—RMBEHEER 5,960,518 3,857,191

- Sales to offline distributors

— M TRIEEHE 2,612,742 1,660,860

- Online sales

—BREHE 706,397 355,380

- Other sales channels

—HiHERE 87,530 44,149
Sub-total /N5t 10,357,235 6,921,694

2023F[EHE o BRAIER SIS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

5 REVENUE (continued) 5

(i) Disaggregation of revenue (continued) (i)

- License fees, sales-based royalties, and sales-based management and
consultation service fees

—RiEE ENEEONHEEREREANHENEEREAREE

WA (48)

WA 2% (%)

For the
year ended
June 30,
2023

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

B E2023%F
12A31HIEEA
RMB’000
AR%T T

HZ=2023F
6 H30H IEFE
RMB’000
AREFT

- License fees
—BEE 84,711 37,074
— Sales-based royalties
—ERHENSETRERE 102,089 66,113
- Sales-based management and consultation service fees
—ERHENEERBAREE 500,775 323,182
Sub-total /)5 687,575 426,369
- Others*
—HA> 428,398 284,404
11,473,208 7,632,467
Timing of revenue recognition WA B2
- Point in time
— R (AR 10,619,987 7,195,509
- QOver time
—FERE R 853,221 436,958
Revenue from contracts with customers 5 & #4 A 11,473,208 7,632,467

Note:

*

Others mainly represented sales of fixtures to franchisees
and distributors and membership fee income.

For the year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months
ended December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any
customer with revenue exceeding 10% of the Group’s
total revenue for the respective reporting periods.

1] MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

Wi

Hib =22 EMMBEH NI HEER
EHMEEBRA -

HZE2023%F6A30H IFFE K20234F
12A318IEAEA @ MEAEBREFUK
AEARFE RS B AR E E AU A10% LA
L °



5 REVENUE (continued)

(i

Contract balances

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

5 WAG&E)
(i) BEREER

The following table provides information about TREHTRE TS E LR EYRIEHM
receivables, contract liabilities from contracts with BHEERBER -
customers.

As at As at
June 30, December 31,

M6 H30H M12H31H
2023 2023

2023 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000
AET T ARET T

Receivables, which are included in ‘trade and other receivables’

FEATE 5 N A R U R IE |0 e kIR

— Current portion

—meE S 305,963 426,937

— Non-current portion

—IEREE D = 17,612
Total receivables, which are included in ‘trade and

other receivables’
FTATE 5 K E b U GRIE |0 B U GRIB 42 58 18 305,963 444,549
Contract liabilities & 498 &

— Current portion

—mEE S (292,887) (324,028)

— Non-current portion

—IERENF D (46,754) (40,954)
Total contract liabilities & 4 & (E4£%8 (339,641) (364,982)

As at As at
June 30, December 31,

M6 H30H M12A31H
2023 2023

2023F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT AR¥T T

Contract liabilities are analyzed as follows:

BRBENDITT

— Advance payments received from customers for purchase of goods

— Y EFIEE A maE N KIE 231,636 267,063

— Deferred revenue related to license fees

—BEREERNRLE S 89,498 82,914

— Deferred revenue related to membership fees

—Hg B ERMNETERES 5,215 210

— Deferred revenue related to loyalty points

—Eg BB AHNIEENR 13,292 14,795
339,641 364,982

2023FEHHE o HAES LY



Notes to the Copsolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

5 REVENUE (continued) 5 WA (&)
(i) Contract balances (continued) iy BHEERGE)
The Group requests 20% to 100% advance payment AEEER - FEMETEANIMIRRER
for purchase of goods from certain domestic and NEmAl - BEAEEZN20%E100% K
overseas distributors prior to delivery of goods. This HIBTANRIE - EEEETERRKE
gives rise to contract liabilities at the start of a sales ETEHNBE BEEHEEHERIE LR
order, until the revenue of sales of products recognized REEMHERABBEKRNFTIBEALL

on the corresponding sale order exceeds the amount of
payments received in advance.

Unamortized portion of upfront license fees, membership BENREENREHELD WHHEE
fees received and deferred revenue associated with BEREeERESBENEEREERE
loyalty points were recognized as contract liabilities. BHBE -

Movements in contract liabilities are as follows: EHREENEFHBERNOT -

Contract
liabilities

BRAR
RMB’000

AR¥T T

Balance at July 1, 2022 72202247 A1 H & &k 413,180
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognizing revenue during the year that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year

FRERFONAGNBENRAZBHENABRS (361,522)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving advance payment for purchase of goods

AR E SN RIEMEENS LA FEEMN 231,636
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving payment of license fees

AR REEFEMEENS L8 EILIN 37,840
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving payment of membership fees

AR e B B8FEMEENS LB EILIN 5,215
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of loyalty points

HAg 8RR mELNA QA EIE N 13,292
Balance at June 30, 2023 7$202346 530 H A4 &% 339,641

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognizing revenue during the period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the period

HABRRNAASHEBENRAEHSHEBERD (292,887)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving advance payment for purchase of goods

AU ZIBESYNRNFIEMELEN SN A BEEN 267,063
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving payment of license fees

R EETIREMELN S WA BEN 36,370
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of loyalty points

H& 8D mELHA A BB 14,795

Balance at December 31, 2023
202312 A31 HR & 364,982
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 REVENUE (continued)

(i

(i)

Contract balances (continued)

As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023, contract
liabilities expected to be recognized as revenue after
one year were RMB46,754,000 and RMB40,954,000,
respectively, mainly represented license fees.

Revenue expected to be recognized in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence
at the reporting dates

Contracts within the scope of IFRS 15

As at June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023, the
aggregated amounts of the transaction price allocated
to the remaining performance obligations under the
Group’s existing contracts were RMB108,005,000
and RMB97,919,000, respectively. These amounts
represented revenue of license fees, membership fees
income and revenue associated with loyalty points.
Revenue of license fees is expected to be recognized
in the future from license agreements entered into
with the franchisees and distributors. The Group will
recognize the expected revenue in future over the
remaining licensing period, which is mainly expected to
occur over the next 1 to 10 years as at June 30, 2023
and December 31, 2023, respectively. Membership fee
income is expected to be recognized in the future based
on the subscribed membership period, which ranges
from 1 month to 1 year. Revenue associated with loyalty
points are expected to be recognized when the points
are redeemed or when they expire, which is expected to
occur within 1 year.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

5 WAG&E)

(i

(il

B (E)

B Z 202346 A30H 2023412 A 31
H B E—FRERBBANEGHE
ED R AAREEA46,754,000 T AR
40,954,0007T ' TEAREE -

RENBREBHEHEEFITINEG
2 FRHS I AR R AIA

(BB IEHREZERA) F15RBEARANE
#
7202346 A30H &2023412 A 31
H RBEAESERBEHNSIEEHRT
BHEEZRZERES I AARE
108,005,000t % A R#97,919,000
Lo BESBERETREEBRA g8
BRARESEESBEHNRA - KiE
B ATEET BT AR R B2 AN B P AR IR
BEEFMEET IR PER - ~5E
HE 7 T BR 5 PJ BR N SRR SR TR HR LA
FET 4202346 H30H 202312 A
318 DRIEBERKIEI0FEHAE -
2B BWATRSERKRBEHNE
BH(NF1ERE1F)ER - He 8
DBEBEHBATEBEZSEED H IR
S EIHARS (FERTI — F B ) FER o

2023FEHHE o HAES S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
I%IT\IZI

BT R MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

5 REVENUE (continued)

162

(iv)

COVID 19 impact on revenue

The COVID-19 outbreak has impacted the Group’s
revenue and operations during the year ended June 30,
2023.

During the first half of the year ended June 30, 2023, the
Group’s retail sales and product sales to franchisees
in the PRC were negatively affected by outbreaks of
the Omicron variants of COVID-19. This was due to
governmental control measures and an increased
number of COVID-19 cases. After control measures
were eased in December 2022 and daily life returned to
normal for consumers, the sales of most of the Group’s
self-operated stores and stores owned by franchisees
in the PRC gradually recovered in the second half of the
year ended June 30, 2023. During the year ended June
30, 2023, the sales of most of the Group’s overseas
self-operated stores and distributor-owned stores have
returned to pre-pandemic levels, as more and more
jurisdictions lifted their pandemic control measures.

During the six months ended December 31, 2023, the
Group’s retail sales and product sales to franchisees
and distributors in both the PRC and overseas have
recovered from the impact of COVID-19 pandemic with
a more normalized travel over the world.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

5 WA

(iv)

COVID-19¥fIX AV &
HZ22023%6 A308 IEFE -
COVID-19%& B AL BRI A K& & E

By a8
HERE o

HE2023F6 A30H [FFE Y FH
M AEBEFBRNTEESME NS
P S A ML 75 COVID-19#)Omicron

7 R R BT 9B 248 EF1COVID-19
T2 ANBUEAN - 20224E12 A R it
Mk - HBENBBESRFEN - &
£2023F6 A30R IEFE TFF + K&
EEREMNEEERMNEENHKIED
E&HE - H 2202346 H30H IFF
B BEBRBZHRDERERREREE
PritfEite - AEEGINE &R KRR
JER KBS SHE B B ZIZ B RIKTF ©

#H 202312 A31 8 1L/ A H/ -
BEEEBIRTTH R AEBEREL
TEEBRNAMBAEHEEERERDK
COVID-19%& AR IR1E o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HflA
For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
#HE20234F B ZE2023%F
6A30HIEFE 12A31HL~EA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR¥ET T

Tax refund EF? 2,660 469

Government grants (i) BUS B (i) 8,807 8,091

Income from depositary bank (i) TEsEER1THA (i) 6,468 10,433

17,935 18,993

Notes: Ffi3E

1) Government grants mainly represented unconditional cash (i) BB EEREHTBMG E Bk THE
awards granted by the local authorities in the PRC. TR 1HFIR & 52E) -

(i)  The Company received an initial payment of USD4,690,000 i) ARAFMN2020F12 ARFLRITIE
(equivalent to RMB30,995,000) from depositary bank in 4,690,000t (HHE M A K% 30,995,000
December 2020, in connection with the establishment T0)BVEE R - AR MM EF TR -
and maintenance of depositary receipt. The amount was ZHRBEERFNRERARKAEREET
amortized using the straight-line method over a five-year B o oh 0 HE20239F12 A31 8 1L/ A
arrangement period. In addition, the Company received rebate REIAE  AARKEEFERBITRIIEINER
of fees from depositary bank of USD1,107,000 (equivalent to 1,107,000% 7T (HHE KA AR #7,940,0007T) °
RMB?7,940,000) during the six months ended December 31,

2023.

2023 ERE o BAIER LEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BUHEEE DM

For the For the

year ended six months ended

June 30, December 31,

2023 2023

#HE20234F B ZE2023%F

6A30HIFE 128318 L~EA

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT ARBT T

Cost of inventories (Note 17(a)) F &K AN (Ff£17(a)) 6,859,362 4,292,806

Payroll and employee benefits (i) T & K {& B #&F(i) 819,592 580,801

Rental and related expenses 4 & #0785 % 69,174 80,847

Depreciation and amortization (ji) #T8 K 8 i) 391,167 285,241

Licensing expenses X iE & 249,437 178,241

Promotion and advertising expenses & M & & s 315,976 246,883

Logistics expenses #5752 295,933 203,024

Travelling expenses = jikfi sz 66,544 45,827

Other expenses H ki 312,677 198,561
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution and general and

administrative expenses
HERNA - HE KD HM— MR RITHE 9,379,862 6,112,231

Notes:

(i) Payroll and employee benefits are analyzed as follows:

Salaries, wages and bonus

MEE

() TEREERFIFOT :

For the
year ended
June 30,
2023

H Z=20234F
6 A30HLLFE
RMB’000
ARET T

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

H Z2023F

12831 B ERfEA

RMB’000
ARBT T

e TEREA 657,236 463,208

Contributions to social security contribution plan

S REHFET R HR 75,168 53,977

Welfare expenses

=yl 24,306 17,184

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses (Note 25)

IARERR A E AR (9 S A B9 B 2 (BfdE25) 62,882 46,432
819,592 580,801
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 7 BRMEES WX (E)
Notes: (continued) BiaE - (%)
(i) Depreciation and amortization are analyzed as follows: iy ITEREHESTLOT ¢
For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
#HE20234F B £2023%F
6A30HIFE 12A31HL<EA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) #7% « /= K :& 5 (FizE13) 70,706 59,652
Right-of-use assets (Note 14) {# & ZE (fizE14) 334,193 239,787
Less: amount capitalized as construction in progress
B BRNMERERTIIENS R (33,907) (22,604)
Intangible assets (Note 15) #Ef2 & & (F{3E15) 20,175 8,406
391,167 285,241
(i)  The auditor’s remuneration in relation to audit service provided (i) EZE202346 7308 |FFEK2023412 A 31
for the year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months ended B NEA - e = REH S 5
December 31 y 2023 were RMB1 4,700,000 and RMBQ,GO0,000, )%”E/\Em"4,700,000;5&}\&%9,600,000
respectively. 7T o

2023FEE o ZAIER GH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

8 OTHER NET INCOME 8 HZFEWA
For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
#HE20234F B ZE2023%F
6A30HIFE 128318 L~EA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR¥ET T

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) (i) JFFE 3 U5, (518 ) () 109,095 (15,025)

Losses on disposal of property, plants and equipment and intangible assets

HEME  BELRREBEURELEENER (5,350) (1,632)

Investment income from other investments E fth3% & #)% & z5 42,921 14,281

Scrap income & A 12,137 5,912

Net change in fair value of other investments E 1% & A /o EER S ) H4E (3,692) 14,270

(Provision)/reversal of litigation compensation (i) FFFARSE (B ),/ B (ii) (37,710) 408

Gains relating to cancellation and modification of lease contracts

BRRIERMERTEE & RM KR 193 4,821

Others Efth (3,488) (1,930)

114,106 21,105

Notes: PR -

()  Net foreign exchange gain for the year ended June 30, 2023 () BZE2023F6H30H ILFERFEH WamE
was mainly caused by the appreciation of US dollar against ERHRETHARENAE  BETHE
Renminbi in certain subsidiaries whose functional currency REHNEEBRARE  MERERFEE
are Renminbi whereas its holding net assets were mainly EEEpEETHeRASEEMUARES
denominated in US dollar, which mainly comprised of the R E M0 FEWRIA) E B AETEHE ©
US dollar cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables.

(i)  Litigation compensation for the year ended June 30, 2023 (i) EZ=E2023F6HA30HILFERNFAKEETE
mainly represented the provision made for the lawsuit relating HEHBEBTEERFOFATREE

to illicit competition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
I%IT\I:I

BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

NET FINANCE INCOME 9 KW AFE

For the

For the

year ended six months ended

June 30,
2023

HZE 20234

6 A308 FFE
RMB’000
AREET T

Finance income BA7& Ut A
— Interest income

December 31,

2023

H£2023F
128313 1EA{E A
RMB’000
ARET T

—MBKA 145,225 123,969

Finance costs BA 7R 2%

— Interest on loans and borrowings

—ERRERFE (226) (90)

— Interest on lease liabilities

—HEBENE (34,396) (25,112)
(34,622) (25,202)

Net finance income 875U A JF 58 110,603 98,767

INCOME TAXES 10 FrEH

(@ Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss: () TEAGHERPERANBIE

For the

For the

year ended six months ended

June 30,
2023

H 220234F
68308 FFE
RMB’000
ARET T

Amounts recognized in consolidated profit or loss

EeHBERTERN TR

Current tax EIEi# &

Provision for the year/period 4 iR # 5 557,630
Deferred tax JEAEFH

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 10(c))

s = B ey E A ARG (FI5E10(c) (5,845)

December 31,

2023

HZE2023F
128318 1E~{E A
RMB’000
ARET T

339,409

57,256

Tax expense FT{E5Fi X 551,785

396,665

2023FEHE o BAES U



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

10 INCOME TAXES (continued)

(@)

Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss:
(continued)

1)

2)

3)

Cayman Islands and the BVI

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

Hong Kong

Under the current Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Ordinance, the Company’s Hong Kong
subsidiaries are subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 16.5% on their taxable income
generated from the operations in Hong Kong. A
two-tiered profits tax rates regime was introduced
in 2018 where the first HKD2 million of assessable
profits earned by a company will be taxed at half
of the current tax rate (8.25%) whilst the remaining
profits will continue to be taxed at 16.5%. There is
an anti-fragmentation measure where each group
will have to nominate only one company in the
Group to benefit from the progressive rates.

Mainland China

Under the Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) Law, the
subsidiaries established in mainland China are
subject to a unified statutory CIT rate of 25%.

A subsidiary established in Hengqin New Area of
Zhuhai, a pilot free trade zone in the PRC, met the
criteria for a preferential income tax rate of 15%
prior to December 31, 2022.

A subsidiary established in Guangzhou Nansha, a
pilot free trade zone in the PRC, met the criteria for
a preferential income tax rate of 15%.

A subsidiary established in Guangzhou, the PRC,
is qualified as high and new technology enterprise
and is entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
15% for three years ending December 31, 2024.

@ MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

10 FRiS% (FF)
EARHHBEPRRMBIR « (F)

(@)

1)

2)

3)

MEHBERABERARHS
RERASHSELEBEAREER
ARGH > REERHASRS R
BB ARSESAMIMAME
i o

&
RIBEBEBRITHOCTIB G - AR
AINEBHBEARERERE SN
¥STEERNERFE W AIZ16.5%
R ERBMEBFSH - 20184F
SIAFIERMARS] - AE A E
2EEBEBILERRAEBIRBITR
TH)—H(8.25%) = FE - HerFE
B EIR16 5% - BA BTN
FotEE  MSEEREREER
R —RAREZREREK -

RERt

RIB(EEMBHR ([REMREHR])
E)  EHR B AR BB A F)
A —R2E5%ENEE L EMEMR
RGNS ©

ETFRERBESAREREESH
BB AR - 12022412
AS1BHAIEZHEEFMEHM
KA5% K EAF ©

EHEAHRESAREEMNEDER
YHMBRRNEZHEEMEH
B E15% Mg -

R B E MR I B A R L A
I EELEHE2024F12 A
MBI =EAFE=FEEMSEH
THE15% o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 INCOME TAXES (continued)

(@) Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss:
(continued)

4)

5)

6)

7)

United States

Under United States Internal Revenue Code,
the subsidiaries established in United States are
subject to a unified Federal CIT rate of 21% and
variable state income and franchise tax depends
on which state the subsidiaries has nexus with.
Most of subsidiaries in United States are operated
in the states of California and Texas, and thus they
will be subject to state income tax rate of 8.84%
and 0.75%, respectively. Other subsidiaries in
United States mainly are subject to state income
tax rates ranging from 4.9% to 11.5% depending
on the location of the operation.

Indonesia

The subsidiary incorporated in Indonesia is subject
to the prevailing statutory tax rate of 22% on
taxable income.

India

Under the Income Tax Act 1961 enacted in India,
the subsidiary incorporated in India is subject to
a profit tax rate of 29.12% from fiscal year ended
March 31, 2023 and onwards.

Canada

Under the Canadian federal and provincial tax
rules, the subsidiaries incorporated in Canada are
subject to the combined Canadian federal and
provincial statutory income tax rates ranging from
23% to 31% depending on the location of the
operation.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

10 FriS%i (iF)
() EAPHERPERRHBIE < (8)

4 xH
RIRCEEBEATYOE) - FEEBFR
SLRIBY B A BB IR 21 % B R 2R B
MEE—BEFB SRS R - PEM AT
ST AR A BUR A M B 2 )
WRE N A A B - ERA KR Z B
X BVEBE DN FAE B Sa )N R 15 Fe B H
MBS - BIZEMRBEARED 5
18.84% [2.0.75% H Bt R 04X )1 AT
1S58 - EBIMEMMBAREEZR
BIBEE TR - BHN4.9% =
11.5% M TSR K o

5) EHERAE
R ENE e Sn s Ak 32 HO BT /B A A
KB SR T A B IR IRIT A E R X
22% B o

6) EHE
R EEMA1961 F(FTER
JEY - RRENE s A S B9 BT B A B
HE2023F3 31 HILHHEE
#B7B1£229.12% Tt KB ANFIIS S ©

7) EKX
BIENEREBFETIE) - 50
ERFMA B AR ZEREE
SR RE 0 1223% = 31% A0
ERBHABERE AT ST R
BRANFTISTR ©

2023 ERE o BAIER LEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

10 INCOME TAXES (continued) 10 FriE®i (&)

(@) Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss: (@)
(continued)
8) Singapore
Under the Income Tax Act enacted in Singapore, the
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore are subject to
a tax rate of 17% on its chargeable income.

9) Vietnam
Under the Law on Corporate Income Tax enacted in
Vietnam, the subsidiary incorporated in Vietham is
subject to a tax rate of 20% on its assessable income.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b)
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

EAHREPERHIE (&)

8) FHMEK
BRI B HECATERDE) - B
703 S M AR S BO BT B A R A FE AR
TRFTISTHEA17% °

9) M@
RAE R B (R EATERIE) -
P A S BB B A R RO FERR
TET1S T & £220% °

BB AR E TR X EE R
Bz ERHR

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023

#HZE20234F HZE2023F

6 A30HIEFE 12831HIEANEA

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AR T

Profit before taxation %% il ;& 2,333,614 1,652,742
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates applicable to

profits in the jurisdictions concerned
BAA BN RETR (KERAZEEREANABNHXE) 566,955 394,856
Tax effect of share-based compensation expenses (Note 7(j))
Bt e 3B S R IE 22 (BTE7() 15,435 11,401
Tax effect of other non-deductible expenses
Hi AR AR & 13,666 7,310
Effect of preferential tax treatments on assessable profits of certain

subsidiaries (Note 10(a)(3))
BEVRFBHE THEB LR ERTABNZE (K:10()@Q)) (42,739) (10,756)
Tax effect of additional deduction on research and development costs
BIMIBRT B ANTIAT E 4,217) (3,476)
Tax effect of exempted and non-taxable income
R EFEERTM DM ANTRIET & (7,421) (12,481)
Withholding tax on income of non-PRC resident entities derived from

mainland China
FEH B ROFERE P B A S B TR - 4,095
Effect of unused tax losses not recognized/(being utilized)
AR/ (BER) AERAREBENTE 22,956 (8,002)
Effect of deductible temporary differences (being utilized)/not recognized
(BER)/ REITNHREREZ2NTE (12,850) 13,718
Actual tax expenses B ¥ i 185 5% 551,785 396,665
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement§
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

10 INCOME TAXES (continued) 10 FrE®i (&)
() Movement in deferred tax assets () EEMEBEEES
The components of deferred tax assets recognized in RERE B S AR M R R iR R IR £ I8 &
the consolidated statement of financial position and the EAKE D RRERAEDFE 500
movements during the reporting periods presented are T
as follows:

Loss from
waiver of
intercompany
Unused  Intra-group Credit receivables of
tax  unrealized lossand discontinued  Right-of-use Lease
losses profits ~ impairment  operations assets Liabilities Others

BRCAL

HEREN
RER REnN  GEER  LWEEK i
HEER  ARRAE RAE  REER KE  HEAR St fi
RMB'O0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'O0  RMB'00  RMB00  RMB00  RMB'00
ARBTT  ARMTR  ARMTZ  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR AREf:R

Deferred tax assets arising from:

RETHRENELHEER

AtJuly1,2022 202257 A1R 31,696 11,097 41,573 61,548 (117,319) 127,421 (1,684) 154,333
Charged to profit orloss B 8:4%9) 11,944 3519 675) 9543 (11,976 0,027 5,845
Exchange rate difference EX =2 239 111 628 - (162) 175 448 1439
At June 30, 2023 720236 A30H 23,436 23,152 38,682 60,873 (107,937) 115,620 7,791 161,617
Charged to proft or loss FMEZ AR (392) 4,781 (1,574) (54,048) 8,770 (6,563) (2,230) (57,256)
Exchange rate difference EEZE (31) (113) £} - 363 (370) (153) (231)
At December 31, 2023 72023512 A31H 23,013 27,820 31,181 6,825 (98,804) 108,687 5,408 104,130
The Group only recognizes deferred income tax assets REEEBERRRAIEE RS FEA
for cumulative tax losses if it is probable that future FAZRSHIAEER - TR AR
taxable amounts will be available to utilize those tax EIEERELEMESREE °

losses.

2023 ERE o BAIES LA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

10 INCOME TAXES (continued) 10 FrB%i (&)

172

(d)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect
of the following items, because it is not probable that
future taxable profit against which the losses can be
utilized will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction.

(d REINELEHREEE
AEIETR IR B B R R BA A IR B 1T
R RARHERBEER TARES
BB T A 85 B0 R R PR ER B A
e

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

M6H30H MW12H31H

2023 2023

2023 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T AR¥ET T

Deductible temporary differences AJ IR ERF 4= & 49,375 54,416
Cumulative tax losses 25t Hi18/E518 751,256 774,584
Total &&F 800,631 829,000

Tax losses carried forward

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was
recognized will expire as follows:

) #HEHIAEE
ARERELCHAEENRBBED G
AT

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
R6H30H MW12H31H
2023 Expiry date 2023 Expiry date
20234 Pl 20234 Z|HA R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR¥F T
Expire /A 361,627 2024-2044 432,759 2024-2044
Never expire X Hi H 389,629 341,825

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was
recognized are related to subsidiaries that were
established in recent years, which are not expected to
derive sufficient taxable profits in the foreseeable future
before unused tax losses expired.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 INCOME TAXES (continued)

() Uncertain tax position

The Group evaluates whether it is probable that tax
authority will accept the tax treatment for each uncertain
tax position (including the potential application of
interest and penalties) based on the technical merits,
and measures the unrecognized benefits associated
with the tax positions. As of June 30, 2023 and
December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any
significant unrecognized uncertain tax positions. The
Group does not anticipate any significant increase to
unrecognized tax benefit within the next 12 months.
Interest and penalties related to income tax matters, if
any, is included in income tax expense.

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share has been
based on the following profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders and weighted-average number of ordinary
shares outstanding.

(i) Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
(basic):

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

10 FriS®i ()
() TERENRBEMRR

REEF AR E S A LR B
32 B R R A AR B B A5 B
B (BREANEMERNEERA) A
BEBBAANEBORERN D - BHE
202346 A30H 2023412 318 -
AEBNFETARERNERNTHEE
WFFARI, o AN SR B TR A AR ME RIS A it
RARKA2{E A AT SEEILM - BPFF
M= E AN S R FIR (A )FT AR
BHAX °

11 BREF
@ ‘EBRELRF
SRERRFEE HERAT E @K
AR B I 415 B8 2 B 77 E 1 3 AR 0 N
FHHE -

() EHBERRREGFEES) :

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

B Z2023F
12831 HIEA@EA

RMB’000
AR T T

For the
year ended
June 30,
2023

H Z=20234F
6 A30H LFE
RMB’000
ARET T

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company

AR RE TR I R (R )
Less: /A

1,768,926 1,248,405

Allocation of undistributed earnings to holders of unvested

restricted shares

BRAREBXREIRNDFFEANRDIKEH

(424) -

Profit used to determine basic earnings per share

FAMEE TE BRE AR B A K

1,768,502 1,248,405

2023F EE o RAIER L



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

me

BT R MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR45BIBLBASN -

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(@)

HAR®BTTE5)

Basic earnings per share (continued)

(@)

11 SRER (&)

BREASEF (&)

(i) Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (i) TBERBRREGIEER) : (E)
(basic): (continued)
The unvested restricted shares granted to RIE2020F 10 BB ET 8 (R P EE
employees under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan 25)1%F B THARREB R IR GD
(see Note 25) are entitled to non-forfeitable SFEHNERES N
dividends during the vesting period. For the B st ERERRBINE - »
purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, FRLZARBIEREBRHZ
the numerators are thus be adjusted for the EAREDL L B R SR B AR ) FE(E R 0k
undistributed earnings attributed to these unvested BAVEL AR - WWERSIREFR
shares in accordance with their participating EEEPER -
rights, which have not been recognized in profit or
loss.

(i) Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (i) TBERMEFIE(ER) :
(basic):

HE2023F6 A30HIEFEE R
20234912 A31 H 1L/~ 1A A 3%

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,2483,320,377 and 1,244,926,865 in issue for

the year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months THERERINETFHED A
ended December 31, 2023, respectively, were 1,243,320,377 1% }21,244,926,865
calculated as follows: f% - FFET -

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
#HZ2023%F

12831 HIEEA
Number of

shares

Jiz 47 B4 B

HZE2023F

6 308 FFE
Number of
shares

0 81 H

Issued ordinary share at the beginning of the year/period

RE /BT SRR

Effect of shares issued relating to Hong Kong public offering
and exercise of the over-allotment option

1,202,646,619 1,244,854,689

HEBNFEE BRI TEARRNETRONTE 40,181,685 -
Effect of shares released from share incentive plan (Note 25)

R (D RBN =T 8138 IR 2 & (PH7E25) 2,878,812 281,729
Effect of repurchase of shares (Note 24(b)(v))

B {0 B B Ay 5228 (Fff 5224 (b)(v)) (2,386,739) (209,553)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

LB AR pNRE B 1,243,320,377 1,244,926,865

VL] MINISO e Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all potential
dilutive ordinary shares.

For the year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months
ended December 31, 2023, the calculation of diluted
earnings per share were based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB1,768,926,000 and RMB1,248,405,000 and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,250,545,116 and 1,251,635,862 shares, respectively,
after adjusting by the dilutive effect of share incentive
plan, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares, basic
E BRI 8 (BR)
Dilutive effect of share incentive plan (Note 25)

RSB Rt S EEE R 2 (M7E25)

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

11 SRER (&)

(b)

BREERF
BREERNIRROEERMA AEE
BN EER - BBRITENERRD
IEFABEESL -

HZE2023F6 A30H IFF/E X2023
F12A31HIEAEA  ERESR
R TR B AR N B R A% IR E (R
TMARM1,768,926,000T M AR ¥
1,248,405,0007T * JA K @A hniE F15
£11,250,545,116[% % 1,251,635,862f%
ATE  WERGBERENE ST AR
BT

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023

H Z=20234F HZE2023%F
6 A30HIEFE 12A31HIENEA
Number of Number of

shares shares

(0 818 Ji% 47 B H

1,243,320,377 1,244,926,865

7,224,739 6,708,997

Weighted average number of ordinary shares, diluted

EB N8 (H58)

1,250,545,116 1,251,635,862

2023F[EHE o RAIER S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

12 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ 12 Hib2mWz (E518)
(LOSS)

For the year ended June 30, 2023
EZ 20236 A30H IEFE

Before-tax Tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount

#E (%),
AT Mt BRRRSE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT  AREIT

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries

HMEGINHT B A B TSR A IE H =58 41,198 = 41,198
Other comprehensive income Eth & E W %5 41,198 — 41,198

For the six months ended December 31, 2023
EZ2023F12A31 A IEA~EA

Before-tax Tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount

BiE (FIx%),/
BATE 8 Gk BRBIE S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PN ARBFT _ ARBFT

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries

BREGINITB R R M SRR e K =58 (32,504) - (32,504)
Other comprehensive loss £ fth % &8 (32,504) - (32,504)

IW45] MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - WERRE

Store
Leasehold Office  operating Motor Construction
Apartments improvements equipment vehicles in progress

NE HEBEEE i & BE  HEEIRE
RMBOOO ~ RMBO00  RVBOOD  RMBOD  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD  RVBODO  RWBONO
ARETT ARETT ARBTIT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR

Cost: A

At July 1,2022 #2022 7 A1H 242,639 168,120 51,043 46,791 2,347 26,409 58,804 596,153
Acﬁ%uisition of a subsidiary (Note 26)

WiE—FMBAR (Wi26) - 451 888 - - - - 1,339
Additions /A E = 8,710 7,348 5,348 675 19,585 155,331 196,997
Transfer from construction in progress

BERTEEA = 36,419 - - - - (36,419) -
Disposals (1% X - (75,541) (5,611) (5,191) - (253) (2,084) (88,680)
Exchange adjustments [& %% - 9,112 380 (225) 67 - 757 10,091
At June 30, 2023 720236 A30H 242,639 147,271 54,048 46,723 3,089 45,741 176,389 715,900
Additions A E - 18,980 9,177 10,479 306 11,607 254,784 305,333
Transfer from construction in progress

BERIREA - 75,184 - - - - (75,184) -
Disposals {11 - (12,467) (791) (6,830) - (6,445) - (26,533)
Exchange adjustments [ & % - (2,685) (596) (541) (26) - (504) (4,352)
At December 31,2023 #2023F12 318 242,639 226,283 61,838 49,831 3,369 50,903 355,485 990,348
Accumulated depreciation: R5t17% :

At July 1, 2022 20227 A 1H (7,538) (56,016) (24,035) (26,651) (1,456) (17,225) - (132,921)
Charge for the year F R 1} (8,712) (24,270) (10,981) (4,690) (479) (21,578) - (70,706)
Written back on disposals (t} £ [z - 44,866 3,058 3,857 - 63 - 51,844
Exchange adjustments [ 5% - (3,084) (887) 587 (18) - - (3,402)
At June 30, 2023 7420236 A30H (16,250) (38,504) (32,845) (26,897) (1,949) (38,740) - (155,185)
Charge for the period £/ i (4,357) (39,815) (5,530) (1,206) (232) (8,512) - (59,652)
Written back on disposals (i £#5[) - 9,226 322 3,866 - 6,100 - 19,514
Exchange adjustments [&&;5% - (270) 510 236 14 - - 490
At December 31, 2023 782023512 A31H (20,607) (69,363) (37,543) (24,001) (2,167) (41,152) - (194,833)
Impairment: {8 :

At July 1, 2022 #2022 7 A1 H - (38,716) (1,422) (3,200) - - - (43,338)
Addition A E - (5,640) (591) (1,017) - - - (7,248)
Written back on disposals (t £ e - 24,875 - 1,140 - = - 26,015
Exchange adjustments [ &% - (2,031) 197 324 - - - (1,510)
At June 30, 2023 720236 A30H - (21,512) (1,816) (2,753) - - - (26,081)
Addition A E ) - (3,459) - (1,088) - - - (4,547)
Written back on disposals £ [ - 2,701 - 1,167 - - - 3,868
Exchange adjustments [ % % - 351 158 42 - - - 551
At December 31, 2023 72202312 A31H - (21,919) (1,658) (2,632) - - - (26,209)
Net book value: & :

At June 30, 2023 720236 A30H 226,389 87,255 19,387 17,073 1,140 7,001 176,389 534,634
At December 31, 2023 782023512 A31H 222,032 135,001 22,637 23,198 1,202 9,751 355,485 769,306
The Group had leasehold improvements and store operating 720236 A30 H 2202312 A31H » &N&E
equipment related to self-operated stores amounting to EEREE S EAENEEEERERPIEE
RMB71,990,000 and RMB128,879,000 as at June 30, 2023 & RED B AARET1,990,0007T & A RHE
and December 31, 2023, respectively. 128,879,0007T ° =

2023 ERE o BAIER LN



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14 EREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by RRAEEN ARSI S B AEEERDFE
class of underlying asset is as follows: xR INE

Warehouse Land use
Property  equipment righ:r Total
L/ES BERE LIHEAE CE

RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTIT ARETR
() (il

Cost: A7 :

At July 1, 2022 72202247 H1H 1,013,124 10,648 1,782,410 2,806,182

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 26)

Yok — KB A &) (Fid3E26) 10,467 - - 10,467

Additions /~NE 718,845 143 - 718,988

Derecognition #2132 (620,305) - - (620,305)
Exchange adjustments [ & ;% 35,218 = = 35,218

At June 30, 2023 1420236 830H 1,157,349 10,791 1,782,410 2,950,550

Additions ~NE 622,913 - - 622,913

Derecognition #%-1#5R (113,564) (143) - (113,707)
Exchange adjustments [ & 3% (14,294) - - (14,294)
At December 31, 2023 722023F 12 531 H 1,652,404 10,648 1,782,410 3,445,462
Accumulated depreciation: 5H37E :

At July 1, 2022 74202247 A1H (394,540) (3,844) (30,531) (428,915)
Charge for the year FRX ) (285,393) (3,592) (45,208) (334,193)
Derecognition #X |F#:2 384,771 - - 384,771

Exchange adjustments [ 3 Ji £ (11,660) - - (11,660)
At June 30, 2023 202346 A30 H (306,822) (7,436) (75,739)  (389,997)
Charge for the period % A3z H! (215,399) (1,784) (22,604)  (239,787)
Derecognition 4% | &R 79,886 48 - 79,934
Exchange adjustments [& & 3% 5,248 - - 5,248
At December 31, 2023 72202312 531 H (437,087) (9,172) (98,343) (544,602)
Impairment: jE{E :

At July 1, 2022 74202247 A1H (34,678) - - (34,678)
Reversal # o] 3,800 - = 3,800

Derecognition #X |F#:2 24,439 - - 24,439

Exchange adjustments [ & §5%& (1,514) = = (1,514)
At June 30, 2023 74202346 H30 H (7,953) - - (7,953)
Derecognition #% |- &2 7,858 - - 7,858
Exchange adjustments [ & ;5% 95 - - 95
At December 31, 2023 72202312 531 H - - - -
Net book value: BREFE :

At June 30, 2023 72202346 A30H 842,574 3,355 1,706,671 2,552,600
At December 31, 2023 72202312 531 H 1,215,317 1,476 1,684,067 2,900,860
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 14 FRAEEE (&)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognized BBz AR E S BN IE B 2T
in profit or loss is as follows: T s

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023

HZE2023F HZE2023F

6 A30HIEFE 12831HIENEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AR¥ET T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:

ZEREERRSSNEREEENEERR

Property ¥1% 285,393 215,399
Warehouse equipment & E & 3,592 1,784
Land use right = b FA & 45,208 22,604

334,193 239,787
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9) & & E&IF £ (FI7£9) 34,396 25,112

Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases with
remaining lease term ending on or before June 30/December 31

ERAS HATHE R RISATHERR6 A30 8 12 A31 Bk 2 A& RH

H it S8R < 15,322 13,729
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
At AHEBEFENATEAERNRK 18,614 24,802
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity HERS ML ERNFENHEEAENER Y
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Note 21(c) and Note o B KTE21 (c) AP 5E23 -

23, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

:ﬂ?m,ji%ﬂEEMﬁ

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR45BIBLBASN -

14 RIG
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(il

(iv)

HAR®BTTE5)

HT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Property - right-of-use assets

The Group leases properties for its self-operated stores,
warehouse storage and office space. The leases of self-
operated stores and warehouse storage typically run for two to
ten years. Leases of offices space typically run for a period of
two to five years.

As at June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023, right-of-use
assets related to leased properties for self-operated stores
amounted to RMB585,231,000 and RMB998,032,000,
respectively.

Variable lease payments based on sales

Some leases of self-operated stores contain variable lease
payments, which typically range from 1% to 18% of the annual
or monthly sales that each store makes in excess of a certain
breakpoint predetermined with landlord. These terms are
common in retail stores in countries such as United states,
Canada and Singapore where the Group operates.

Warehouse equipment - right-of-use assets
The Group leases warehouse equipment, with lease terms of
two to three years.

Land use right

The Group acquired the land use right of a parcel of land
located in the PRC during the year ended June 30, 2022
through the acquisition of a subsidiary, with an original lease
term of 40 years.

Rental deposits

The refundable rental deposit itself is not part of the lease
payments and is in the scope of IFRS 9. Therefore, the rental
deposit should be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the initial fair value and the nominal
value of the deposit is an additional lease payment made by
the Group and it is included in the measurement of the right-of-
use assets.
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14 ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁé (&)

i:
@

H4

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

ME—-EREEE

AEBAHEEZE  BAERNASHEEYD
¥ - BEERERENEENBRTER2E105F -
MASRNEEREE R2E55F -

7202346 H30H 2023512 A31H - B
BEHEYXRABNEREEESRAAR
¥ 585,231,000 & A 998,032,000 °

HNHERM A Z#HERNR
ETELENENESTEESMNZK
%EL%;\EAKEﬁi?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’ﬁmﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬁ
BABENR DAL EENT1%E18% -
%ﬁtﬂ%%’ﬁﬁﬁﬁgmﬁﬁﬁﬁmil MER
AR ERRNEEERRER -

RERB-EAEEE
AEEBERERE  HHR2EIF o

TR

REZE2022F6 A30H ILFE - AEEBB
WE—KMEARES TRRHEN %L
A I E AR - REHIR40%F -

HEZEe

RENHEREAF TEREENRN—
o - mEBRCERMBREED) E95
Mg E - Fit - HERE EEVIRERRR
AREBEE - ANEBEEREZEE
BzHENEZRERNEEMOBEIMEEN
B BEHIIAEREEENESR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 B &EE

Software
;i
RMB’000
N

Cost: A :
At July 1, 2022 72202247 H1H 111,418
Purchases f# & 2,450
Exchange adjustments & & % 61)
At June 30, 2023 74202346 H30 H 113,807
Purchases & 2,689
Exchange adjustments [E & ;g% (68)
At December 31, 2023 732023412 31 H 116,428

Accumulated amortization: 25T#sH :

At July 1, 2022 202247 A1 8 (67,615)
Charge for the year X (20,175)
Exchange adjustments & & & @)
At June 30, 2023 74202346 H30H (87,797)
Charge for the period B3 (8,406)
Exchange adjustments [& & Jj & 54
At December 31, 2023 7202312 A31H (96,149)

Impairment: jE{E :

At July 1, 2022 R202247 A1H (737)
Exchange adjustments & & i % 4
At June 30, 2023 74202346 H30 H (733)
Exchange adjustments [& & Jf & 8
At December 31, 2023 2023412 A31H (725)

Net book value: BREEE :

At June 30, 2023 7202346 A30H 25,277
At December 31, 2023 7202312 H31H 19,554
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e SRR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

16 OTHER INVESTMENTS

16 HRE

As at
June 30,
"6 H308

2023
20234
RMB’000
AR T

As at
December 31,
M12H31H
2023

20234
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

Financial assets measured at FVTPL:
UAABEAEEESHHAEHERNEREE .
Non-current JEiE)

— Investment in an unlisted limited partnership enterprise

- LEMBEREBLERE 73,870 90,603

Current &)

— Investments in trust investment schemes (53t &1 2R E 205,329 202,866

- Investment in a wealth management product ¥ 871 & 1% & - 50,000
205,329 252,866

In December 2020, the Group invested in a trust investment
scheme (“Trust Scheme A”) established and managed
by a trust company as the trustee with the principal of
RMB100,000,000 and an initial investment period of within
one year. The Group subsequently extended the investment
period to November 2023. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Trust Scheme A is designated to make the majority of
its investments in debt securities, while the principal and
return of the investment are not guaranteed. Fair value of
this investment as of June 30, 2023 was estimated to be
RMB101,600,000. As of December 31, 2023, the above
investment in Trust Scheme A has been redeemed.

In July 2021, the Group invested in another trust investment
scheme (“Trust Scheme B”) established and managed
by a trust company as the trustee with the principal of
RMB100,000,000 and an initial investment period of within
one year. The Group subsequently extended the investment
period to January 2024. Pursuant to the agreement, the
Trust Scheme B is designated to make the majority of its
investments in debt securities, while the principal and return
of the investment are not guaranteed. Fair value of this
investment as of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023 was
estimated to be RMB103,729,000 and RMB101,437,000,
respectively.
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R2020F 12 A » ZEBRER —REFLAA
(EAZTEN) BRI M EBNETREE ([
FEETEIA]) - EAX€ A AKRY 100,000,000
TC IR ERR A —FUA - BEERAEE
BIEHRIER £2023F11 A - RIBZH
# o EETEAR ERBOBREREBSES -
MEEMARE REMAERE - ZREHZE
20236 A0HM AR BEMGTAARE
101,600,0007T » #£2023F12H31H * £
S FERTSIAMIREEARIED -

R2021F7 8  AEBEER—KREZLL
A (EASTA)RIAEENS —HET
®EFE ([E55:t28IB)  EAGAARE
100,000,0007T * ¥R EBIPR B —F LA o
BEEAEE G EHRERE2024F1 7 - 1B
Bz - BT 2 BEEASD RERER
B MRENAE R EIIRAERE - ZHE
#H 2202346 A30H &2023F12 A31 HAA
REEGF DRI AARE103,729,0007T & A
R #101,437,0007T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 OTHER INVESTMENTS (continued)

In July 2023, the Group invested in another trust investment
scheme (“Trust Scheme C”) established and managed
by a trust company as the trustee with the principal of
RMB100,000,000 and an initial investment period of within
six months. Pursuant to the agreement, the Trust Scheme
C is designated to make the majority of its investments in
debt securities and funds, while the principal and return
of the investment are not guaranteed. Fair value of this
investment as of December 31, 2023 was estimated to be
RMB101,429,000.

On December 26, 2023, the Group invested in a wealth
management product managed by a bank in the PRC, with
the principal amount of RMB50,000,000, which is with an
original maturity of 35 days. The underlying investment
portfolio of the wealth management product mainly includes
money market instruments and other financial instruments
with fixed return. The principal and return of the investment
in the wealth management product are not guaranteed. Fair
value of this investment as at December 31, 2023 is estimated
to be RMB50,000,000.

In June 2023, the Group invested in an unlisted limited
partnership enterprise (the “Partnership Enterprise”)
with consideration of USD10,409,000 (equivalent to
RMB73,870,000). The Partnership Enterprise is specialized in
equity investment. According to the partnership agreement,
the Partnership Enterprise is managed by its general partner.
The Group participates in the Partnership Enterprise as
one of the limited partners who does not have power on
selection nor removal of assets manager or general partner
of the Partnership Enterprise. In addition, the Group does not
have any right on making operating, investing and financing
decision of the Partnership Enterprise. The director is of
the opinion that the Group does not have any control nor
significant influence to affect the variable returns through its
investment in the Partnership Enterprise, and the investment’s
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, therefore,
this investment is accounted for as a financial asset measured
at FVTPL. The Group has an intention of holding such
investment as a long-term investment.

Information about the Group’s fair value measurement is
included in Note 27(e).

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

6 HibiRE (&)

R2023F 78 AEBRER —KEZLAQ
B (EARTEA)RINMNEEN S —BEFE
"EFEI([{E5E5T8IC)) - EXE R AR
100,000,0007T © #4512 & BARR & 75 6 A LA
A - RIEZ I - 5T 8ICEEARBOIRE
REBEFRES - MEENLAE REIH®AE
IREE - ZIREEZE2023F12 A31 B AE
BEfEzH A ARE101,429,0007T °

MR2023F12H26H @ AEBRERAH
—RBTEENEVER  A2AARE
50,000,0007T ' #1AHAPR B35k - FEHE @
MEEEEAATEREEEMIS T AR EAM
EAEFERRNS @ TE o BHERHER
& R EIHMAERE - ZIREEZE2023F12 8
31 B AR EEME A AKRKS0,000,0007T ©

R2023F6 7 + AEEKE—RIELTHERE
BHE(ABLE])  HEA10,409,0003%
T (HENRAREKT3,870,0007T) - BB %
BN EERE - RIBE B AR E
HELTBEEEAETE - AEBIEABEREEA
Z—2HEEBLE  MERSGEAEERER
BRABLENEETEASERAEA - It
N AREEERELAROENKE  BER
BERER - BEERA - AN B 0 B (T (A4 il
REATEN  NWBBHREBLEZINEY
EAFOR - BRENSHNESRENIEES
SRS RAEERSHFE - BUZIRER
AENAREBETEEEES AR BN
TREE - ASEBAEFERSREERK
iéf o

ERAREERABEAENEHIH N
27(e) °
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

17 INVENTORIES 17 &
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
76 H30H M12H31H
2023 2023
20234 2023F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFIT ARET T
Finished goods &K i 1,447,799 1,917,133
Low-value consumables KB 2 2,720 5,108
1,450,519 1,922,241
(@ The analysis of the amount of inventories (a CERAABIHEFTABZNEFESR
recognized as an expense and included in profit or ZEOMAT :

loss is as follows:

For the For the

year ended six months ended

June 30, December 31,

2023 2023

#HE20234F B Z2023F

6A30HIFE 12A31HLAEA

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Carrying amount of inventories sold B & 117 & Z BRE & 58 6,879,212 4,290,874
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of inventories

& CrRERR),JRE (19,850) 1,932

Cost of inventories recognized in consolidated statements of
profit or loss
RiFaBRERPHERNFERAE 6,859,362 4,292,806
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EZ R HAMEWRKIE

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
164308 MW12831H

2023 2023
20234 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS ARMET T

Non-current 3£ &b
Trade receivables & 5 & Y7118 = 18,045
Less: loss allowance Jg : E518 &1 27(a) = (433)

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance (jii)

B 5 W IE (FNER B IR S ) (iii) = 17,612
Amounts due from related parties &Y BBk 5 218 30(c) 10,647 10,760
Deposits & & 41,834 81,153
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable 13 #3138 EF: ([EEF |) 22,160 26,271
74,641 135,796
Current R E
Trade receivables & 5 & W18 394,727 504,938
Less: loss allowance J& @ E51E#{# 27(a) (88,764) (78,001)

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance

B 5 RWRIE (FORR B IR B E) 305,963 426,937
Amounts due from related parties &4 B85 77 ZUE 30(c) 5,602 27,836
Miscellaneous expenses paid on behalf of franchisees
N R B S A ORI R 2 265,335 336,497
VAT recoverable FEHIIEET 270,298 251,162
Rental deposits FA &% 4 86,600 98,141
Receivables due from on-line payment platforms and banks (i)
JEWFE AR > 157 & R SRTT /I (i) 34,726 103,406
Prepayments for inventories 17 & 7815 7k 18 49,631 51,084
Prepayments for licensing expenses % & 81 28 40,934 43,996
Prepayments for promotion and advertising expenses
R i & B & F S TR RRIR 17,374 11,577
Prepayments for repurchase of shares [ i% {7 ¥& 1~ 7k 18 3,693 87,324
Others EAf 70,000 80,397
1,150,156 1,518,357
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Notes to the Copsolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(il

Receivables due from on-line payment platforms and banks
mainly represented the proceeds of online sales through
e-commerce platforms collected by and retained in third-party
online payment platforms. Withdrawal of the balances retained
in online payment platforms could be made anytime upon the
Group’s instructions. The amounts also included those due
from banks for offline sales made through customer credit/
debit cards and other online payment platforms that require
overnight processing by the collection banks.

All of trade and other receivables classified as current portion
are expected to be recovered or recognized as expense within
one year.

Trade receivables relating to certain sales of fixtures to
franchisees are collected by installments within the periods
ranging from 32 to 36 months and the portion which is
expected to be recovered after one year are classified as non-
current. All other trade debtors are due within 20 to 180 days
from the date of revenue recognition for domestic and overseas
customers respectively. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors are set out in
Note 27(a).

Aging analysis

As of the end of each reporting period, the aging analysis of
trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

fE
0

(ii)

(ii)

18 EZ N HMEWFIE (&)

RESRINFERRTFEIERAF=
FTERINFEUEBREFAENEHER TS
R ESHEMBHIRE - RENEGINFE L
AR R R IB A LB IS RBERER - 252
ETeERARRFEAR /B RREME
BT BEITAR T HE R EUERIT A -
ZERIAT AWFERTTIR TR -

PR AREE D K E 5 N H A FE KSR TE
FHRE—F AR E KR R -

HEMBEEEE THREMHEENESE
W I8 32 2 3618 A HAf A5 HRUER - M8
R —F R KBNS DERIERS -
ARBIINEERATE £t E 5 ES S B EMRE
Rz BE20E180KAEIE - BRIARSE
BEEEBRREEREESBEBEENEERRD
B L IBENKIEE27() ©

BRE D AT
BESRERR - ENXNEER B IR EER
BROE 5 RUGRREKDITIT

As at As at

Non-current portion R 2R

June 30,
R6 A30H

2023
20234
RMB’000
ARHEETIT

December 31,
M12831H
2023

20234
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Within 90 days 90K A - 11,187
91 to 180 days 91180k - 6,425
- 17,612

Current portion R B #F 5
Within 90 days 90 XA 281,511 367,560
91 to 180 days 91 180X 20,112 51,516
181 to 360 days 181 =360~ 2,332 7,327
361 to 540 days 361 £540k 1,074 229
Over 540 days #8540 % 934 305
305,963 426,937
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 B4 RESZEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: HeRBLSZLEYEIE
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
®6H308 M12H831H
2023 2023
20234 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEF T AR¥T T
Cash on hand F5EIR & 576 783
Cash at bank $R777F 5% 6,488,637 6,414,658

Cash and cash equivalents as presented in the consolidated statements
of financial position and in the consolidated statements of cash flows
FEMBRAKREGEHERERITHRERFEEED 6,489,213 6,415,441

20 RESTRICTED CASH 20 ZRHERE

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
®6 74308 M12831H

2023 2023
20234 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
A RHET ARET T

Bank deposits held in an escrow bank account (i)

FEERITIRP R AMIRTTE) 1,391 4,462
Bank deposits frozen for legal proceedings (ii)
R AR SR AT R 45 B ERTT 17 2K (i) 25,682 3,508
27,073 7,970
Notes: Ff5E
()  The balance represented cash held in an escrow bank () ZESRENHEFRERTEPHAENRSE
account in the PRC with designated usage of settlement with BERBREMBEEETEE -

franchisees.

(i)  The balance mainly represented deposits frozen for the lawsuit (i)  MAMSFE29(b) PTHRER @ AR E B IR AT IE
relating to illicit competition as disclosed in Note 29(b). EBFTRNFAMBRENTTR
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

21 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 21 REaREH
(@) Reconciliation of profit for the reporting period to (@ IFHEARPEEL

cash generated from operations:

EITEHR AR -

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
#HZE20234F B Z2023%F
6A30HIFE 12A31HEAEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
A RETT ARBT T
Profit for the year/period &~ Hi & 1,781,829 1,256,077
Adjustments for: &L LA N EIEE ¢
Interest on lease liabilities 76 & & & 5.2 9 34,396 25,112
Depreciation and amortization 75 % i $4 7 391,167 285,241
Interest on loans and borrowings & 3 K & 7 A1l & 9 226 90
Interest income F B Uz A 9 (145,225) (123,969)
Investment income from other investments
Hipig & IR E W 8 (42,921) (14,281)
Net change in fair value of other investments
HIRE R EEELHFHE 8 3,692 (14,270)
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets
HEME - BERREBEURELEENER 8 5,350 1,632
Impairment loss on non-current assets
SEMENE FEREE R 3,448 4,547
Unrealized foreign exchange gain & B3R SME W 25 (45,522) (25,410)
Effect of lease contract cancellation
EUHBEEASRMFE 3,681 (4,821)
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax
DI AR E AR RIRE A RNFE - BiRFE - (268)
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
PARESS S B AR AT YR X 7 62,882 46,432
Income tax Fr5%: 10(a) 551,785 396,665
Changes in working capital: && & & &) :
Inventories 7 & (250,851) (471,722)
Trade and other receivables & 5 [ £ {th g Ui 508 (185,768) (316,534)
Contract liabilities & 4B & (73,539) 25,341
Trade and other payables & 5 & HAbfE {78 (34,055) 363,327
Restricted cash X [R5 & 5,303 19,103
Deferred income #EIEW 2 19,074 (3,985)
Cash generated from operations & & TSR & 2,084,952 1,448,307
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

21 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 21 REREH(E)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETENFIEEEBENEHER:
activities:

Loans and Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total

ERR AR A FIE &%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥ETRT AR%®TR ARETR
Note 23
HizE23

At July 1, 2022 20227 H1H 6,948 43 651,065 658,056

Additions through business combination (Note 26)

BBLXSHHOFE (HzE26) - - 15,313 15,313
Changes from financing cash flows:
RMERSREH :
Repayment of loans and borrowings &2 & 7 & & (206) - - (206)
Payment of capital element and interest element of
lease liabilities Z [ EB B ERF D HFIEEH - - (346,008) (346,008)
Total changes from financing cash flows
MERSREBER (206) - (346,008) (346,214)
Exchange adjustments [E % §% 576 - 25,267 25,843
Other changes: H &%) :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
new leases during the year
FARIHEA S ENEEREEM - - 718,985 718,985
Decrease in lease liabilities from derecognition
RIFRRERHHEEA B - - (213,284) (213,284)
Increase in interest expenses T 5.5 57 1 N = 226 34,396 34,622
Forgiveness of loans and borrowings A% & 7% M &7k (103) - - (103)
Total other changes H fth & 84258 (103) 226 540,097 540,220
At June 30, 2023 72202346 A30H 7,215 269 885,734 893,218
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

21 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 21 BEREHR (E)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) METEFELEEENWHER (&

activities: (continued)

Loans and Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total
BRRER ERRE HESE A%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR%TR AR¥TR AR¥ETxR
Note 23
HMizE23

At July 1, 2023 20237 H1H 7,215 269 885,734 893,218

Changes from financing cash flows: BER &R EE :
Repayment of loans and borrowings 1&3& & 7 & &3 - - - -
Payment of capital element and interest element of

lease liabilities S (T E & BRI E A D FIF 235 - - (236,519) (236,519)

Total changes from financing cash flows
BMERSRE BB - - (236,519)  (236,519)

Exchange adjustments [E &% 44 - (21,071) (21,027)

Other changes: H 1% &) :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new
leases during the period

HNAT I #HA A S & EIE - - 622,916 622,916

Decrease in lease liabilities from derecognition

KIFEREHNEEE ERD - - (30,867) (30,867)

Increase in interest expenses

SR s 42 0 - 90 25,112 25,202
Total other changes H fth & B 4258 - 90 617,161 617,251
At December 31, 2023 742023512831 H 7,259 359 1,245,305 1,252,923
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e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

21 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 21 REREH(E)
(c) Total cash out flow for leases: (c) HERSRHLAEEE
For the For the
year ended  six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
HZE2023F B £2023F
6A30HIEFE 12A31HIEAEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Within operating cash flows ERE R & &R G (71,189) (38,531)
Within financing cash flows 2B R REE IR &7 (346,008) (236,519)
(417,193) (275,050)
22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ESZRHMENRIEA

As at June 30, As at December 31,
2023 2023

20236 308 12023%F12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ARBTFT

Non-current 3E57 B
Payable relating to construction projects 18732518 B B 5118 - 12,411

Current B

Trade payables & 5 & 7H 653,713 855,914
Payroll payable fEff T& 93,065 166,079
Accrued expenses [ExtF X 236,594 309,951
Other taxes payable £ fttfE{~ 5 HE 49,072 43,850
Deposits & 1,785,405 1,782,181
Payable relating to leasehold improvements #8870 & 2 & fE (< 8 47,654 59,653
Payable relating to construction projects #8#852:%18 B B 5A 25,835 33,051
Amounts due to related parties (Note 30(c)) F& 1 BB 75 78 (MI5E30(c)) 6,371 7,334
Others Efth 121,593 131,813

3,019,302 3,389,826

Information about the Group’s exposure to currency and EEASBHEGRHEENRE R RAE S
liquidity risks is included in Note 27. 5127

The credit period granted by suppliers is 30 to 90 days. HEME THEEHR30E0X °

Deposits received from suppliers, distributors and franchisees BHFER - RIBEA MBS R A RE S A AT —
may be repayable to suppliers, distributors and franchisees FREETHER  RIERAMINER - IEHME
after more than one year. All of the other trade payables, SENFIR - A E IR - FEETIA B M Bt
other payables, accruals and amounts due to related parties 7 INBRE M RIETES S E — F N B R ESKE
or franchisees are expected to be settled within one year or = o

are repayable on demand.

2023FEHHE o HAES Lkl
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 22 25 &2 fhfE{E1E (&)

Aging analysis BRI DT
As of the end of each reporting period, the aging analysis of HESHEHR  ENBEEAHELNE S E
trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: NFIBZERESHTAT :

As at June 30, As at December 31,

2023 2023
R2023%F6 H30H 2023F12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Within 1 month — 1 A & 613,353 795,416
1 to 3 months —&=1{&A 27,210 42,183
3 months to 1 year =@ A& —4 7,350 8,296
Over 1 year —F A £ 5,800 10,019
653,713 855,914
23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23 HEAR
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TREJIAEEHERENEREARNAT
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the reporting BHRNEER
periods:

As at June 30, 2023 As at December 31, 2023
71202346 A30H 2023F12H31H

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments  payments  payments
=IEEE =EHEE RIEHE RIEHE
IR E B GGt RNRBRE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARE®FTT ARETT AR¥®TT

Within 1 year —4ELAR 328,933 334,778 447,319 457,747
After 1 year but within 2 years —F & BRI FE R 251,844 259,948 373,712 403,679
After 2 years but within 5 years MR {ERFA 227,048 260,188 350,181 399,187
After 5 years FL4FLA 77,909 110,215 74,093 102,502

556,801 630,351 797,986 905,368

885,734 965,129 1,245,305 1,363,115
Less: total future interest expenses & : R F| B FIL 58 (79,395) (117,810)
Present value of lease liabilities & & (&R {& 885,734 1,245,305
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24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@)

Share capital and additional paid-in capital

As at June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023, the
Company authorized 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares,
with a par value of USD0.00001 each.

As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023, analysis of
the Company’s issued shares including treasury shares
reserved for the share incentive plan, was as follows:

Ordinary shares & 3@

As at June 30, 2023
M202346 H30H

Number of

shares
uEE

1,263,689,685 95

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

24 EXRFEE
(a BAEAREARQTE
MN2023F6 308 &%2023F12 A31
B » &AAQ RS ##£5,000,000,000 f &A%
E{E0.00001 E T HY E3@A% o

B £202346 730 H % 2023412 A 31
B ARFIME BT (BIE RN
BT BIREMEF BT

As at December 31, 2023
#2023F12H31H
Share
capital
[}
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

Share
capital

fig s
RMB’000
AT

Number of
shares

RGBE

1,263,689,685 95

(i)

(il

(iv)

On July 13, 2022, the Company completed its dual
primary listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
In connection with the dual primary listing, the
Company completed a global offering and issued
41,586,200 ordinary shares, including 486,200
shares upon exercise of the over-allotment option,
with a par value of USD0.00001 each and offer
price of HKD13.80 each.

During the year ended June 30, 2023 and the six
months ended December 31, 2023, 4,161,100
and 636,608 of restricted shares, restricted shares
units and options were vested and exercised, and
were released from treasury shares into ordinary
shares.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, 3,462,870
shares were cancelled, which mainly including
3,462,868 shares repurchased under 2022 share
repurchase program (see Note 24(b)(v)).

As at June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023,
among the ordinary shares issued, 18,834,996 and
20,356,896 shares were recognized as treasury
shares (see Note 24(b)(v)), respectively.

Pursuant to a resolution approved by the board
of directors of the Company on May 16, 2023, the
Company transferred RMB730,898,000 (equivalent
to USD105 million) of additional paid-in capital to
set off its accumulated losses.

() 202247 H138 * ARARE
R FTER EEFTE ETH o i
EFXFE LW ARRIEKEIREE
I 3£1741,586,200 0% L @ A% (H
BIEE B AR TR M BT HY
486,200%) + ®XE{E/0.00001
ELhEBREEER13.808TT °

iy #Z=2023%F6H30HILFENE
F£2023F12 A31BIEAEA -
4,161,100/% 636,608 % 52 R
f&f - ZBR B0 BE A KB EE
FBROE  WHEFRMNEAT
AL -

(i) #HZE2023F6A30HILEFE ' E
FT853,462,870 Mk - T E R
FEAR B 2022 F % D B Bl 51 SR [l
713,462,868 1% 1% 170 ( R.F17E24(b)
() °

(iv) 202346 A30HK%20234F12
HA31H - B EHTHEEKRF -
18,834,996 1% % 20,356,896 % %
MEDRIERAEFRMD (R
24(b)(v)) °

(v) REARAIESZEN2023F5H16
BHLERRZESR - AAREEAR
#730,898,0007C (FHER105B 8
EIL)MEARNEARIEE ReHE

e
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Nature and purposes of reserves

U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve mainly represents the
difference between the consideration paid and
the paid-in capital acquired arising from business
combinations involving entities under common
control during the year ended June 30, 2019.

Translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
portion of the grant date fair value of restricted
shares, share options and restricted share units
granted to the key management personnel and
employees of the Group that has been recognized
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in Note 2(q)(iii).

PRC statutory reserve

PRC statutory reserves are established in
accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Articles of Association of the subsidiaries which
are established in the PRC. The subsidiaries
being wholly foreign-owned enterprise or wholly
domestic-owned enterprises, are required to
allocate at least 10% of its net profits to a statutory
surplus reserve. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before distribution of dividends to equity
shareholders can be made.

PRC statutory reserve can be used to make
good previous years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital in proportion to their existing
equity holdings, provided that the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve after such transfer is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

@ MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

24 EXLf#HE ()

(b) f#fE
(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HNHEERED

EOtHE
AHFEEEEIEEZE2019F6 530
BItFER—ZH T EEA T
NHEEEREMNEWE AR ZHL
EE8 o

BEGHE
BEFEEERERINRBI R
RELEMFABINEZHE

LR EER NI RS

LARD AERAN R HESEER
I 5E2(q)(iii) P BE DA RR (D A ERE
NPT @ 5t BER R T
REEBHEERA B RMEBNZR
IR D - BB AR K 52 BR HI A% 1D B AL
MR TEARBEID -

FEEELES
FERZERAEEZIRIEFEC(AE
YR ) MFE AP BBk Sz B0 BT B8 2 B4R
BERRBRIMRL - B RRR
SNBELERANERERE - A
WAKEFMBEHZE D 10% 7B
EEREBBRARE - BREELAER
HATES BATEREEIR DK
BZRBIES -

FEVEE ARSI AR B F
EREE () RiRERER
RELEplE A E AR - BEAEARER
EEBHRATESHEBENSEA M
BARR25% °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)

(v)

Treasury shares

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan was administered
by twelve special purpose vehicles, and the Group
has the power to govern the relevant activities of
the twelve special purpose vehicles and can derive
benefits from the contributions of the employees
who were awarded with the shares under 2020
Share Incentive Plan, therefore, the twelve special
purpose vehicles were consolidated.

The balance of treasury shares mainly include
the considerations received from special purpose
vehicles for unvested and forfeited restricted
shares, and the cost of the Company’s shares held
by the Group.

On December 21, 2021, the board of directors
authorized a share repurchase program under
which the Company may repurchase up to
USD200 million of its shares until September 21,
2022 (the “2021 Share Repurchase Program”).

On September 29, 2022, the board of directors
authorized a share repurchase program under
which the Company may repurchase up to
USD100 million of its shares within a period of 12
months starting from September 29, 2022 (the
“2022 Share Repurchase Program”).

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the
Company repurchased 3,373,228 ordinary
shares on the New York Stock Exchange and
166,000 ordinary shares on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange under the 2021 and 2022 Share
Repurchase Programs for total considerations of
USD4,370,000 (equivalent to RMB31,175,000)
and HKD1,696,000 (equivalent to RMB1,536,000),
respectively.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

24 EXKfREE(E)
(b) REHNEERBEH ()

v) E=FEK
2020 F 10 Bt £ 12 R Bk
BERARERE  AEBEH12KE
HEMARMNEBESHEAEE
¥ - BAIAR B 2020 F B BB
STEER M E T HETESF)
&= A Z12XK5% B AR
X

ERRMEHTERBRENSHKE N
NS EIES S Y8 R-L GO
A EEHE - ARAEERFEH
RRBIBADEIRAS

MN20215F12 8218 » EF€H#E
T—EERGHBEEE - BEZA
2| RQAIA 202299 A21H
Z BB # & %2008 &= TH %D
([2021 PP EERIFTEI]) o

MN2022F9H29H - EEGIIRME
—IERDEERIFTE - B - AAF]
PR E2022F9 A29H#E:HHY121E
AHEAM A O ER %1008 &ETH
B (12022 F R (R EEEIETE ) -

HE2023F6A30HIEFE © &
NaEEE2021F £ 2022 F &
BO:EEMNEERSATER
3,373,228 1% L 3@ A% A R 1 B B B
X FTE% [0166,0000% I M@A% - &Y%
B9 B44,370,0005 7T (FHERA
R#31,175,0007T) % 1,696,000/5
7T (FE N AR #1,536,0007T) °
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)

(v)

Treasury shares (continued)

Pursuant to 2021 Share Repurchase Program, the
Company had repurchased a total of 6,187,636
ordinary shares on the New York Stock Exchange
as of September 21, 2022, the expiry date of the
program. In October 2022, the board of directors
of the Company approved to transfer all these
6,187,636 repurchased shares to special purpose
vehicles for future grants of share awards under
the 2020 Share Incentive Plan.

Under the 2022 Share Repurchase Program,
166,000 shares repurchased on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and 3,296,868 shares
repurchased on the New York Stock Exchange
were cancelled as of June 30, 2023.

On September 15, 2023, the board of directors
authorized a new share repurchase program
under which the Company may repurchase up
to USD200 million of its shares within a period of
12 months starting from September 15, 2023 (the
“2023 Share Repurchase Program”).

During the six months ended December 31, 2023,
the Company repurchased ordinary shares under
the 2023 Share Repurchase Program as follows,
and the cost of these shares held by the Group
was recorded in treasury shares:

24 EXNf#fE ()

(b)

RENMHEREWN (8)

vy EERGE)
BIK2021 FRMDEETE - &HZE
202299 A21H (Blaxst EIH 2 H3
B)  ARBEEAHEFZ S
OEEA 6,187,636 X E3@mAL o /K
NAEEER2022510 A#HLAE -
15 FTE 7%2556,187,636 % [ B A% 15
EETIRRENAR  ERER
%2020 F B 10 BB &t 813 H A% 1D
1R -

fE2022F R EEEIFEIF - B
BB PO /166,000 % A%
BRRBHFESZRR S TR ED
3,296,868 2% 1774202346 A 30
HEsH -

MR2023F9H15H » EF & RE
—IEFRMEBRE - Bt - A2
AR E2023F9 A15H#EETAI12
&l A BAE AT B & %200 B & £ 7T
HIR% 5 ([2023 F %R BERIETEI ) -

HZ=2023F12 A31HIEAEA -
RAFIE N TIRIE2023 F I fn s
BT E LML - MAKERE
ZERMDHKAGT AEFRD

Shares repurchased on the New York Stock Exchange  Shares repurchased on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

RENESRAFREORG

Number of Highest Lowest
shares  price paid price paid
repurchased  pershare  per share

AERRG HSRRH

fitae XA xfi
RH#E g5E SEE

Aggregate
price paid

REEBRBEHRS

Number of Highest Lowest
shares  price paid  price paid  Aggregate
repurchased  pershare  pershare price paid

AERRG AESRRH
FrigE XfIH xfifl BXfM
R&G#E 5 BIEE &
HKD'000
AT

December 2023 2023512 A 1,450,108 4,98 4,57 6,981 708,400 37.85 36.35 26,290
Equivalent to RMB’000
SEAREEETT 49,630 23,930
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24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Capital management

The Group defines “capital” as including all components
of equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong
capital base to maintain investors, creditors and market
confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. There were no changes in the Group’s
approach to capital management during the reporting
periods. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

Dividends

During the year ended June 30, 2023, special cash
dividends of USDO0.043 per ordinary share, amounting to
USD53,640,000 (equivalent to RMB370,787,000), were
declared and paid by the Company. The dividends were
distributed from additional paid-in capital.

During the six months ended December 31, 2023, final
dividends of USDO0.103 per ordinary share, amounting
to USD128,758,000 (equivalent to RMB923,664,000),
in respect of the year ended June 30, 2023, were
declared and paid by the Company. The dividends were
distributed from additional paid-in capital.

Special cash dividends of USD0.0725 per ordinary
share, amounting to USD90.5 million, were proposed
and approved by the board of directors the Company
in March 2024. The dividends will be distributed from
additional paid-in capital and have not been recognized
as liabilities as of December 31, 2023.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

24 EXNf#%E ()

(©

EXEE

AEEKIERNIEESBREEDNFT
BAKED c AEBMBRIERBRA
MBEARERN  DESKREE  BRAR
MEEL « WHEREBROREER - |
SHE AEENEAEE AW EE
B - AEEEBERITMAINDRIMNOE

BB
NEZE2023F6 A30B IEFE @ AR
AIER MR RIIR TR B
0.04337T © #£5153,640,000% 7T (5
N AR370,787,0007T) ° R EME
AFERDIK

HZE2023F12 831 B IR » ARQ
AR &R E E202346 A30 H |F4F
SR REARR B &R E@mAX0.1032E T ¢
H#51128,758,000E T (FHE R AR
923,664,0007T) ° REBFHERQIER
DK °

NATFEEZSD 20243 AT H#
ERRReRE SR ERK0.0725%
UL HEF90.5BEETT - REBHRER
NiEFR DR - BEZE2023F12 A31H
AR IERBAE o
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e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 LDigSEENRG N

PAYMENTS

The Group has adopted share-based compensation
arrangements to incentivize outstanding performance.
Pursuant to the 2020 Share Incentive Plan, as amended in
June 2022, restricted shares, options, restricted share units
or other approved awards may be granted to the Group’s
employees, directors, and consultants.

As at June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023, the maximum
aggregate number of shares that could be issued under the
2020 Share Incentive Plan was 98,773,684.

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan will remain in effect for a period
of 103 months, commencing on January 7, 2020, unless
terminated earlier by the Company’s board of directors.

(@) Share awards

On August 27, 2018, the board of directors approved
the grant of restricted shares of the Company to certain
employees of the Group. Some of the restricted shares
granted were immediately vested upon grant, while the
remaining shares will vest according to individual vesting
schedules ranging from two to four years from the
grant date. The vesting is conditional upon employees
remaining in service throughout a specified period
(“Specified Service Period”) without any performance
requirements.

If employees leave the Group before a qualified IPO
takes place, the awarded shares will be forfeited. The
forfeited shares will be repurchased by a shareholder
designated by the Group at the original exercise price,
and with an additional 10% per annum interest, where
applicable. As such, the actual vesting period of the
restricted shares is dependent on the occurrence
of an IPO. The Group considered that an IPO was
probable to occur and has recognized the share-based
compensation expenses over the estimated actual
vesting period, which is based on the estimate of when
an IPO will occur or the Specified Service Period,
whichever is longer.
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2020 F %10 BN AT 81 AT 21T M AR (D Fx e A 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

(@)

Share awards (continued)

Movements in the number of restricted shares granted
to employees and the respective weighted-average
grant date fair values are as follows:

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

25 LIEmAENRG M (&)

(@)

Number of

restricted shares

Outstanding as of July 1, 2022 EZ202247 518 K17
Vested during the year F N5 &
Forfeited during the year P24

2,540,420
(2,496,668)
(43,752)

R %M ()
BT B THERABRABE RIS SN
RTET B AR BESBWT

Weighted-average
exercise price

Weighted-average
grant date fair value

USD per USD per
restricted share restricted share
2 B A A Y

X IR SRR &) METFHRT B
IETETRE RREE
ET R ELER

0.036 7.67

0.036 7.67

0.036 7.67

Outstanding as of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023
EZ2023F6830HK%2023F12 431 ARITfE

Total compensation expense calculated based on the
grant date fair value and the estimated forfeiture rate
recognized in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss for these share awards granted to the Group’s
employees was RMB613,000 for the year ended June
30, 2023.

Share options

The board of directors approved the grants of share
options to purchase ordinary shares of the Company
to certain employees of the Group on January 16, 2020
and September 27, 2020.

Each of 20% of the above options granted will vest on
the 1st trading day following each of the 1st, 2nd, 3rd,
4th and 5th anniversary of the grant date, respectively,
on the condition that employees remain in service
without any performance requirements. The options
lapse on the tenth anniversary of the grant date.

B ZE2023F6 A30H LFE - B LR
FAEEETINZERNEHMS - B
BERHBAAREBERRGEEBRRER
HHES R ENH A Bz AA
R#613,0007T °

IB R

EE22020F1 16 H %2020 9 A
27 ALERASRES TIEER TRIRE
BB E AR B E @A

EHR T & 20% B9 B A HE R 0 BRI
FTEENE— F=Z - -F= FORSE
hBFENFE—ERXZARE - AR
BENEBEMFRARENBER TREE
B BRERE T B HRFRR
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 DIEsE&ENRD XM (&)
PAYMENTS (continued)
(b) Share options (continued) (b) FEERRRE (&)
The option activities during the year ended June 30, Bl F 202346 H30H IEFE &20234F
2023 and the six months ended December 31, 2023 are 12 A31 B 1L~ E A KBRS B it an
summarized as follows: 3

Weighted-average

Weighted-average grant date

Number of exercise price fair value

options USD per share USD per share

BT B ARE) Nt

IETETRE FERAEE

keSS ETLEK EVIRSIN

Outstanding at July 1, 2022 4202257 A1 B K17fF 8,918,492 0.036 3.67
Exercised E1Tf# (1,376,096) 0.035 3.90
Forfeited ;& (1,841,000) 0.036 3.33
Outstanding at June 30, 2023 4202346 30 B K17 5,701,396 0.036 3.72
Exercisable at June 30, 2023 72202346 A 30 H A7 2,114,496 0.036 3.36
Non-vested at June 30, 2023 74202346 A30 H <57 /& 3,586,900 0.036 3.94
Outstanding at July 1, 2023 4202357 A1 B K{TfF 5,701,396 0.036 3.72
Exercised E1Tff (427,492) 0.036 4.20
Forfeited ;21X (104,800) 0.036 4.74
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 4202312 A31 A K{T 5,169,104 0.036 3.66
Exercisable at December 31, 2023 32023412 A31 B A {T{F 2,237,104 0.036 3.57
Non-vested at December 31, 2023 #2023F12 A31 HAHE 2,932,000 0.036 3.73

#H Z 202346 A308 |[FFE NEH E2023
F12H31BIEAER LM TR

Total compensation expense calculated based on the

grant date fair value and the estimated forfeiture rate g s o b .
recognized in the consolidated statements of profit RESTHBERERS - REKLH

or loss for the above options granted to the Group’s Qﬁ){?%&%ﬁégﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 153*??
employees were RMB33,306,000 and RMB7,593,000 for WRETER fﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂi‘iﬁ@%éﬁ %\Jz%/:&ﬁ%
the year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months ended 33,306,000} AR 7,593,000
December 31, 2023, respectively.

P00} MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

(c) Restricted share units

U

Granted during the year ended June 30,
2023

In October 2022, the board of directors approved
the grant of restricted shares units (“RSUs”) to
purchase 143,436 ordinary shares of the Company
to an independent non-executive director of the
Group at nil purchase price. The RSUs were
divided into two tranches. The first tranche
immediately vested on the grant date, and the
remaining tranche will vest in one year from the
grant date, on the condition that director remains
in service without any performance conditions.

The board of directors also approved the grant of
RSUs to purchase 1,333,360 ordinary shares of the
Company in aggregate to certain employees of the
Group at purchase price of USD0.036 per share
during the year ended June 30, 2023. These RSUs
were divided into three to five tranches. Certain
portions of these RSUs were immediately vested
on the grant date, and the remaining tranches will
vest based on individual vesting schedules ranging
from two to four years from the grant dates, on
the condition that the employees remain in service
without any performance conditions.

In addition, the board of directors approved the
grant of RSUs to purchase 5,084,800 ordinary
shares of the Company to an employee of the
Group at purchase price of USD0.036 per share in
March 2023. Each of 20% of these RSUs granted
will vest on the 1st trading day following each of
the 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th and 5th anniversary of the
grant date, on the condition that the employee
remains in service and has fulfilled the respective
annual net profit targets for the department
which the employee is in charge of in each of the
calendar years of 2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 and
2027.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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(€ FEREIRHEN
() #EZE202356A30HLFERH

R2022F 108 ' EFLHENT
BEEMASE 2B IENITE
IR SRR I A D B ([ 52 PR HIlA%
MENL]) + LAEEE AN F]143,436
A& E A% o PR SRR (D BB AR
#e o B—HRIER T HHRESES -
eR THEE R B 5% T B EifBAT—4F
NEB - BBRIRGEEESHER -
I AR SEAE IR AF ©

BE2NE 2202346 A30H
IEFE#EZRS0.036E TTHI
BERANEERE TEEERLZRES
f& 5 B bABE B & $£1,333,360%
RARIEBIR - ZEXRFIZMDE
UDBE=ZRH - ZEZRHIRG
BAIAE T E IR T B HARNES 55
B - M THoHREEER T A E
RRENFERNERFBRERS
B FBKHESEENER - WiE
TR G -

A - BE 2202343 A fiR
Hh%0.036 ELHIEBERAEE
—HEER LR B BB AR
55,084,800 % A A E AR © 5%
ZEREZREIRG B E20% 15
RETHRHNE— F= F=-
FNRFERAAFENE—EARSH
5B BIREZEENERILRN
20234 « 20244 - 20254 + 2026
FR2027TFEHEFEKZEE
FragsfrImEEFFEEEZE -
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

202

(©

Restricted share units (continued)

(ii)

Granted during the six months ended
December 31, 2023

In October 2023, the board of directors approved
the grant of RSUs to purchase 22,472 ordinary
shares of the Company to an independent non-
executive director of the Group at nil purchase
price. The RSUs were divided into four tranches.
The first tranche immediately vested on the grant
date, and the remaining tranches will vest on
January 15, 2014, April 15, 2024 and July 15,
2024, respectively, on the condition that director
remains in service without any performance
conditions.

The board of directors also approved the grant
of RSUs to purchase 103,200 ordinary shares of
the Company in aggregate to certain employees
of the Group at purchase price of USD0.036 per
share during the six months ended December
31, 2023. These RSUs were divided into three
to five tranches. Each tranche will vest based on
individual vesting schedules ranging from three to
five years from the grant dates, on the condition
that the employees remain in service without any
performance conditions.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

(c) Restricted share units (continued) (©)

25 LIEmAENRG M (&)

ZERFIRDEAL (&)

(iii) Movements in the number of RSUs granted (i) BHNSRIRVGENHEERER

and the respective weighted-average grant
date fair values are as follows:

Outstanding as of July 1, 2022 % 202257 A1 B R

BIEFEHRFEAABEESE N
T :

Weighted-average
grant date

fair value

USD per RSU
RY BT
AVNEEES

5 IR A0 E AL

Weighted-average

Number of purchase price
RSUs USD per RSU
IEFEBEE
ETLERG|

fudn B

SRBIBRD
B8 H

Granted 2R 6,561,596 0.035 412
Vested B 5 /& (288,336) 0.026 2.42
Forfeited ;24 (107,800) 0.036 2.89
Outstanding as of June 30, 2023 &, 2202346 A 30 A K171 6,165,460 0.036 4,22
Granted B {11 125,672 0.030 5.37
Vested 252 (209,116) 0.024 3.55
Forfeited Y24 (123,760) 0.036 3.16
Outstanding as of December 31, 2023

22023512 A31 AR {THE 5,958,256 0.036 4.32

The fair value of RSUs was determined with
reference to the market prices of the Company’s
ordinary shares at the respective grant dates.

The fair value of RSUs granted during the
year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months
ended December 31, 2023 was USD27,004,000
(equivalent to RMB186,116,000) and USD674,000
(equivalent to RMB4,812,000) in aggregate. Total
compensation expense calculated based on the
grant date fair value and the estimated forfeiture
rate recognized in the consolidated statements
of profit or loss for aforementioned RSUs granted
were RMB28,963,000 and RMB38,839,000 for
the year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months
ended December 31, 2023.

ERHIRDECHAAREEBTIRE
AREEBBENESETBNTERS

-
TE °

HE2023F6 A30H IEFENE
£2023F12 A31HIENMEAAKRH
NZRHEBRODEMDARBES
# 427,004,000 T (HHERAR
#186,116,0007T) & 674,000% 7T
(FHERARY4,812,0007T) ° &
£2023F6 A30HIFFEREE
2023512 A31BHIENMAR - R
F_EMIR FEZ R IR D EM IR T
B ARBEREN GRS IBERERN
HE 2 R T E M H IR L 258
B ARB28,963,0007T M AR
38,839,0007T °
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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26 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

204

On November 30, 2022, the Group acquired 90% of shares
and voting rights in MINISO VIETNAM LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY from a third party, at a cash consideration of
VND83,097,377,000 (equivalent to RMB893,000).

The following summarizes the recognized amounts of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:

26 WIEHMEBAT

2022911 A30H @ AEBME=HEWE
TREERBREARAR0% M MIRE
¥ - IS HEA3,097,377,000# 7 F (SR
AER#893,0007T) °

LATRE AL T A UEE B W BB B E MR IEAENE
ERER

RMB’000
AT

Property, plant and equipment #7% - BiE & &5 1,339
Right-of-use assets {F A& E 10,467
Inventories & 11,573
Trade and other receivables & 5 [ E {th & Uk 7 IE 12,852
Cash and cash equivalents 8% N IR & 5B 5,461

Trade and other payables & 5 & H b & {5078 (25,387)
Lease liabilities & & {& (15,313)
Total identifiable net assets acquired Y& H) AT R/ F & E 4258 992

Less: non-controlling interest J& : JEHEA% S 99)
Total consideration transferred #2488 893

The revenue and profit included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the acquisition date to
June 30, 2023 contributed by MINISO VIETNAM LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY was RMB44,036,000 and RMB274,000
respectively.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash and term deposits
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high-credit-quality, for which
the Group considers having low credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables mainly derive from
sales of goods to distributors and franchisees. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At June 30, 2023 and
December 31, 2023, 40% and 40% of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group’s five largest
debtors, respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Trade receivables relating to certain sales of fixtures
to franchisees are collected by instalments within the
periods ranging from 32 to 36 months. All other trade
receivables are due within 20 to 180 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 6
months past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:

27 HBEREER N AEEE)

(@)

Expected

loss rate
TE AR 1 =

FERp ()

B 5 EWFIE (E)

HEnEEEES TEEMREHENE
SN IERN 32 = 36 A HAR A5 Ak
B fiEHEME S EKFEREFZAR
HA#B20 = 180K A X HA - #E B #HAGE B
LA R EIS AW EREEE T £
HE— S EEZRABMERNREHE -
BEBILT  AEETSNEFHRRE
SRR -

AEE RSN EREREREE (
REEEETE) S B E SRR
EE B - MR AEBNE L EEE
BTSRRI 0% B BERB 1 1R
KEANBEEEE - ERABHORNE
BRBLRE—SEHAEETANE
PRI -

TREIARAKEE 5 RKGRIAPE
REEERRLRBMEERBIENER

As at June 30, 2023
7R20234%6 A30H

Gross carrying
amount

fRmAE
% RMB’000
% AREFIT

Loss
allowance

B R
RMB’000

Current (not past due) B1H (1 8f) 2% 288,057 (6,547)

Less than 90 days past due #1790k 10% 22,419 (2,306)

91 - 270 days past due #H191E 270K 28% 3,223 (890)

271 - 450 days past due #1Hi271 £ 450K 53% 2,267 (1,194)

451 - 810 days past due #1Hi451 =810k 58% 2,223 (1,289)

More than 810 days past due %1 #{E:E810K 100% 1,419 (1,419
319,608 (13,645)

Additional loss allowance due to specific consideration

on certain distributors

HREE TRIERFNEE S EMaHENEINGERE 75,119 (75,119)

394,727 (88,764)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(RN - LARET % 25))
27 BXRREERAAEEGE)

(@ FEERE (&)

B 5 EWIE ()

As at December 31, 2023
7#2023F12H31H

Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FERERE ARMEA2(E EREE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AREETF T ARBEFIT
Non-current portion 3£ B 28 2 2% 18,045 (433)
Current portion i E28 2

Current (not past due) ;) (R7EH) 2% 376,711 (8,828)
Less than 90 days past due #1790k 11% 58,127 (6,600)
91 — 270 days past due #8191 £270K% 27% 9,791 (2,647)
271 - 450 days past due #Hi271 £450K 75% 317 (237)
451 - 810 days past due #1451 £810k 79% 1,445 (1,142)
More than 810 days past due @ HiEEiE810K 100% 1,010 (1,010)
447,401 (20,464)

Additional loss allowance due to specific consideration

on certain distributors

HREE TRIBENETEE EMHRVFEINERE B 57,537 (57,537)
504,938 (78,001)
522,983 (78,434)

Loss allowances of RMB75,119,000 and
RMB57,537,000 for trade receivables mainly from
certain overseas distributors were made during the
years ended June 30, 2023 and the six months ended
December 31, 2023 due to deterioration of financial
status of these distributors.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 2 to 3 years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

#HZE2023F6 H30H IEFE k202312 H31H 1k
NEA - BRETEIIMERT B REL - F M
FLEE 5 REUFIA ML BB E AR 75,119,000
TR ARES57,537,0007T °

BHIERRRBE2EIFNERBRERAE - %
FLRTY R RARE L BUR R IR EAOR - B
AITIA 5t B AN 6% [ 4 W SRR B I AR B RO AR B
R FHERMINARE -
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27 IKEREERAAEE(E)
FAIR VALUES (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued) (@ EERMRE)
Trade receivables (continued) B S EWEIE ()
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of RET25) & 8E - 3E S EKEKIEM
trade receivables during the reporting periods presented SHEERERIEEEHERET
is as follows:
RMB’000
AT
Balance at July 1, 2022 7220227 A1 H K&k (85,117)
Credit loss recognized during the year “F NFERE & &8 (908)
Exchange adjustment [& =& F§ & (2,739)
Balance at June 30, 2023 72202346 A30 H /) 4564 (88,764)
Credit loss recognized during the period EiRNHER(E E E18 (2,080)
Written off during the period Ef R 55 10,476
Exchange adjustment [ 5 5% 1,934
Balance at December 31, 2023 722023412 A 31 H A& &4 (78,434)
The following significant changes in the gross carrying HZE2023F6 A30B ItFE - EHENK
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the increase HIEREBEZEENNTERE L - E
in the loss allowance during the year ended June 30, TR EIE N
2023:
e Decrease in receivables past due resulted in a o EUGKIEMERRL - BEUSIBRHE
decrease in loss allowance of RMB20,300,000. > AR #520,300,000T ©
e Increase in loss allowance of RMB21,367,000 for o TERBTIHIMCIRRE RIMNERE
trade receivables mainly due from certain overseas Bkt - SIEWE B 5 EIGK
distributors and franchisees due to deterioration of THIE hNEs1E B 5 A R 21,367,000
their financial condition. 7, ©
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables and changes in additional
loss allowance due to specific consideration on certain
distributors contributed to the decrease in the loss
allowance during the six months ended December 31,
2023:

° Increase in the gross carrying amounts of trade
receivables not past due and past due but less
than 270 days resulted in an increase in loss
allowance of RMB8,332,000.

° Reversal of additional loss allowance of
RMB7,106,000 for trade receivables due from a
distributor upon collection of receivables.

° Write-off of RMB10,476,000 of trade receivables
due from certain distributors with loss allowance
fully provided.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Other receivables

In determining the ECL for remaining other receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate. The management of the
Group has assessed that other receivables have not
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and risk of default is insignificant, and
therefore, no credit loss allowance of other receivables
is considered necessary by management for the
year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months ended
December 31, 2023.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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R
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B E SRR RS
AE#7,106,0007T °
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

210

(b)

Liquidity risk

As at June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023,
the Group’s net current assets amounted to
RMB6,018,410,000 and RMB5,920,655,000,
respectively. Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash surpluses
and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realizable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The Group relies on the cash generated from
operating activities as the main source of liquidity.
For the year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months
ended December 31, 2023, the Group had net cash
generated from operating activities of approximately
RMB1,666,030,000 and RMB1,097,541,000 respectively.
In addition, the management of the Group monitors the
utilization of borrowings and ensures compliance with
borrowing covenants, if any. The Directors believe that
the Group and the Company will have sufficient funds
available from the operating activities to meet their
financial obligations in the foreseeable future.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

27 MBEREERAAEE(E)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period presented
of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contracted rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the each
reporting period presented) and the earliest date the

Group can be required to pay.

(b) mENERER (&)
TRINFAEEN SR EBERIRE R
FMRENBOARBRRRER (BERE
MM R BRI BN - R RFEH
o QIR & IREHIRAIRITHE)
RIS NHR RAEBAENNRT
SEE

More than ~ More than Carrying

Within 1 yearbut 2 years but amount at

1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than June 30,

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years 2023

22023 F

—FRsk —FNE  WENE 6A30H

GEAN RHESE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000  RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AREFT AREFT AREBFT ARETT ARETT

Trade and other payables & 5 &% E b fE{F 5018 3,019,302 - - - 3019302 3,019,302
Loans and borrowings &5 % &3 216 918 6,716 - 7,850 7,215
Lease liabilities HHE & & 334,778 259,948 260,188 110,215 965,129 885,734
3,354,296 260,866 266,904 110,215 3,992,281 3,912,251

2023F EiE o HAIER pAN
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

212

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

27 B%EREERQAEBEE)

(b)

REERER (&)

More than More than Carrying
Within  1year but 2years but amount at
1yearor lessthan lessthan More than December 31,
on demand PACE 5years 5years 2023
R2023F
—FR® —F0E  mENE 12A31H
MELT RS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TT AR%TIR ARETT ARET:R
Trade and other payables & 5 % E {508 3,380,826 - 12,411 - 3,402,237 3,402,237
Loans and borrowings EF S &7 935 2,360 4,497 - 7,792 7,259
Lease liabilities & & f& 457,747 403679 399,187 102,502 1,363,115  1,245305
3,848,508 406,039 416,095 102,502 4,773,144 4,654,801
Interest rate risk () A=@Ep

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
does not account for any fixed-rate financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss at the end of each
reporting periods. Therefore, interest-bearing financial
instruments at fixed rates do not expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from restricted cash and cash at bank
at variable rates, which exposes the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group determines the appropriate
weightings of the fixed and floating rate interest-bearing
instruments based on the current market conditions and
performs regular reviews and monitoring to achieve an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate exposure. The
Group does not enter into financial derivatives to hedge
interest rate risk.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(©
U

(ii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial
instruments at the end of each reporting period
presented:

Interest rates

Al

%

Fixed rate instrument: E/EF|Z I8 :

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(RN - LARET % 25))
27 BXRREERAAEEGE)

FZ= B (48)

(i) FIRER
TREFFMNE 2SR EHARRTEE
KT BT EMFIRHR

(©

As at June 30,
2023
20234

6 A30H
RMB’000
ARET T

As at December 31,
2023

R20235

12A31H

RMB’000
AR T

Interest rates

Loans and borrowings &3 & £k 3.0% (7,215) 3.0% (7,259)
Cash at bank (Note 19) $#1777 5% (F5£19) 3.08%~5.25% 1,040,921 3.75% 103,207
Term deposits & 17 0.9%-~5.5% 681,715 0.9%~6.02% 310,759
1,715,421 406,707
Variable rate instrument: T2 5|2 T H :
Restricted cash (Note 20) %R #I5 & (FizF20)  0.3%~1.8% 27,073 0.2%~1.8% 7,970
Cash at bank (Note 19) 581777 (Fifz£19) 0%-~3.5% 5,447,716 0%-~5.2% 6,311,451
5,474,789 6,319,421
Sensitivity analysis (i) BEBEDSFK

At June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023, it is
estimated that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variable held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit for the reporting
periods and retained earnings by approximately
RMB42,401,000 and RMB24,363,000,
respectively.

#202346 30 H K&2023%12 A
318 ' EFEEMB S RIFLE
BT - TBEEFIRBEE I, R
D1001EEE - B, R A%
ErRE BRI ERB T RED B
A NERHE42,401,0007T KA R
24,363,0007T °

2023F [EE o BAIER PAK



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
I%IT\I:I

BT R MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

214

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
United States dollars, Euros and Hong Kong Dollars.
The Group manages this risk as follows:

U

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the end of the reporting periods to currency
risk arising from recognized assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated
using the spot rate at the end of the reporting
periods. Differences resulting from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27 BIREREERAAEEE)
FAIR VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) 0 E¥WEME(E)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) () EXERERRHOE)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)
INERR (AARBTFTZ5)

As at June 30, 2023
K2023%6 H30H

United
States Hong Kong
Dollars Euros Dollars  Renminbi Others
ETT BT BT AR it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREBTT

Trade and other receivables & 5 & E f el 708 61,922 = = = =
Cash and cash equivalents & IR & SEY 455,032 6,677 5,100 2,429 3
Term deposits & 2177 7% 344 = = = =
Trade and other payables & 5} HL A {58 (83,094) (4,664) (13,950) - -

Net exposure arising from recognized assets and liabilities
BERREERABREENFHO 434,204 2,013 (8,850) 2,429 3

Exposure to foreign currencies
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)
SHERER (AARETTES)

As at December 31, 2023
R2023F12H31H

United

States Hong Kong
Dollars Euros Dollars Renminbi Others
E BT BT AR Hitr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR¥TT ARBTRT

Trade and other receivables & 5 & £ ft fE Y 78 141,973 20 23,814 - 3,889
Cash and cash equivalents & K38 £ % EY) 309,966 37,492 7,868 3,068 19
Term deposits T 27771 35,712 - - - -
Trade and other payables & 5 & E b FE (578 (82,669)  (5,151) (11,401) (820) (930)

Net exposure arising from recognized assets and liabilities
EHEREE MR BELAFH D 404,982 32,361 20,281 2,248 2,978

2023 ERE o BAIER PAB
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27 BIBRRBREERAAEE(B)
FAIR VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) ) EWER(E)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BREDIWF
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRINTBRFTE Ao RS 2R
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained B MASERSHREHRE
earnings) that would arise if foreign exchange rates HERRARNWEXRNE@EBEEE
to which the Group has significant exposure at the 24 AEENRBEFE (KRB
end of each reporting period had changed at that TrUaR ) B8 4 O BN B4 o
date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.
As at June 30, 2023 As at December 31, 2023
7202346 A30H M2023512H31H
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit for the (decrease) profit for the
in foreign year and in foreign period and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates earnings rates earnings
HAFE HEFE
EX LA/ FEEKBEEFE ERXEHRS FERER
(TR WEHEE (TE) WENTE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARFIT ARBEF T
United States Dollars 37t 1% 4,324 1% 3,375
(1% (4,324) (1)% (3,375)
Euros BT 1% 19 1% 270
(1% (19) (1)% (270)
Hong Kong Dollars /&7t 1% (89) 1% 208
(1% 89 (1)% (208)
Renminbi A R 1% 20 1% 19
1% (20) (1)% (19)
Others HAh 1% - 1% 25
(1% - (1)% (25)
Note: Fi3E
* The amount was less than RMB1,000. * ZEE PN ARK,0007T °
Results of the analysis as presented in the ERINTONTHSERERKREREER
above table represent an aggregation of the ETRERIRSAMINEEETE
instantaneous effects on each of the Group HIBRTE TS M BN £ 1A
entities’ profit after tax and equity measured in 2 WIRREH RN ERBE B A
the respective functional currencies, and then R HE25| 28 -

translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting periods for
presentation purposes.

PAN]  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of each reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency.

(e) Fair value measurement

U

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of each reporting period presented on a
recurring basis, categorized into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value
measurement.

The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

27 HBEREER A AEEE)

3
it

(d) EEEPkE(E)

(i) BREDW (E)
BRESMBRREEAERESSE
TR EASERAENSAERNS
s EAR A INE AR ML S D Bl
TE  BEAEFSHESTDEEY
LN EBEHERNASE AN RE
JER R R ERFTE o kAT E
ERBINER I TS RIRE A
B2V EBFEERNEEE -

) AREEE
() BAREEMENEREERARE

RINEIEER

TREJNE REPRAREIRE
FUHEEAENESRTIAZARE
B - Wi RCBEIR M %@ E ER)
F13 - AAEEGTETNER
DER=ERAEBEER -

NRBEFEMBENERHES
ZAMEET AR AZIER A
BERUEMERMEMET :

o FEEAME:EERE—
Bk AZE (AIRETER
MEREEX B ERERT
BHAREHERE)FTEND
REE-

s FoELME: ERFE_E
REABIR (AIRREERE —
B BREAZE) B
FERERTAIERGEAHK
BRFEMAREE - TA#
R ABEBESETHEIEN
B ABUE

s EZEAME:EREXRT
BB ABBAENDR
BE-
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27 BIXEREERAAEE(E)
FAIR VALUES (continued)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) AREERE(E
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at () BAAEENENESREERERS
fair value (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DB EER (&)
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREVNWAEFEARRSHRESHEERH
assets that are measured at fair value at the end of NARABEFENSREE :

each reporting date:

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
June 30, June 30, 2023 categorized into
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

20234

630/ E@zoesisﬁsoaaﬁ@fa S EATED A

NhfEE F—ER F[E FEH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT  AREFT  AREFT ARETT

Recurring fair value measurement
KEMDAEETE

Assets: BE :

Other investments: HA% & :

- Investments in trust investment schemes

—ERtREEIRE 205,329 - 205,329 -
- Investment in an unlisted Partnership Enterprise
—FETERERRE 73,870 - 73,870 -

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
December 31, December 31, 2023 categorized into
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

72023F

12A318H M2023F12A31 HW AR EETED A
ANREE E—EBR E_ER F=ER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AESTT AR®TRT AE¥TT AR®TR

Recurring fair value measurement
REMRAEEFE

Assets: B :

Other investments: HAfI#% & :

- Investments in trust investment schemes

—ERER AR EIRE 202,866 - 202,866 -
— Investment in a wealth management product

—BHERRE 50,000 - 50,000 -
- Investment in an unlisted Partnership Enterprise

—FLEMERERKRE 90,603 - - 90,603
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

U

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continueq)

During the year ended June 30, 2023, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfer into or out of Level 3. During the six
months ended December 31, 2023, the investment
in an unlisted Partnership Enterprise was
transferred from Level 2 to Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognize transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of each reporting
period in which they occur.

Other investments in Level 2 as at June 30, 2023
and December 31, 2023 mainly represented
investments in trust investment schemes and a
wealth management product. The fair value of
these investments was determined by the Group
with reference to the fair value quoted by the trust
companies or bank, that established and managed
the investments (see Note 16), using expected
return rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk, remaining terms and
other market data.

The Group invested in an unlisted Partnership
Enterprise in late June 2023 with a consideration of
USD10,409,000 (equivalent to RMB73,870,000). As
at June 30, 2023, the fair value of this investment
was measured at the investment consideration,
which represented the recent transaction price,
and was classified as Level 2.

At December 31, 2023, the fair value of the
investment in unlisted Partnership Enterprise was
determined using summation method of cost
approach with the assistance of an independent
valuer, based on recent transaction price of the
underlying enterprise invested by this Partnership
Enterprise and the predetermined distribution
mechanism of returns set out in the agreement of
the Partnership Enterprise. This investment was
classified as Level 3 as no observable inputs for
which market data could be used to measure the
fair value.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR
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7202346 530 H 2023512 A
318  F_ERTHEMKEEE
EIRHEARENEIREMERN
"E - ZERENALEBERLSSE
BL2ERINEEZERENET
RNEIHIRTT (B2 EWE16) FTHk
MAREE  FHREEHELUEK
EERR - FISRHAR K EMTEE
BRI AZRIA] BEHARHRE T A

R2023F6 AK ' AEBKE
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement (continued)

U

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continueq)

The gains arising from the remeasurement of fair
value of other investments are included in other
net income in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortized cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at
June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023 because
of the short-term maturities of these financial
instruments.

28 COMMITMENTS

(@)

220

Capital commitments outstanding as at the end of
each reporting period presented not provided for
in the financial statements were as follows:

27 B%EREERQAEBEE)

e AREEEGE

U]

(ii)

28 R

IS

NABEFENESHEEREE
4=

=4
RABEER (&
EFtERMRENRRBEME
AR RS RET AR BERTE
i e 8

—~
~

WIRAAEEIRNESBREER
BENANEE

MRS TEREHANEIE
BRIt 7N £ ) LA B S K AR S THE R 6
TEMIRE S FEHEEN20235F6 A
30 H 2023412 A31 HHARE
EWEEAER -

(@ REREHRERRFHFRERPE
REARBITEARAGNT ¢

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

76 H30H M12A31H

2023 2023

202345 2023F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AT ARMETF T

Contracted for construction projects #£:%8 B 2 5T4) 472,038 570,840

Contracted for 2 5] 49 472,038 570,840
Authorized but not contracted for construction projects

EREERETOERIEE 510,608 266,333

Total A&t 982,646 837,173
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29 CONTINGENCIES

(@)

The commitment of tax payments

On October 13, 2020, Mingyou Industrial Investment
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Mingyou”), being a subsidiary of
the Group’s equity-accounted investee prior to October
27, 2021 and a subsidiary of the Group since October
27, 2021, was set up to acquire the land use right of
a parcel of land and to establish a new headquarters
building for the Group in a district in Guangzhou, the
PRC. In connection with the acquisition of the land
use right and the construction of new headquarter
building by Mingyou, on November 26, 2020, MINISO
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“MINISO Guangzhou”) entered
into a letter of intent (“the Letter”) with the local
government of that district, whereby MINISO Guangzhou
committed to the local government that the aggregate
amount of tax levies paid by the subsidiaries of MINISO
Guangzhou in that district and Mingyou would be no
less than RMB965,000,000 for a five-year period starting
from January 1, 2021, with RMB160,000,000 in 2021,
RMB175,000,000 in 2022, RMB190,000,000 in 2023,
RMB210,000,000 in 2024 and RMB230,000,000 in 2025.
If the above entities fail to meet such commitment,
MINISO Guangzhou will be liable to compensate for the
shortfall.

In January 2021 and April 2022, MINISO Guangzhou had
provided performance guarantees of RMB160,000,000
and RMB175,000,000 respectively issued by a
commercial bank to this local government in respect
of the commitments of tax payments for the calendar
years of 2021 and 2022. The above entities had met the
commitments for the calendar years of 2021 and 2022
and therefore MINISO Guangzhou was not required
to make any compensation to the local government
under the above performance guarantees. The above
performance guarantees have expired on March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2023, respectively.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

29 HEEE
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29 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

222

(@)

The commitment of tax payments (continued)

In March 2023, MINISO Guangzhou provided a
performance guarantee of RMB190,000,000 issued by a
commercial bank to this local government in respect of
the commitment of tax payments for the calendar year
of 2023, which is valid from April 1, 2023 to March 31,
2024. The directors have assessed that, based on the
projection of and actual relevant taxes and surcharges
paid and payable during the calendar year of 2023, the
above entities are expected to meet and have met the
commitment for the calendar year of 2023 and it thus is
not probable that MINISO Guangzhou needs to make
such compensation to the local government under
the above performance guarantee. No provision has
therefore been made in respect of this matter as of June
30, 2023 or December 31, 2023.

Lawsuit relating to illicit competition

During the year ended June 30, 2022, Shenzhen
Purcotton Technology Co., Ltd. initiated a legal
proceeding against certain PRC subsidiaries of the
Group, one of the Group’s suppliers and a store
operated by one of the Group’s franchisees relating to
an illicit competition dispute. The total amount claimed
against the PRC subsidiaries was approximately
RMB30 million. No provision was made in respect of
this claim as of June 30, 2022 as the directors believed
the probability of losing the case was low based on the
assessment of the Group’s litigation counsel at that
time.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, a provision
amounting to RMB30,000,000 was made based on
the first instance judgment made by the court despite
that the Group had filed an application of appeal to the
court.

As of December 31, 2023, the final judgment has been
made by the court that the first instance judgment
should be upheld, and the application of appeal filed
by the Group has been dismissed. RMB30,000,000 has
been paid to the plaintiff during the six months ended
December 31, 2023.
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TR (48)

720234F3 A + ZAIENBL2023EFH)
TR R ) B b BT IR P R IR T B
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FEREE B R T A B RTE2023EF
RyE - B A EMNE i B AER
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BEARRER AR EEHFAUD
MARENE THENBRARRAEE
W—REEEMAER ARG — K&
B —RPIERE —FOARFA ° S8
BENBARRERENASHELNAAR
BI0EETT - BiE20229F6 A30H @ A
R IE A S B & B H SR A AT 514 -
E=REBFHITREERE - AltEAk
P TEREEE LB -

HZE2023F6A30BILFE  BE
AEBEE RZERREE EF - BIHRIE
ETEH M — BRI IRBHEARE
30,000,0007T °

HZE2023F12A31 0 » EbEH#
B HRANREHH  WEE TR
SEK EFPREF o BlE2023F12 A
B1HILAER  EMEEXHARYE
30,000,0007T °
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29 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(c)

Securities class action

A putative securities class action lawsuit relating to
the disclosures in the Company’s IPO registration and
prospectus was filed against the Company and certain
of the Company’s officers and directors on August 17,
2022 in the United States. Plaintiffs purport to bring this
action on behalf of a class of similarly situated investors
and seek monetary damages on behalf of the class.
Lead plaintiffs were appointed in November 2022 and
has filed the complaint to the court. As of June 30, 2023,
the Company and other defendants has filed the motion
to dismiss the complaint and a decision was pending.
This action remained was at its preliminary stage and
the directors are unable to assess the outcome of the
action or reliably estimate the potential losses, if any.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company and other
defendants has completed briefing on the motion to
dismiss and a decision was still pending. The directors
and the Group’s litigation counsel were still unable to
assess the outcome of the action or reliably estimate the
potential losses, if any.

Subsequently on February 23, 2024, the motion to
dismiss the complaint was granted by the court with
leave to amend. Plaintiffs have filed a motion for
reconsideration of the court’s decision and intended to
file a further amended complaint.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

29 HIBEEE(E)

(©

HHERRHN

R2022F8 A17H - EERAL T H
RARBEZLABRERTNEEE
BRARRURARBETERAE R
EXRET EHERFERBFL R
EEBRE—BEZEUNKE SRR
ERFATRERMAMS RS EME - &
ERENR2022F 11 AT - Y7
EBTIR R A o B E=2023F6 A30A8 -
PIN/NETR =l uat | NN O )
& EESFER - ZFANERYF
PEER - EEEATAFANERKAISE
HEHBEERK (nF) -

#HZE2023F12 A31H8 » A RAal R HEA
WA B ST E A B &M SR IGMRAL
EEFER - EFRAEERFAZM
EEFEFAE RS b EEE
K (mA) -

BE1E » EBTRN2024F2 A23 BHlb/E T &
O RERA BN - B RFER B ISR ©
RERR T BIEREINE BERNB)
& WETEHR LS — PR ©
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Notes to the Copsolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXBHMAERS

TRANSACTIONS

(@) Name and relationship with related parties (@) R BRELKHEEE S NEER
The table below set forth the major related parties and TRINE T FEME T RHEREER
their relationships with the Group: BMR
Name of related parties Relationship with the Group
RAH 7 £ 1 EL 7R 88 [ ) A %
Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited Under common control of the controlling shareholder
BREML (BR)MEERATR] RPERR AR R LRI I
Nome Design (Guangzhou) Limited Under common control of the controlling shareholder
wRERE (BM) AR AR SRR AR AL R
Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd. Under common control of the controlling shareholder
R (L) RERERAT] KPR AR R R I
Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Service Co., Ltd. Under common control of the controlling shareholder
BMmEEEEFREARLA SRR AR AL R
Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Management Co., Ltd. Under common control of the controlling shareholder
ENTREERERERERAT SRR R S
Henhaohe Tea Guangdong limited Under common control of the controlling shareholder
REFBER(ER)ERAF PR AR AL R
Miniso (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. Under common control of the controlling shareholder
HEER (BR)EXREERAR KPR AR R LRI I
Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited Under common control of the controlling shareholder
Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited XA AR SR AR 2R
Shanghai Kerong Networks Limited Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder
EEEERERAR AR REBRBRREATE
ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited  Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder
AR TR AR A R A 7] RERBRREATE
ACC Super Accessories International Trade (Shenzhen)  Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder

Co., Ltd.

ACCHEBHBIRE Z (RY)BRAT] REBBRBRREATE
Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder

(formerly known as Guangzhou Mingchuang Business
Development Co., Ltd.)

BMNEEREERER AT RERBRREARF
(BA% : BB RBERERAR)

g

i

It

PPN MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXFEBALRS (B)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@ Name and relationship with related parties (a) MR BWUKEREE S WEER

(continued) (&)

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group

EL 7K £ [ i) A (¢

Guangzhou Mingyou Business Management Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder

BMEEmREEBERERAR XERBRRERTLE

KOURITEN LIMITED (j) Subsidiary of an equity accounted investee of the Group

KOURITEN LIMITED (i) REBAEEATRNEIRE R AR E AR

Note: BfaE -

()  On October 26, 2023, the Group invested in the parent () M2023F10H26H ' AEEHKE
company of KOURITEN LIMITED and acquired 25% of KOURITEN LIMITEDH & A "] - Wi
its interest. KOURITEN LIMITED became a subsidiary of H25% M % o 51k - KOURITEN
an equity accounted investee of the Group since then. LIMITED A&7~ 5 [ DA R &2 05 A BR B 4
The transactions between the Group and KOURITEN WERRNHEBLAE > B2023F10A
LIMITED from October 26, 2023 to December 31, 26 HZE2023F 12 A31H ' AEEHE
2023 and the balances with KOURITEN LIMITED as at KOURITEN LIMITEDHI A 5 K& 732023
December 31, 2023 were included in Notes 30(b) and %12 A31 HEKOURITEN LIMITEDH)
30(c), respectively. #hEer o BB AT 5E30(b) &2 30(c) °

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EEEEEERMIRE

(i) Key management personnel compensation (i) EBREEASHH

Key management personnel compensation FREEABFMEELNTAZR

comprised the following:

For the For the six

year ended months ended

June 30, December 31,

2023 2023

H ZE20234F B Z2023F

6 H30HIEFE 12HA31HIEAREA

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT AR¥ET T

Short-term employee benefits %2 Hi 8§ T 157 13,069 8,171
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses (Note 25)

NS E RGO IR (FiEE25) 718 508

13,787 8,679

2023 ERE o BAIER P2Y
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

226

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b)

Transactions with related parties (continued)
(ii)

Other transactions with related parties

Sales of products Em s E

- Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited

- Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited

- Miniso (Zhaoging) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.
—REIEm (BE)EXRREERAF

- Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited
—BRER (BR)RMEERAT

- KOURITEN LIMITED

- KOURITEN LIMITED

Provision of information technology support and consulting services
RIS BRI SN AR

- Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd. (i)

—BR (LB RERBRAT()

- Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited (i)

— BRI (BR)RERARAF()

- ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited (i)

—IRY I B R A R R 22 B ()

- Henhaohe Tea Guangdong Limited (i)

—REFIERR (BR)BRAF()

License fee income #E& U A
- KOURITEN LIMITED
- KOURITEN LIMITED

Purchase of products & 558

- Shanghai Kerong Networks Limited

— FETRBRRRER LT

- Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited

—BREM (BR)BRARAT

- ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited

— R BB AR A

- ACC Super Accessories International Trade (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
- ACCHEBAREEIR & 5 (RYI) AR AR

- Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd.

—-BMN2ERBERARAF

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

(b)

30 EXEBALRS (&)

BEREBT RS ()

(ii)

For the
year ended
June 30,
2023

HZE00234F
6 A30H IEFE
RMB’000
ARET T

18,046

4,020

85

916

2,714

207

230

12,125

206

452

367

EREBLNEMRS

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

HZ2023F

12831 H1ER~EA

RMB’000
AR T T

11,577

3,026

10,048

26
1,466

138

87

2,286

23



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXEBAE RS (F)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

(ii)

Other transactions with related parties
(continued)

Purchase of catering services & & #ARTE
— Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Management Co., Ltd.
—BENTREEEREERRAA

Rental and related expenses 4 M #0785 %

— Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd. (iii)
—EMNBREREERER A F()

— Miniso (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.
—ZEEm (R EXREARAT]

— Guangzhou Mingyou Business Management Co., Ltd
—BMNEERELEEBEARAA

Payment of lease liabilities XM E & &
— Miniso (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (i)
—ZEIBm (BE)EFKRERR AR

Payment of rental deposits > & & &

— Miniso (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (i)
—FAIER (BR)EFREBFRA T

— Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd. (jii)

— BN 2B R A R A A (i)

Payment of earnest money in connection with lease of a
property

XNEYEEEFHNRES

— Guangzhou Mingyou Business Management Co., Ltd.

—BEMEERREEEEERAR]

(b)

BEREBT RS ()

(ii)

For the
year ended
June 30,
2023

#HE20234
6 A30H ILFE
RMB’000
NS

6,078

2,359

26,583

10,647

1,710

ERBL RS (&)

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

HZ2023%F

12331 HIEEA

RMB’000
PN

3,888

4,016

200

347

19,271

113

1,000

2023F iR o RAIER P



Notes to the Copsolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

228

(b)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

(ii)

Other transactions with related parties
(continued)
Notes:

@)

Pursuant to the information technology support
and consulting services agreements entered
into between the Group and Haydon (Shanghai)
Technology Co., Ltd., Wow Colour Beauty
Guangdong Technology Limited, ACC Super
Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited
and Henhaohe Tea Guangdong Limited, the
Group provided business management systems
deployment and support services to these entities
during the year ended June 30, and 2023 and the
six months ended December 31, 2023.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Group
entered into lease agreements with Miniso
(Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. for lease
of additional properties for storage of inventories
with fixed lease payments ranging from two to
three years. The Group recognized right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of RMB69,295,000 in
total at the commencement dates of these new
leases. The Group also paid rental deposits of
RMB10,647,000 in connection with these leases
during the year ended June 30, 2023.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

30 EXBEARS (8)

(b)

BEBL RS (&)
SERB T NEMX S (F)

(ii)

fiiE

(i)

(ii)

HZE2023F6 A30B IFFEKRE
Z2023412 A31 B IENEA -
BIEAE®BEZR (8 RER
AR BRAEM(ER)REER
AR ORYIMBBRAEHEERA
Al RARAFE R (R ) BRA R
BRI W= BRI 3% R g AR
WE - ASEERZEERREE
BERRAEE RIIRRT

B £202356 A30H ILFE -
AEEERAER(EFE)EXR
ERR AR ZEE R - AE
ERIMIERRNFENFR
EHENFNTIMEE=F - &
SERFHEER R B HRERER
BEENHERBRBAARE
69,295,000 © & £202346 A
30 L FEAKETHAEFHEE
> N EEE AR%10,647,000
e
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

(ii)

Other transactions with related parties
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(il

During the six months ended December 31, 2023,
the Group entered into another lease agreement
with Miniso (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment
Co., Ltd. for lease of properties as employee
dormitories with fixed lease payments for five
years. The Group recognized a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability of RMB2,065,000 in total at
the commencement date of this new lease. The
Group also paid a rental deposit of RMB113,000
in connection with this lease during the six months
ended December 31, 2023.

During the year ended June 30, 2023 and the
six months ended December 31, 2023, the
Group made payments of lease liabilities of
RMB26,583,000 and RMB19,271,000 respectively
to Miniso (Zhaogqing) Industrial Investment Co.,
Ltd. in connection with the lease of properties.

In March 2023, the Group entered into a five-
year lease agreement with fixed lease payments
in respect of a property for store operation with
Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co.,
Ltd.. In April 2023, the five-year lease agreement
was cancelled and replaced with a nine-month
lease agreement for the same property out
of commercial considerations. A right-of-use
asset and a lease liability of RMB35,993,000
were initially recognized at the commencement
date of the five-year lease agreement and were
subsequently derecognized upon the cancellation
of the agreement. Total rental and related
expenses incurred in connection with the lease
of this property during the year ended June 30,
2023 and the six months ended December 31,
2023 were RMB2,359,000 and RMB4,016,000,
respectively. The Group also paid rental deposit of
RMB1,710,000 in connection with the lease of this
property during the year ended June 30, 2023.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

30 EXBEBEARS (B

(b)

BREBL RS (&)
SERB T NEMX S (F)

(ii)

feE < (48)

(ii)

B ZE20234F12 A31 8 1N MA
A AEBEZEER(EE)
EXRABRAR S K
Eink - UHEWEREELR
& BEEHENRARF - K&
B R ER A B ERER A E
BEMMEABREAARE
2,065,000t ° & Z£2023F12 A
31 B IENE A ARER Iz SR
ExHHeRe AR 113,000

JT °©

HZE2023%6 A30H ILFEKRE
F£2023%F12 A31HIENEA -
AEBEFABEAEMERZANE
m(EE)EXREBRARD B
SR E AR 26,583,000
TR AR#19,271,0007T °

M2023F3 A - ANEEFAIEM
IEEEK— R EEEMNBER
BREARAANZETHE
REROAFHRERZ - HAEE
ZE - BR2023F4 BRIERF
& e LAE R PR NLE A
HEBEDR - REFHERZ
RFA BB VIIAERE AREE
LI E & EARK35,993,000
T H 1B M5 BUH B AR T
R o HE2023F6 A30H IEF
EREZE2023F12 A31 AN
BA @ HzxmENHEEEHTH
& MEERSBES B AARKE
2,359,0007T & A K %4,016,000
T ° i E 20236 A30H LEF
B AEESRZMENEES
NHAERS ARK1,710,0007T
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXFEBLRS (B)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EHEEEERMVAEER

As at June 30, As at December 31,
6 H30H ®12831H

2023 2023

20234 20235

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARET T

Trade related E 5 18
Included in non-current trade and other receivables from related parties:
BREEEREKTNERESEZNEMRRRIES

- Miniso (Zhaoging) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.
—ZRIEm (BB EXREAR LA 10,647 10,760

Trade related: & 5 18E :

Included in current trade and other receivables from related parties:
BEEERBAELSNREE S M HAERRESD

- Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd.

— R (LB)MRBRAR 46 54
- Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited

—BRAEM(BR)BMEARAR 767 1,508
- ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited

— Ry R R AR A F 293 277
- Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited

- Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited 2,484 12,427
- Miniso (Zhaoging) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.

—ZEIEm (EE)EXREFARAT] - 3,339
- Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd.

—EMNRERHERBRAR 2,012 1,710
- Guangzhou Mingyou Business Management Co., Ltd.

—BENEERELLERBRAR - 1,000
- KOURITEN LIMITED - 7,521

- KOURITEN LIMITED

5,602 27,836

PEI] MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXFEBLRS (B)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) EHEAEERRVEEER (FE)

As at June 30, As at December 31,
76 H30H M12831H8

2023 2023

20234 20235

RMB’000 RMB’000
AERTTT AR T T

Included in trade and other payables to related parties:
BREEENBHANES NECRNAFIED
- Shanghai Kerong Networks Limited

— BT BRRHAR LT 1,102 319

- Nome Design (Guangzhou) Limited

— KR (BM)BRAF 126 126

- ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited

— R BB R A R A 9 9

- Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Service Co., Ltd.

—BNTMREEERRBERAR 4,204 4,204

- Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Management Co., Ltd.

—BNTREEEEREEERAR 880 1,676

- Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd.

—EMEERBERERAR 50 -

- KOURITEN LIMITED

- KOURITEN LIMITED - 1,000
6,371 7,334

Included in lease liabilities due to related parties:

BEEEMNGRBINHEHEARET

- Miniso (Zhaoging) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.

—ZEIER (EE)EXREFRAT] 78,914 68,406

Included in contract liabilities due to related parties:

BEEEMGABINENAET

- KOURITEN LIMITED

- KOURITEN LIMITED - 2,388

2023 ERE o BAIER PEI
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

31 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 31 AT E@EHEMBER
INFORMATION
The following presents condensed parent company financial AT AAEERARINERTEER -

information of the Group.

() Condensed statement of profit or loss () fEEEREEx

For the For the

year ended six months ended

June 30, December 31,

2023 2023

B Z=2023%F HZ20235F

6A30HIEFE 12A31HL<EA

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARETT

Other income E Uz A 6,468 10,433
General and administrative expenses —#& & 1T FI 52 (37,854) (20,345)
Other net (loss)/income H 1% (E518), WA (11,418) 5,558
Operating loss &% &8 (42,804) (4,354)
Finance income 81754 A 25,608 44,400
(Loss)/profit before taxation Fi 51 (E5E) FlE (17,196) 40,046
Income tax expense FT{5HiF 2 - (3,137)
(Loss)/profit for the year/period & IR (E518) /FI;E (17,196) 36,909

PEYA  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

31 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 31 AEEEUMBER (&)
INFORMATION (continued)

)

Condensed statement of profit or loss and other (i) HPEREHEMEEKRR
comprehensive income

For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023

H £20234F HZE202345F
6A30RILEE 12A31ALENEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

(Loss)/profit for the year/period £ i (E5i8) FI;E (17,196) 36,909

Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
BElR R EF D BRI SRIAR ¢
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of the
Company #E KRR R EHRKRANE R =58 383,743 (86,224)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year/period

£/ HAEM2ERE S (&E) 383,743 (86,224)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year/period

£/ HAREKE (R85 366,547 (49,315)

2023 ERE o BAER PRE
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

31

234

COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 31 AEEEMKER (E)
INFORMATION (continued)
(i) Condensed statement of financial position (i) FHEAREEAR AR
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
16 A30H MW12A831H
2023 2023
20234 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
ASSETS &E&
Non-current assets EREIEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A TR E
- Cost-accounted investments in subsidiaries — ffB A Rk Az &5 & 2,300,637 2,259,187
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — &Yt B A =718 1,443,759 1,508,405
3,744,396 3,767,592
Current assets B & &
Other receivables H /& Uy 718 7,703 2,450
Cash and cash equivalents 38 & 38 & & (BY) 1,225,474 372,459
Term deposits T HITF 361,371 145,587
1,594,548 520,496
Total assets B E4E5E 5,338,944 4,288,088
EQUITY
Share capital f% 7~ 24(a) 95 95
Additional paid-in capital &R A& 24(a) 7,257,080 6,333,584
Other reserves E i f# (1,242,585) (1,401,580)
Accumulated losses Z:t/E18 (726,810) (689,901)
Total equity =55 5,287,780 4,242,198
LIABILITIES &1&
Non-current liabilities JER B & &
Deferred income #EFEY S 8,821 5,297
8,821 5,297
Current liabilities REI& &
Other payables E 1 f& (< 538 35,565 33,950
Deferred income #EFEUZS 6,778 6,643
42,343 40,593
Total liabilities & &4 51,164 45,890
Total equity and liabilities % & & &A% 5,338,944 4,288,088
MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

31 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 31 AFREEHMEER (E)
INFORMATION (continued)
(iv) Condensed statement of changes in equity (iv) FEBAREREER

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FRAAAANERRR
Additional Share-based
Share paid-n  Treasury  payment Translation Other  Accumulated
Note capital capital shares reserve reserve reserve losses

HRHRER
P Jif : 2R

RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥Tn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn
Note24()  Note24(a) Note24(b)(v) Note 24(b)(ii) Note 24(b)i)
KizE24(a HisEo(b) i) HisE24(b)ii

Balance at July 1, 2022 #202257 B1 B (&4 92 7,982,824 (83,79) 1819 (3,687)  (1541546) (1,440,512 4,915,194

Changes in equity for the year ended
June 30, 2023
BENNFOANALEENEESD
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - - - (17,19) (17,19)
Qther comprehensive income for the year

FRAmEENE - - -

383,743 = = 383,743

Total comprehensive income for the year
FhrEhaesE - - -

383,743 = (17,19) 366,547

Issuance of ordinary shares relating to

Hong Kong public offering and exercise of

the over-allotment option, net of

undenwriting commissions and other

issuance costs
HTEERLRRE RO EERREREN

LA (g e RAREINE) 24(a)i)
Dividend declared EE k& 24(d)
Exercise of options and subscription of

restricted share units
fiEERERZRR RHIRN B - 380 - - - - - 380
Release of ordinary shares from share

incentive plan
R B L ERR - (616) 616 - - - - -
Offset of accumulated losses 23 TE 1B i 24(a) - (730,898 - - - - 730,898 -
Repurchase of shares @ {7 24()(v) - - (32,712) - - - - (32,712)
Cancellation of shares 34 H 24 - (31,841) 31,841 - - - - -
Equity settled share-based transactions

WEREENRIXARS = -

w

408,018 - - - - - 0801
(870,787) - - - - - 70780

1187 = = = 1,137

Balance at June 30, 2023
H2023%E6 B30 A e 9% 7,257,080 (84,051) 2,956 380,056 (1,541,546) (726,810) 5,287,780

2023 ERE o BAIER PR
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

31 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 31 AFIEEMBER (&)
INFORMATION (continued)
(iv) Condensed statement of changes in equity (v) FHEARERSER ()

(continued)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
BRNAAANERRR
Additional Share-based
Share paid-in  Treasury payment  Translation Other Accumulated
capital capital shares reserve reserve reserve losses

NRHAER
ERRG  NNTREE i At ZiER

RMB0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBI00O
AE¥TT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note24()  Note 24(a) Note24(b)(v) Note 24(b)(ii) Note 24(b)i)
WiEodla)  MiHodla) M WEE24(b) (i) HEE24(b)fii

Balance at July 1, 2023 R20237 A1 B {5 9 7,257,080 (84,051) 2,956 380056  (1,541,546)  (726,810) 5,287,780

Changes in equity for the period ended
June 30, 2023
HZ02356A0A LEHNERED

Profit for the period ZEF|E - - - - - - 36,000 36,000
Qther comprehensive loss for the period
BREtEEEE - - - - (8624 - - (629

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the period

Bh2E (BR)/ hahs - - - - (86,224) - 36,909 (49,315)
Dividend declared EE R 2 24(d) - (923,664) - - - - - (923,664)
Exercise of options and subscription of

restricted share units
RBRER BB BRI EL - 168 - - - - - 168
Repurchase of shares Bl (7 24b)v) - - (73,560) - - - - (73,560)
Equity settled share-based transactions
NEREEHRARAR S - - - 789 - - - 789
Balance at December 31, 2023
R2023%E12A31 A6 9% 6,333,584 (157,611) 3,745 203832  (1,541,546)  (689,901) 4,242,198
Note: ff=E -
* The amount was less than RMB1,000. * SFELRARE1,0007T ©

PR{S] MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

31 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 31 AFIEEMBER (&)
INFORMATION (continued)
(v) Condensed statement of cash flow (v) FEBEBEEREXR
For the For the
year ended six months ended
June 30, December 31,
2023 2023
HZ2023F HZ2023F
6A30BILEFE  12A31HLENEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Net cash used in operating activities 44 B FT 3R & F 5 (43,240 (22,277)
Net cash from investing activities % & & B FT1538 & F 5 528,830 259,852
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities Bi & /ZENFT13,/(FT IR & 55 43,396 (1,083,077)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

ReRBeEEYEM/ CAD)FE 528,986 (845,502)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year/period

F/BNRERREEEY 646,921 1,225,474
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held

EXEHHMFRENTE 49,567 (7,513)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year/period
F/BRE LR EEY 1,225,474 372,459

2023 EMRE o BAIER PRI



Notes to the Copsolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

32 AMENDMENTS AND NEW STANDARDS 32 BEMEMKRERNIEET RFHTZEL
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
A number of new standards are effective for the annual Z B 202441 A1 B & FAHFEE H
periods beginning after January 1, 2024 and early application MR - WAFFIRBIRM - AT - NEBER
is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted the LB IR A TSR R I R IR RIER AN T 5] s
new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated 1BRT4ER] o

financial statements.

The following amended standards and interpretations are TEEI RS ST R KRBT S WA S BRAR
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s B MREEEATE -

consolidated financial statements.

Effective

for accounting

periods

beginning

on or after

LA B Hisk

Z BB

& o HAR AR 2K

— Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) January 1, 2024

—BEESER MBS IETE ((EIRE12ER) #1595 (15577K)) 2024%F1H1H

— Non-current liabilities with covenants (Amendments to IAS 1) January 1, 2024

—WHEZFENIEREEE ((EIBEE12EER) F19 (15577)) 2024%F141H

— Lease liability in a sale and leaseback (Amendments to IAS 16) January 1, 2024

—ERHBEIXZPHHESE ((ERE12ER) #1659 (15575)) 2024%F141H

— Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7) January 1, 2024

—REFHEZH (B E1ER) 75 R (B %R EER) E79 (15717K)) 2024F1H1H

— Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21) January 1, 2025

—RZ B (IR T 2R ) F 215 (1557 4) 20251 H1H

— Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or Will be determined

Joint venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) at a future date
—REZHABENAAEE RN A2 EEL ER

KA ((EIBRBI IR E2ER) E 105 R (B2 51 ER)) 285 (155T7)) HIRAR K A HEE

PRI MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

33 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

Executive directors Hi{TE%

Directors’
fees

£5108
RMB’000
ARETT

33 EEM=
RIB(EEBRZAES LTRAD - BE(AF
551> 25383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) B (f)iRIA K
(BEEFENDZER)AN) F2HRENES
B

Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits

RMB'000
ARBT T

For the year ended June 30, 2023
EF2023F6 A30HILEE

Discretionary
bonuses

Wi
RMB’000
ARETT

Retirement Equity-settled
scheme share-based
contributions payments
BRe NEREER
A RO
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARETT

(7]

Mr. Ye Guofu £EBIE %4 - 2,661 720 32 - 3,413
Mr. Li Minxin Z8{z %4 (ii) - 2,001 528 28 - 2,557
Mr. Zhang Saiyin &S 54 () - 895 384 21 - 1,300
Independent directors B E%E
Ms. Xu Lili #R2838 2+ 1,034 - - - - 1,034
Mr. Zhu Yonghua K% 2% &£ - - - - 1,137 1,137
Mr. Wang Yongping k5t 4% 1,034 - - - - 1,034
2,068 5,557 1,632 81 1,137 10,475
2023 F ERE o BAIER PR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

33 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

240

Executive director H1{TE%

Directors’
fees

RMB’000
ARSI T

Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits
e 2E
MEMER
RMB’000
ARET T

33 EEM<= (&)

For the six months ended December 31, 2023
EZ2023F12A31 HIEREA

Discretionary
bonuses

BEREA
RMB’000
ARBT T

Retirement Equity-settled
scheme share-based
contributions  payments
BHhe UEREEN
FTER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Mr. Ye Guofu £EZE L4 - 1,341 878 17 - 2,236

Independent directors B EE

Ms. Xu Lili #3238 5 + 537 - - - - 537

Mr. Zhu Yonghua K E5 4 - - - - 789 789

Mr. Wang Yongping T 7k 5t & 537 - - - - 537
1,074 1,341 878 17 789 4,099

Notes: B aE

(i) Mr. Zhang Saiyin resigned as a director of the Company on

January 31, 2023.

(if) Mr. Li Minxin resigned as a director of the Company on May

16, 2023.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

34 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 34 BEEHMAL

EMOLUMENTS

During the year ended June 30, 2023 and the six months
ended December 31, 2023, of the five individuals with the
highest emoluments, 1 is a director whose emolument is
disclosed in Note 33.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other 4
individuals are as follows:

HZE2023F6 A30H IFFE REHZE2023412
A31BIENAR G52 BSHMALH » 1
HREMEISF IR EEFINES -

BRAEMAR ATHFMEEZ500T ¢

For the For the
year ended  six months ended
June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023

EZE2023F #HZ2023F

6 H30H 12A31H

IEFE 1ER{E A

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥EFIT N

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - 285 & EfhigF] 5,526 2,689
Discretionary bonuses BIfE{E4L 2,232 3,443
Retirement scheme contributions Rk % 5+ 2t 3k 120 68
Equity-settled share-based payment LARESS 455 &A% 19 21 20,465 34,652
28,343 40,852

The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

tatEESHMA LM BENT

For the For the
year ended  six months ended
June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023

HZE2023F B Z2023F
6 H30H 12H31H
IEEE 1E<E A
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A K
Nil to HKD5,000,000 Z % 5,000,000 7T 3 3
HKD20,000,001 to HKD25,000,000 20,000,001 7T 225,000,000 7T 1 -
HKD35,000,001 to HKD40,000,000 35,000,001 ;% 7T % 40,000,000/ 7T - 1
4 4

2023F EiE o BAIER PLY



Five Year Financial Summary

AFUHREE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
mERE

For the year ended June 30,

BZ6H30BILEE
2020 2021 2022
20204 20214 20225
(RMB, in thousands)
(AE¥T )

Revenue A 9394911 8978986 9,071,659 10,085,649
Cost of sales $HERM A (6,883,931)  (6,246,488)  (6,640,973)  (7,015,888)
Profit/(loss) before taxation & 5|,/ (E18) 289,004 80,818 (1,216,192 906,813

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARRERRREGFNRE(BE)/ Wals (296,062) (256,583)  (1,429,621) 677,667

11,473,208

(7,030,156)

2,333,614

1,803,797

For the

six months
ended

December 31,
BZ
12A31H

IEAfEA

2023

7,632,467
(4,391,428)
1,652,742

1,217,804

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

HeEEREE
As of
As of June 30, December 31,
BZ
HZ6H30H 12A31H
2021 2022 2023
20214 20224
(RMB, in thousands)
(AR¥Tx)
Current assets JiE) & & 4511,719 4,986,599 9,199,087 8,072,562 9,904,005 10,327,634
Non-current assets FEREN A& 714,396 849,652 1,505,943 3,209,226 3543708 4,157,675
Total assets EEH4 % 5,226,115 5836251 10,705,030 11,281,788 13,447,713 14,485,309
Current liabilities & & & 3,245,979 3,309,643 3,482,855 3,788,671 3,885595 4,406,979
Non-current liabilities 355720 & & 2,094,110 2,849,654 570,021 465,717 643,850 887,113
Total liabilities & &% 5,340,089 6,159,297 4,052,876 4254388 4529445 5,294,092
Total (deficit)/equity (E4t) /XA (113,974) (323,046) 6,652,154 7,027,400 8918268 9,191,217

pLi¥]  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



“2020 Share Incentive Plan”

[ 2020 5 R ADE A=+ & |

“ADS(S)”
[XEFER]

“Articles of Association”
[HSZERAA

“associate(s)”

[BREA

“Audit Committee”

[EHEEE ]

“Board”
[EEg

“Bvl!!
[REARREE ]

“China” or “the PRC”

[FE ]

“Companies Ordinance”

[(AaFH)

“Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our”

SN EEAE: 3N

“Compensation Committee”

[FHEES

“connected person(s)”
[EEEAL

Definitions

the share incentive plan our Company adopted in September 2020, as
amended from time to time

KA BIR202049 A SRR B Bh AT &) (ETRHERT)

American Depositary Shares, each of which represents four Shares

XBFRER - B REEFERARILBRARD

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
ANRBEERAR (BREHERT)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BBCEMARAD BT & AR HE

the audit committee of the Board

EXgETLRBe

the board of Directors

B5e

British Virgin Islands
REEARHS

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purposes of this annual report
only, except where the context requires otherwise, references to China or
the PRC exclude Hong Kong, the Macao Special Administrative Region of
the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan

REARANE - ERAFRNE - HPENRATREEE - REARKM
BURPIRRITT R R &% - (BEXE S A ig&RI

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FB)EDIF 622 R EMED) B AEHER] ~ MFEsIAE 77 &R

MINISO Group Holding Limited (%818 @mEREIEA AR A F]), a company
with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on January 7, 2020
ZREREEZERAERAR - —KN2020F1 A7 EFAESHSEMKINE
REFEAF]

the compensation committee of the Board

EFEVHEES

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB (EMARRD BT & ama R

2023F [EE o RAIER PLK



Definitions

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ZRRR ]

“core SKU”

[#Z2SKU |

“Corporate Governance Code

[(iexERTAD]

“Director(s)”

(&=

“ESG Report”
[R5 - HERERRE]

“first-tier cities”

[—&3 |

“Global Offering”
[2IRFE ]

“GMV”

[GMV ]

“Group”, “our Group”, “the

Group”, “we”, “us”, or “our”
[Z&EE 1=k KM

“HFCAA”
[HFCAA

P8 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and unless the
context otherwise requires, refers to Mr. Ye, Ms. Yang and the intermediary
companies through which Mr. Ye and Ms. Yang have an interest in the
Company, namely, Mini Investment Limited, YGF MC Limited, YGF
Development Limited, YYY MC Limited and YYY Development Limited
BEBRCEMRAD B TFZANERE  RXESBMEIN - BExRE  BrLK
FEAR (EAERBLLTBBZEARMEE AR FEZ - BIMini Investment
Limited * YGF MC Limited * YGF Development Limited * YYY MC Limited ;&2
YYY Development Limited)

SKU that generates over RMB50,000 in sales for over a consecutive 6-month
period

BEGE AM A HERBAARES0,000THISKU

the Corporate Governance Code as set out of Appendix C1 (formerly
Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time
CETARR 8RC1 (AT REMT SR+ ) PrEtd BB Ia<F R (B TRHERT)

the director(s) of our Company

ARBES

environmental, social and governance report
B g kERRSE

Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen
R BF - BINARY

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering
YNGR S e

the total value of all merchandises sold by us and our MINISO Retail
Partners and distributors to end-customers, before deducting sales rebates
and including the value-added taxes and sales taxes collected from
consumers, as applicable, regardless of whether the merchandises are
returned

P RFEMOBEIERA R WARE S HE (R HE LA 245 R
HEEHEWRMZENMFEEN (WER)  EndattRO)NMEEmNR
BE

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time, and where the context
requires, in respect of the period prior to our Company becoming the
holding company of its present subsidiaries, such subsidiaries as if they
were subsidiaries of our Company at the relevant time
RABRETRHMBAR - RIVXEME - RAREXASEREHERFH
ERARZATHAE M S BIEZEME A7 OBz E R RN SRR
AIMME AR

Holding Foreign Companies Accountable Act
OMNARRIMERZR)



“HKDH or “HK$!!
[

“HKEX”
[ B3 P |

“Hong Kong”
[&#]

“Hong Kong Public Offering”

b N

“Ichiban Kuji”

[—&&]

“IFRS(s)”
KGIE $pi s 55 3 1pY

“International Offering”

[EIFREE

“IP!!
rel

“Latest Practicable Date
[REERTTAR]

“Listing”
[ £

Definitions

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEREEEEET

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARSMABRAR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEEBFRITTEE

the offer of the Hong Kong Offer Shares for subscription by the public in
Hong Kong at the Public Offer Price (plus brokerage of 1%, SFC transaction
levy of 0.0027%, FRC transaction levy of 0.00015% and Stock Exchange
trading fee of 0.005%) on the terms and subject to the conditions described
in the Prospectus, as further described in the section headed “Structure of
the Global Offering — The Hong Kong Public Offering” in the Prospectus
RIFHBR B AR EPTRIRHERRT - RAREEE (SI1%& 418
% 0.0027%FEE X HEE - 0.00015% HE B3 5 # [20.005% K 32 BT
ROPB)RZBVEFBZEROUEBTBLRRE - FHHNBRER 2K
BENEE-BBLAFREE] -8

one of the categories of products sold under the “TOP TOY” brand that
mostly feature manga characters and that are typically sold by lottery

[TOP TOY |mIE THENERMBZ — HEIBRKEREEAY - —RAMH
B ABE

the International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued from time to time
by the International Accounting Standards Board
Rerr AR S TREHRC IR I R E 2R

the conditional placing of the International Offer Shares at the International
Offer Price pursuant to the shelf registration statement on Form F-3ASR
that was filed with the SEC and became effective on March 31, 2022,
and subject to the terms and conditions of the International Underwriting
Agreement

RIEN2022F3 A31 B MEREEEGRRIIL A MAHF-3ASRR RN E &L
AR N A B AR 1 i B IR S AR AR IR T+ $R BRR B 5 (B A 16k 1 il 5 A0 BB
BERD

intellectual property

RN

April 11, 2024
202444 A118

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the HKEX
&R TR B B2 PR E AR TR

2023 ERE o BAER PLS



Definitions

“Listing Date”
[EmHEH]

“Listing Rules”

[(EmHRA]

“Main Board”

[

“Mini Investment Limited”

[ Mini Investment Limited |

“MINISO Retail Partner”

[BRIERA

“MINISO store”

[ BAIEmPIE]

“Model Code”

[(FREFAD ]

“Mr. Ye”

[REE]

pZYS]  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

July 13, 2022, on which the Shares are to be listed and on which dealings in
the Shares are to be first permitted to take place on the HKEX
202257 138 - Bkt L Rk &R E TR S i ia 32 5 ) B Bf

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

(B FTRE 7 LR R (B AEHER] ~ fFEIAE AT S 2k)

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the HKEX
which is independent from and operates in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the HKEX

HEBERXEENESRRX M (TREHETS) - A B R P Growth
Enterprise Marketil #2832 FTGrowth Enterprise MarketI[TT B1E

Mini Investment Limited, a limited liability company incorporated under the
laws of BVI on November 26, 2019

Mini Investment Limited *+ —ZR 7201911 A26 ARIF R BHEB R S5 E
SR B BREER A

franchisee under our MINISO Retail Partner model, a franchise-like store
model with chain store characteristics, where the franchisee bears the
store opening capital expenditure and store operating expenses to join our
“MINISO” or “TOP TOY” branded retail store franchise

BRI ARATHMER - 2R A GEEHMBERFR - AT - A
A AEREM I ZEIER IS TOP TOY IR T & PR & & RIERE
BARRAZAMEEEER

any of the stores operated under the “MINISO” brand name, including those
directly operated by us, those operated under the MINISO Retail Partner
model, and those operated under the distributor model
EAATBRIER R EBELnFIE - BERRMNESE - BAIEE AP
JE RAEEPYE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10) of the Main Board Listing
Rules

(ERETHRAD M ERCI(AIEM & T ) FEC EMBEITAERETESLFRIN
@ |

Mr. Guofu Ye, an executive Director, chairman of our Board, the chief
executive officer of our Company, the founder of our Group and a
Controlling Shareholder of our Company

HEEELE  PTES EFFEF  ARAEHFHTE - AEBEEIBARKE
NS



“Ms. Yang”

Rkl e

“Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee”

[RERGEERZEES] ¥
“NYSE”

[ A3 Fr ¥
“020”

[020] ¥
“PCAOB”
[XEARAREHEEZES] ¥
“Prospectus”

[BRER ] |

“Reporting Period” or “six months
ended December 31, 2023”

[$REH IS B ZE2023F b=
128318 EREA ]

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

[ARE] ¥
“RSUS”

[ 32 BRI AR 7 B4z ¥
“SEC”

[XEREE ] ¥

“second-tier cities”

[ =3 | 5

“SFO” or “Securities and
Futures Ordinance”

[(FEHRBAEFG)] it
“Share(s)”
gl 5

Definitions

Ms. Yunyun Yang, spouse of Mr. Ye and a Controlling Shareholder of our
Company
BEEXL  ERAENRBRARFZERERR

The nominating and corporate governance committee of the Board

EFeRAAREXREAREZE

i3

the New York Stock Exchange
HMROFBEFZ S

online to offline, a business strategy that draws potential customers from
online channels to make purchases in physical stores

REBIRT - —BRSIBEETIR REBEE AT R/EEE ML RS

The Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
ERRRARGHEELZES

the prospectus of the Company dated June 30, 2022
AR B B R2022456 A30 A B EZ

the period from July 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

202347 A1 HZE2023412 A31 B i

Renminbi, the lawful currency of China
HEVEE B AR

restricted Shares units
PR Bl A% (0 BB

the Securities and Exchange Commission of the United States

mainly include capital cities of provinces and autonomous regions, centrally-
administered municipalities, and other cities of China that the Company
considers to have a similar level of development potential
TERTBEEASENEGRTREGE PREFNEE T AREARFR
REBRLUKFERE N EAMIN T

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BREPIFEST BC(EH KBGO (ETEHERT MR sk AR AR 7 R E%K)

the ordinary shares of US$0.00001 each in the share capital of the Company
AR RIRR A A20.00001 FETTH) E AL

2023F EiRE o RAIER PLYS



Definitions

“Shareholder(s)”
[BRR

“SKU”
[SKU

“subsidiary” or “subsidiaries’

ey Pl

“SZSE”
[ |

“third- or lower-tier cities”

[ AR T35 J

“TOP TOY store”

[TOP TOYF9JE J

“United States” or “U.S.”
[5E

“USs$” or “U.S. dollars”
ESA

“opn

[% ]

pZt]  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

holder(s) of our Share(s)

BiFEEA

stock keeping unit, a unique identifier for each distinct product and service
that can be purchased

BB - PR E B SREE G S ARG A ME — 1R

has the meaning ascribed to it in section 15 of the Companies Ordinance

EACRANER) F A5G T HEE

Shenzhen Stock Exchange
ARINEFZ 5P

cities other than first- and second-tier cities in China

BRAPBI— » AR 2 SN ELAR T

any store operated under the “TOP TOY” brand name, including those
directly operated by us and those operated under the MINISO Retail Partner
model

EIATTOP TOY | BB LML - BRERMANESERZES %A
J&

United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject
to its jurisdiction

INRERE - LA - B M EPTA TSI

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
EBEFEEBET

per cent

B
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